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Company Profile
AR

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its

"o

subsidiaries (the “Group”,

"ou

the Group”,”we"” or “us”) are a leading spicy
snack food enterprise integrating R&D, production, processing and sales
in China.

Based on traditional formulas, the Group started the Chinese seasoned
flour products (also commonly known as Latiao (3R14)) industry, created
our first Latiao (3R1&) snack in 2001, leading the standards construction of
Latiao industry. With our outstanding product development capabilities,
the Group has successfully diversified into vegetable products, bean-based
products and others, including Konjac Shuang (E¥ &), Fengchi Kelp (&
I%,/8%), 78° Braised Eqg (78°8%) and others.

Adhering to our product development philosophy of “maximizing the
intrinsic value of nature with an industrialized approach”, the Group
continuously upgrades existing products and launches new products,
focuses on quality through establishing an industry-leading production
system and strict quality assurance system.

We are a popular snack food brand among young consumers in China.
The main consumer groups is young people aged 35 and below. Through
interesting and topical marketing methods, we have been awarded the
2022 GEN-Z's Favorite Brands “Inspiration and Vitality Brand”, as well as
the 2022 Global Innovativeness Review “Annual Consumer Brand” by
TMT Post.

The Group has an omni-channel sales and distribution network that
effectively reaches young consumers, we have quickly adapted to
the evolving purchasing behavior of consumers and expanded to
supermarkets, chained convenience stores and e-commerce channels,
which have wide exposure to young consumers.

We are committed to making authentic Chinese gourmet more
entertaining, casual, convenient and affordable, thereby continuously
introducing delicious snack food products for our consumers and offering
them a cheerful consumption experience.

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9985.HK) on December 15, 2022, and was selected
as a constituent stock of the Hang Seng Composite Index, the Hang Seng
Composite Mid-Cap Index and the Hang Seng Consumer Price Index by
Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited on February 24, 2023, with effect
from March 13, 2023.
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Definitions

" Articles of Association” or “Articles”
[ARER % ERE

“Audit Committee”

[EZZEE]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[E%g]

“Cayman Companies Act” or
"Companies Act”

[FERE(ARE) AR

“China” or “PRC" or “Mainland China”

[FPE ekl R E A

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ 1R AR

“Corporate Governance Code”
KEERTAD]

"COVID-19”
RIS

“Current Year” or “Year” or “2022"

[AFE]

“Director(s)"”

(%]

"ERP system”

[ERPZES: ]

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, which was effective on the
Listing Date
ARARIA LT BB RA A B E2 (B1EET)

the audit committee of the Company

ARBEZERES

the board of Directors of the Company

RAREEE

the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FERSEEEN2E(RANE) 1961 FEIFEN - K& 0 RIEFT) BETRHEE] - #
FR A 5 FAE TR

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this annual report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

FEARAMNE  AAFEREME - TEEDE  RFREE

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules, and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, HH Global Capital,
Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited, Beacon Flash
Limited, HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group

BXESBREN  BlETEE  BBTELE  MAMEHER - Amused Town
Limited * Decision Stone Limited * Adroit Fairy Limited * Beacon Flash Limited * #0170
el RAMERRF AR EMRADME T RRE

Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

CEMR DM+ (R EEIR TR

the contagious respiratory illness caused by a newly identified coronavirus

i — T IR AT 5 5| B B AR B R S

the year ended December 31, 2022
HZE2022F12A31HLEFE

director(s) of the Company

RRRES

enterprise resource planning systems, which is a business process management
system consisting of integrated software applications that help manage a business
and automate many back office functions related to technology, service and human
resources

TEERRERS  — B —BLEHEREFNEBRIEEERALS  AIHiE
BEBIW A ZIERMN - IRERADERIBENEZ S

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f



Definitions &3

"FSSC 22000"

[FSSC 22000]

“Group” or “our Group” or “we" or “us”

[ g2 Ik [ 2]
"HACCP”

[HACCP]

“HH Global Capital”
[FFI2IRE K]

"HH Green Philosophy”
[FIfnAR &R

“HH Innovation Group”
[ A0 & B 815

“Hong Kong” or "HK"
[&%]

“Hong Kong Listing Rules” or “Listing

Rules”

K&EBLTARAD L ETRAD]

"Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
"Stock Exchange”

[ BB PT ISk 32T

"IFRS(s)"”
[ BRI s 22

“Independent Industry Report”
[ B ITHRE ]

“Initial Public Offering” or “IPO"
[ERAFREE]

“1SO"

[1s0]

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Food Safety System Certification, a food safety management certification scheme
that consists of three components: ISO 22000, sector specific Pre-Requisite Programs
and additional requirements. Besides these three components there is a FSSC
22000 - Quality option based on the additional requirements of ISO 9001
EmEZTERRE  —HESZAEARTINRMELEEEREE - AISO
22000 ~ BHETEMARD ZEMMINENR - Bz E=@EAKIEDIN » ZAEERISO
9001 INZEKAIFSSC 22000 — B £ 315

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the context may require)
RRRRHEMBRR (NN EME - AARNREER—KAZRKMBAR])

a quality management system which identifies and evaluates points during production
in order to set up measures and control hazards to ensure product safety
—BESEERE  BEINNFAEEREPNEALY SIS EEBILIENE
= REMERERLD

HH Global Capital Ltd
FMEHERGRAT

HH Green Philosophy Ltd
MMEGFERRERDR]

HH Innovation Group Ltd
FMEFRFER DA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFATERR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EEMERHMABRARES LRI - ETRHERT - fFalAR M e

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERMERXHMER AT

International Financial Reporting Standards
I A B 75 e 5 2

an independent industry report prepared by Frost & Sullivan
FE AR RSOB AT RS

the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering
BEARBEERBEIREE

an International Organization for Standardization, a non-governmental organization
based in Geneva, Switzerland, for assessing the quality system of business
organizations

BIFR R L ABA - — AR AR IER TR - Bat mar i A

HERR



Definitions &

“Latest Practicable Date”
[ &% AT H A
“Latiao”

[ BRI

“Listing”
=i

"Listing Date”
[ EmEH]

“Model Code”
[CREESFAID]

“Nomination Committee”

=34

"OEM”
[ OEM

“Previous Year”

[ ]
“province”
(4]

“Remuneration Committee”
[FEES ]

"Reporting Period”
[ ¥ 5

“Ping Ping Foods”
[FFRE

“"RMB" or “Renminbi”
[AR%

“subsidiary(ies)”
=N
"WEILONG" or “Company” or

“our Company” or “the Company”

ey A RNl

"Weilong Commerce”

[DREi]

April 20, 2023, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining
certain information contained in this annual report prior to its publication

2023F4 8208 - BIAFHRA NI FLETE A FRATEH S T ERBREA 1T E

a type of seasoned flour product, which is a popular spicy snack food in China made
from wheat flour and chili

—RERRAER S - —Eh/ N R AR P BRI TR AR R &

listing of the shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
PRIV B BB A P AR BT

Thursday, December 15, 2022, the date on which our shares are listed and from
which dealings therein are permitted to take place on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
RARRMNE BT LT RSB EBEN AR - /820226128150 (281)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
CEMRADMEEH EMBETABFETE R ZNFESTAD

the nomination committee of the Company

AREREEEE

original equipment manufacturer

RBRELER

the year ended December 31, 2021
HE2021F12A31HLEFE

a province or, where the context requires, a provincial level autonomous region or
municipality, under the direct supervision of the central government of the PRC

B0 RN EFE - ERBERXTETFRBNEZEENEED

the remuneration committee of the Company
RARFHEES

the period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022
20221 A1H£E20229F12 A31 B &E

Luohe Ping Ping Foods Co., Ltd.
BT FEmBEREERA

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

RENEEEBARE

has the meaning ascribed to it in Schedule 1 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the law of Hong Kong)
BEBEEBEDIE622E( RRIEPIIR1FERS

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd, an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on July 6, 2018
DREREIKIZRAR AT - —KN2018F7 A6 B ERSHSTMA LR ER

NGl

Luohe Weilong Commerce Co., Ltd.
Eam I REEARAT

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f



Corporate Information
NEER

SHARE LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(Stock Code: 9985)

LISTING DATE
December 15, 2022

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Southwest Corner

Intersection of Dongfanghong Road and Zhongshan Road

Shaoling District
Luohe, Henan
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

5/F, Manulife Place
348 Kwun Tong Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

www.weilongshipin.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman)

Mr. LIU Fuping

Mr. SUN Yinong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. PENG Hongzhi

Mr. LIU Zhongsi

Mr. CHEN Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHANG Bihong

Ms. XING Dongmei

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ms. SHEN Xiaochun
Mr. LI Kin Wai

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. ZHANG Bihong (Chairman)
Ms. XU Lili

Ms. XING Dongmei
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Corporate Information 2 &) & %}

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman)

Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHANG Bihong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. XING Dongmei (Chairlady)

Ms. XU Lili

Mr. CHEN Lin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Luohe Wuyi Road Branch
China Construction Bank Luohe Huanghe Road Branch
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
Zhengzhou Zhenggang Six Road Branch

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR
Clifford Chance

27/F, Jardine House

One Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

PRC LEGAL ADVISOR
Commerce & Finance Law Offices
12-14th Floor, China World Office 2
No. 1 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Beijing

PRC

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Mont Avenir Capital Limited

Room 3812-3813, 38/F, COSCO Tower
183 Queen’s Road Central

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER AGENT
Maples Fund Services Limited
P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall
Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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Financial Overview

IIEHE

For the year ended December 31,

BZENAMNALEE

2019 2020 2021 2022

20194 20204 20214 20224

(RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) (RMB in million)

(AR¥BEL) (AR¥BEET) (AREFERL) (AR¥EBEER)

Revenue A 3,384.8 4,120.4 4,800.2 4,632.2

Gross profit Eil 1,254.3 1,565.7 1,793.0 1,959.6

Profit for the year FAFE 658.1 818.8 826.7 151.3

Adjusted net profit for the year' FRE R FFE 659.0 8212 907.8 913.1
Adjusted basic earnings per share GRS AEEREF

(RMB) (AR%TT) 0.33 0.41 0.45 0.42

Note: FfsE -
1. Equals profit for the year plus share-based payment expenses and listing 1. FRFRFIEIN L AR D 75 EHER0 (N 3RF 32 & L 5l
expenses. X e
As at December 31,
®12H31H

2019 2020 2021 2022

20195 20204 202148 20224

(RMB in million)  (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) (RMB in million)

(AREBET) (AR¥BET) (AR¥BET) (AR¥BEER)

Current assets MENEE 1,085.9 1,860.1 2,986.3 3,557.2

Non-current assets ERENEE 558.0 1,080.4 2,204.3 3,373.1

Total assets BERE 1,643.9 2,940.5 5,190.6 6,930.3

Current liabilities nEaE 786.8 1,168.0 1,255.5 1,000.2

Non-current liabilities FRBERE 429 140.2 265.2 405.7

Total liabilities Rt 829.7 1,308.2 1,520.7 1,405.9

Net assets FEE 8142 1,632.3 3,669.9 5,524.4

Working capital BIEER 299.1 692.1 1,730.8 2,557.0

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd

Annual Report 2022



Financial Overview Bf 7%t &

SUMMARY OF KEY FINANCIAL METRICS AR EIERERE
2022 2021 Change
2022 20214F 23
Gross margin EF= 42.3% 37.4% 4.9 pp
Adjusted EBITDA margin’ AR BRI ITE R S A AR R 28.6% 26.9% 1.7 pp
Adjusted net profit margin? L EFE R R 19.7% 18.9% 0.8 pp
Adjusted return on assets? (KA FE B TR K3 15.1% 22.3% (7.2) pp
Adjusted return on equity® R R o] SR R 19.9% 34.2% (14.3) pp
Inventory turnover days FEREEXEH 82 days X 70 days X 12 days X
Trade receivables turnover days E SRR B E R E 4.9 days X 3.7 days & 1.2 days X
Trade payables turnover days B SRR AR E 26 days X 21 days & 5 days X
Current ratio® BN s 3.56 2.38 1.18
Quick ratio® B L Ko 2.96 1.90 1.06
Gearing ratio’ BERE B R 2.9% 12.5% (9.6) pp
The liability-to-asset ratio® EEBB R 20.3% 293% (9.0) pp
Adjusted cash flow ratio of KRRGEEHRS
operating activities® B & 1.3 1.0 0.3
Notes: MI3E
1. Equals adjusted net profit for the year plus depreciation and amortization 1. SREABFEFHEM EMELHER - FI8 B

expenses, interest expenses and income tax expense, divided by revenue and

multiplied by 100%

2. Equals adjusted net profit for the year divided by revenue and multiplied by

100%

3. Equals adjusted net profit for the year divided by the average of the beginning

and ending balance of total assets for that period and multiplied by 100%

4. Equals adjusted net profit for the year divided by the average of the beginning
and ending balance of total equity for that period and multiplied by 100%

5. Equals current assets divided by current liabilities as of the same date

6. Equals current assets less inventories and divided by current liabilities as of the

same date

7. Equals total interest-bearing borrowings divided by total equity and multiplied

by 100%

8. Equals total liabilities divided by total assets and multiplied by 100%

9. Equals cash amount from operating activities divided by adjusted net profit

for the year

A FTERLE AR AMA - BEA100%

4Hi
ﬁaﬁ

SRS EZFRERAKA - BFEIA100%

ENEFABREEFFERIAZBREB R BAREER
B FH4 - B LA100%

ENEABRTEFFERAZBEB R RER S
FER) & - BAFRIA100%

ENRBDEEHRUBZRBNRDAE
ERRBEEREZFEBRABZRANRE ARG

SN EEEEEMRAMERERE - BRN100%

4

FRBERRERIABERRE - BEN100%

ENEREDER SR NERBFEFME

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

10

“We specialize in turning authentic Chinese gourmet into casual snack food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and
anytime. To fulfill our mission “to let the world fall in love with Chinese flavors”, we are committed to adhering to the
value of “being a consumer-centric and innovation-driven organization” and making authentic Chinese gourmet more
entertaining, casual, convenient and affordable that offer consumers a cheerful consumption experience.”

[BRAFER ST BERXRITERE RS AIREREDZANKRERA ° HARNDRFANINAEEERR ST L - RIAE
HEERAINEER  BTEERIRMREL - KhEL - Bl BRL]  KEEELEMIAERER  BR[EER
AAE LB | BED o |

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022



Chairman’s Statement /&R S5

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of WEILONG, | hereby submit to all shareholders the annual
results of the Group for the Current Year.

In 2022, an extraordinary year for WEILONG, the Group braved the
difficulties despite the impact of resurgence of COVID-19 in many
provinces in China on our production, supply chain, product delivery and
other aspects, and the continuous increase in the prices of raw materials
in the first half of the Current Year. In a challenging macroeconomic
environment, the Group persisted in its strategic direction, and actively
promoted the upgrading of brands, products, channels, supply chain,
talents and digitalization, and thus the overall business operation and
financial results remained relatively stable. The overall revenue of the
Group for the year was RMB4,632.2 million, representing a slight
decrease of 3.5% as compared with the Previous Year; gross profit
margin was 42.3%, representing an increase of 4.9 percentage points as
compared with 37.4% in the Previous Year, and the adjusted net profit
was RMB913.1 million, representing an increase of 0.6% as compared
with the Previous Year.

BHMHSAER

AANBRRIRABRRREAEBARNFEZFEE

=
i o

2022F MR IR KB REEAIABEN—F  FE
BPOAE - fEE  ERXNETEFEXIEA
ZEENDARBREBFITRBEEZENTE - RASEN
HERERNFE LY FRE LR - ARBIKALRHT
b ERARBHEBLERET  NREREBR
AR REHEERE - Em o RE - HER - AT
HFCETENTR  BROEBEL MUK EER
FIRYRE 25 AKEERRAZEARE4,632.2

BB BLFERMTERIY%  EEFXRA
423% @ B EFEWITABIRF T49EB D - &
FHEEFEEGARBIBAEE T BLFEELF
0.6% °

DRERSRIZRERAF
2022 F#f
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Chairman’s Statement /&R S5

In April 2022, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
People’s Republic of China issued the Industry Standards for Seasoned
Flour Products (QB/T 5729-2022), which was jointly drafted by the Group,
Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology and other academic
institutes and associations. In July 2022, the Group assisted Chinese
Institute of Food Science and Technology to hold a seminar on the
abovementioned industry standard, which provided guidance for the long-
term development of the industry. We expect that the leading enterprises
with higher operating standards in the industry will benefit from the
constantly improved industry standards and gain more market shares in
the future.

Meanwhile, with the opportunity from the publication of the industry
standard of seasoned flour products (commonly known as Latiao), the
Group also demonstrated the philosophy of credibility of WEILONG
products from raw materials, production, quality control, packaging and
other aspects through the program “CCTV.Com in the factory”, so as to
enhance the image of the Latiao industry among consumers. In addition,
the Group launched a series of brand marketing activities, such as the
Latiao Festival and the New Year’s Shopping Festival, to convey the
philosophy of “credibility” of the brand, so as to continuously enhance
the brand image and reputation of the Group.

In 2022, the Group continuously strengthened its research and
development, upgraded its main products and product packaging, and
focused on new formulas which were non-fried and did not contain
sodium cyclamate or trans-fatty acids. The Group introduced a new
nitrogen preservation technology, actively expanded the consumption
scenarios under the pandemic, and launched sharing packs suitable
for family and party scenarios. Meanwhile, the Group continuously
reviewed and enriched its product matrix around the strategy of “multiple
categories and large single product” to optimize the consumer experience.

In 2022, the Group continuously upgraded its channels. In terms of offline
businesses, the Group continuously strengthened its sales team, expanded
the coverage of retail points of sale, and improved the execution and
service ability of key channels and key stores; in terms of online business,
the Group continuously strengthened the coverage over all e-commerce
platforms and channels and refined operation; meanwhile, the Company
also actively expanded its overseas distribution network.

In 2022, the Group also actively introduced talents and continuously
strengthened its core management strength. Meanwhile, the Group also
continuously promoted supply chain upgrading, capacity expansion and
digital upgrading, so as to comprehensively improve the operation and
management efficiency of the Group.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022
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Chairman’s Statement E[E3RE

On December 15, 2022, the Company was listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, marking a major milestone in the history
of the Group.

Looking forward to the new year, with the relaxation of pandemic
prevention and control and the recovery of consumer confidence, the
Group is expected to gradually promote the recovery of consumption.
The Group will continuously strengthen the brand building, integrate
marketing resources and constantly build a brand image that is highly
sought-after among young consumers. The Group will continue to focus
on major product categories and develop new products, and strengthen
product quality and enhance product core competitiveness. The Group
will continue to expand its distribution network and improve the
coverage and service capabilities of retail points of sale. Meanwhile, we
will continuously enhance organizational team building, consolidate the
advantages of manufacturing, research and development capacity, and
continuously improve the Company’s operating efficiency, so as to create
values for shareholders and customers.

LIU Weiping
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, China
March 23, 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED AT

MACRO AND INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

In 2022, the Chinese consumer market was significantly disrupted
by the frequent and resurgent outbreaks of COVID-19, which not
only undermined the stable operation of the supply chain of the food
production industry but to some extent curbed the consumption of retail
end-consumers. Fortunately, as China effectively stabilized its economy
and adjusted and optimized its pandemic prevention policies, China’s
total retail sales of consumer goods in December 2022 saw a narrower
decline' and still recorded an annual economic growth of 3% in 2022.
The International Monetary Fund'’s (IMF) updated its World Economic
Outlook issued in January 2023 and significantly raised its forecast for
China’s economic growth in this year to 5.2%, from the forecast of 0.8%
in October last year, saying that with the optimization and adjustment
of China’s pandemic prevention policies and other factors, the Chinese
economy will recover better than expected? and its domestic consumption
and other economic activities will resume growth at a rapid pace.

China is one of the largest snack food markets in the world. According to
the Independent Industry Report, the market size of China’s snack food
industry in terms of retail sales value in 2021 was RMB825.1 billion, with
a CAGR of 6.1% from 2016 to 2021. Driven by increasing disposable
income, diversifying consumption occasions, continuous upgrade of
existing products, introduction of new products and improvement of retail
channels, the market size of China’s snack food industry is expected to
grow at a CAGR of 6.8% from 2021 to 2026 to reach RMB1,147.2 billion
in terms of retail sales value by 2026. Despite the adverse impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak on the industry in the past few years, China gradually
brought the pandemic under control and entered the post-pandemic era,
so that all production and trade industries will regain the growth pace and
the snack food market in China will usher in a broad growth space.

Among various flavors of snack food, spicy flavor is rooted in the culture
of authentic Chinese gourmet and has a long history. Due to the pleasure,
decompression and satisfaction brought by spicy flavor, spicy snack food
enjoys an increasing popularity among consumers and becomes the
fastest growing segment of the snack food industry with tremendous
development potential. According to the Independent Industry Report,
retail sales value of China’s spicy snack food industry is expected to grow
at a CAGR of 9.6% from 2021 to 2026 and reach RMB273.7 billion by
2026, while the percentage of spicy snack food in the China’s overall
snack food industry is expected to continue to grow.

' http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/sjjd/202301/t20230118_1892189.html
2 http:/finance.people.com.cn/BIG5/n1/2023/0202/c1004-32616365.html

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022
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' http:/Avww.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/sjjd/202301/t20230118_1892189.html
2 http:/Afinance.people.com.cn/BIG5/n1/2023/0202/c1004-32616365.html
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the Group continued to specialize in turning authentic Chinese
gourmet into casual snack food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and
anytime. To fulfill our mission of “being a consumer-centric organization”,
we continued to enhance research and development capabilities, deepen
existing product categories, expand product portfolio, strengthen brand
promotion and development, and integrate online and offline resources
and expand nationwide sales and distribution network to connect with
more consumers and to provide them easy access to our products.

As of the Current Year, our total revenue reached RMB4,632.2 million,
representing a slight decrease of approximately 3.5% compared with
RMB4,800.2 million in 2021. The Group's gross profit increased by 9.3%
from RMB1,793.0 million in 2021 to RMB1,959.6 million in 2022, and
gross profit margin increased from 37.4% in 2021 to 42.3% in 2022.
Profit before income tax decreased by 62.4% from RMB1,096.6 million
in 2021 to RMB412.4 million in 2022. The Group's net profit decreased
by 81.7% from RMB826.7 million in 2021 to RMB151.3 million in 2022,
adjusted net profit increased by 0.6% from RMB907.8 million in 2021 to
RMB913.1 million in 2022, and adjusted net profit margin increased from
18.9% in 2021 t0 19.7% in 2022.

OUR PRODUCTS

The Group is a leader and pioneer in the spicy snack food industry in
China. Leveraging rigorous and in-depth fundamental research and
advanced production techniques, the Group continued to expand our
product portfolio through years of research and development and
innovation to respond to changing market conditions and consumer
preferences quickly. The Group adhered to the strategy of “multiple
categories and large single product”, which covers seasoned flour
products, vegetable products and bean-based and other product
categories. Seasoned flour products, also commonly known as Latiao (¥
{&), primarily comprise Big Latiao (RZ&#f), Mini Latiao (/NEAR), Spicy Hot
Stick (fiER#E), Mini Hot Stick (/)\#k#E) and Kiss Burn (¥ KE). Vegetable
products primarily comprise Konjac Shuang (B4 %) and Fengchi Kelp (&
178%5). Bean-based and other products primarily comprise Soft Tofu Skin
(BLE ), 78° Braised Egg (78%8%) and meat products. In 2022, two of
our product categories each generated over RMB1 billion in annual retail
sales value, among which four products each generated over RMB0.5
billion in annual retail sales value.

£ 6

20225 - AEBERBEH NN B BEESERITERH
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Our revenue was primarily derived from the sales of seasoned flour — F{fIE9UA T EICRA FAK M 0 LR M HE
products and vegetable products. The following table sets forth a %8 o T XREHIMAFTREARE K FHLE RERIZI D B A
breakdown of our revenue by product categories for the periods  BE#H :
indicated:
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE
Product category EmER 2022 2021
202245 20214
% of total % of total
RMB’'000 revenue RMB'000 revenue
ARBTRT [(HBBA% ARBTT (1H8KA%
Seasoned flour products SRR S 2,718,613 58.7 2,918,039 60.8
— Premium packaging products —fERER 1,565,813 33.8 1,592,659 33.2
— Classic packaging products — A R E 1,152,800 24.9 1,325,380 27.6
Vegetable products it 1,693,339 36.6 1,664,120 34.7
Bean-based and other products 8m R EMER 220,269 4.7 218,041 4.5
Total A% 4,632,221 100.0 4,800,200 100.0
Revenue generated from our seasoned flour products decreased by ARELEHFINFAKMEE DTSR AR FEEHARE

6.8% from RMB2,918.0 million in 2021 to RMB2,718.6 million in 2022,
primarily due to (i) the impact on our production and delivery from the
COVID-19 resurgence; and (ii) the temporary impact on sales volume due
to the adjustment resulted from our recent product upgrade launched in
our major product categories with new packages, production techniques,
ingredients or specifications in the first half of 2022, which took time for
our customers to adapt to. Revenue from the sales of premium packaging
products, both in the absolute amount and as a percentage of total
revenue, was higher than that from the sales of classic packaging products
in 2022. Our revenue from our seasoned flour products as a percentage of
total revenue decreased from 60.8% in 2021 to 58.7% in 2022, reflecting
our more diversified product mix following the sales growth of our
vegetable products. Our revenue from our vegetable products increased
by 1.8% from RMB1,664.1 million in 2021 to RMB1,693.3 million in 2022
and its percentage to our total revenue increased from 34.7% in 2021 to
36.6% in 2022, as the market demand for such products increased and
we continued to expand our production capacity for such products in
2022.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by product
categories for the periods indicated:

TREFINARAERPIRERENE S
i

a0k ONG

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A3MBLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Seasoned flour products ton 150,557.5 193,598.6
RMB/kg 18.1 15.1
FRAE B A
AR¥ETT/ T3
Vegetable products ton 54,523.5 60,699.3
RMB/kg 31.1 27.4
FRE A
AR¥ETT/ T3
Bean-based and other products ton 6,087.4 7.212.7
RMB/kg 36.2 30.2
TEmREMER Mg
ANR¥ETT F52

Our sales volume of seasoned flour products and vegetable products
decreased from 2021 to 2022, mainly relating to: (i) the impact on our
production and delivery from the COVID-19 resurgence; and (ii) the
temporary impact on sales volume due to the adjustment resulted from
our recent product upgrade launched in our major product categories
with new packages, production techniques, ingredients or specifications
in the first half of 2022, which took time for our customers to adapt to.
Our sales volume of bean-based and other products decreased from 2021
to 2022, primarily due to (i) the impact on our production and delivery
from the COVID-19 resurgence; and (ii) our optimization of marketing
resource allocation which reduced marketing activities for certain of our
bean-based and other products.

OUR CUSTOMERS AND SALES CHANNELS

Customers of the Group are primarily offline and online distributors, and
to a much lesser extent, individual consumers who purchase from our
self-operated online stores. Through in-depth channel building over years,
we have a nationwide distribution network that deeply penetrates the
Chinese market. As of December 31, 2022, we cooperated with 1,847
offline distributors. In addition, as of December 31, 2022, our products
were sold through distributors to 143 national or regional operators for
hypermarkets, supermarkets and chained convenience stores.
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In the meantime, we established our presences in major e-commerce
platforms and actively expanded our online business as a complement to
our offline channels. Our online channel sales model includes online direct
sales and online distribution. In order to support the rapid development
of our online sales business, we have a dedicated e-commerce team that
analyzes online users and sales data to create a product mix that better
suits consumers consumption habits and to continuously improve our
online user engagement and back-end service capabilities.

The table below sets out a breakdown of our revenue by sales channels
for the periods indicated:

BPEEGREAEBH TS  BRARAR XS - &
BRI REVKENER - RANKR EREHEEAES
R EEEMR EEH - REEAREERNGLEE
X% BfBEAZEENENELN  BRUKLAPK
HEBEO - AIEERSHEEEHELTENERMA
& WAETRTT H MR LR P2 8E A R IR ik RS BE
5 o

TREFINFIR B FIZEERBEE D KA

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
% of total % of total
RMB’'000 revenue RMB'000 revenue
ARBTT MBEBRA% ARBTT (HEKA%
Offline channels* FTRERB 4,145,924 89.5 4,246,420 88.5
Online channels BRERE 486,297 10.5 553,780 11.5
— Online distribution® — KR A EHES 236,727 5.1 302,289 6.3
— Online direct sales® — iR E B 249,570 5.4 251,491 5.2
Total &5t 4,632,221 100.0 4,800,200 100.0

In 2022, our revenue from offline channels contributed a significant
portion of our total revenue, and our revenue from offline distributors was
partially offset by volume discounts and the co-advertising allowances paid
to our offline distributors. Our revenue from offline channels decreased by
2.4% from RMB4,246.4 million in 2021 to RMB4,145.9 million in 2022.
Revenue from online channels decreased by 12.2% from RMB553.8
million in 2021 to RMB486.3 million in 2022, of which our revenue from
online direct sales slightly decreased by 0.8% from RMB251.5 million in
2021 to RMB249.6 million in 2022 and revenue from online distribution
decreased by 21.7% from RMB302.3 million in 2021 to RMB236.7 million
in 2022, reflecting the temporary impact on our sales volume due to the
price adjustment.

4 Offline channels mainly include distribution through our offline distributors.
During the Reporting Period, our revenue generated from offline channels other
than offline distributors was immaterial.

> Online distribution refers to the sales model under which we distribute goods to
online retailers such as Tmall Supermarket and JD Supermarket, or other online
distributors, who then sell our products to consumers.

5 Online direct sales refer to the sales model under which we sell products directly
to consumers through our self-operated online stores on multiple third-party
online platforms, such as Tmall, JD.com, Pinduoduo, Douyin and Kuaishou.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022
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The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenue contribution as a
percentage of our total revenue from offline distributors by geographic
locations of the offline distributors’ registered offices during the periods
indicated:

TR AR BB IRAR A 85 O RE M = BE PR e
B0 AR TR SR A B BARA - LMETR I
WA B RS -

Year ended December 31,

BE12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARETT HEKA% AREBTT EHREKA%
Eastern China FEER 876,993 21.2 900,102 21.2
Central China #FErh 797,083 19.2 867,891 20.4
Northern China FAp 642,391 15.5 690,145 16.3
Southern China FER 692,216 16.7 708,449 16.7
Southwestern China R PR & 488,063 11.8 508,582 12.0
Northwestern China R PR iR 583,704 141 551,455 12.9
Overseas’ BN 65,474 1.5 19,796 0.5
Total = 4,145,924 100.0 4,246,420 100.0

We generated relatively balanced revenue from offline distributors in
different geographic areas in China. The geographic distribution of our
domestic revenue is generally in line with the economic development and
population of different regions in China. Revenue generated overseas
increased significantly in 2022 due to the initial penetration of our
business into overseas markets.

OUR PRODUCTION FACILITIES AND CAPACITIES

We strive for the advancement of our capabilities in production and
quality control. Most of our production lines have achieved automation,
and we have implemented strict monitoring of key parameters throughout
the production process. We have an electronic control and mechanical
design team of more than 25 members, engaged in the research and
development (“R&D") of automated production equipment and systems
based on our process requirements. Most of our automation equipment
is developed in-house. Meanwhile, we established partnerships with
equipment manufacturers to automate our production procedures and
upgrade our production facilities. As of December 31, 2022, we had 127
patents related to our production such as material supply, puffing, and
cutting.

7 Revenue contributed overseas is from offline distributors registered overseas.
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Through the automation and standardization of production lines, the
Group can effectively implement precise quality control and reduce labor
and energy costs. Meanwhile, to maximize production efficiency and
broaden our product portfolio, the Group also cooperates with reliable
OEM suppliers for the production of products that we sell in relatively
smaller amount.

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had five plants in Henan, namely
Luohe Pingping Plant, Luohe Weilai Plant, Zhumadian Weilai Plant, Luohe
Weidao Plant and Luohe Xinglin Plant, of which Luohe Xinglin Plant is
under construction and part of the production lines of the plant have
already been put into operation.

The tables below set out the details of our designed production capacities,
actual production volume, and utilization rates for the periods indicated,
by product types and by plants:

FREEGRNBBCNRELE  NEEEBETHA
BV ST MO D AT MEERAK A © RS - RERE
EREEANMERMREMNERES - REBEREA
SEHNOEMEER A FEERMHERTRENER °

HE2022F12A318 - AEELVEAHEERETL
R DRIAZRAEEIR  RAERIM - BEHEE
PRI SRARE TRESRABMIR - EFRAE
MIRIEERERR  Z LD ERDIRE °

TRESIHAAIR PR EEIRE BRI & TRREI 2 1R
FHEERE - BEREERERNAXS -

Year ended December 31,

BZ12831HLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214

Designed Actual Utilization  Designed Actual  Utilization
Product Segment EmAH Capacity Production Rate Capacity  Production Rate
RiTERE BREE ERRAXR RtEw BRES ERMNAX

(ton) (ton) (ton) (ton)

(1) (1) (W8) (W8)
Seasoned flour products RS R 242,422.3 138,447.0 57.1% 261,308.3 179,653.9 68.8%
Vegetable products PR 84,3920  54,357.0 64.4% 79,9920  60,599.3 75.8%
Bean-based and other products S5 & E i E R 3,257.0 2,609.0 80.1% 5,310.0 4,643.9 87.5%
Total Foh 330,071.3 195,413.0 59.2% 346,610.3 244,897.1 70.7%

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022
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In 2022, our designed production capacity for seasoned flour products
decreased, primarily due to the upgrade of our key production equipment
and the adjustment of some production line planning. Our designed
production capacity for vegetable products increased, primarily due to the
addition of new production lines in Xinglin Plant. Our designed production
capacity for bean-based and other products decreased, primarily due to
our cooperation with OEM suppliers for certain bean-based products to
improve our overall production efficiency. Our utilization rate decreased
compared with the Previous Year, primarily attributable to the temporary
impact on sales volume due to the implementation of our price
adjustment strategy.

AEERMARERMORETERBI N TR
HREMHNEZEEREBERARBY ERREHE
B RREMORETEN L T 2R BMIEMNTRUE
MTHFHER SHBEETEMNRTER &
ZEANEMEE T IRROEMEEEAE - RS
BAIRBEEERE - HMINELNBARR L FREE
K TERRARMERARKRENERSKNHE
ERENTE -

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214

Designed Actual Utilization  Designed Actual  Utilization
Production Plants EETR Capacity Production Rate Capacity  Production Rate
RiER BEREE ERNAE KiTERE BEREE ERMAX

(ton) (ton) (ton) (ton)

(1) (1) ) (W8)
Luohe Pingping Plant YR TR 107,244.7 60,011.3 56.0% 113,484.5 86,365.5 76.1%
Luohe Weilai Plant YRR R TR 57,647.3 37,1144 64.4% 64,0347 38,2809 59.8%
Zhumadian Weilai Plant BLRS IE BT R TR 57,665.0 23,020.3 39.9% 70,848.6 55,386.5 78.2%
Luohe Weidao Plant SRR AR TR 96,204.5 65,073.1 67.6% 98,2425 64,864.2 66.0%
Luohe Xinglin Plant R B LR 11,309.8 10,193.9 90.1% - - -
Total F e 330,071.3 195,413.0 59.2% 346,610.3 244,897.1 70.7%

Other than Luohe Xinglin Plant, the annualized designed capacity of
our Luohe Pingping Plant, Luohe Weilai Plant, Zhumadian Weilai Plant
and Luohe Weidao Plant decreased in 2022, mainly relating to (i) the
shift of some production lines to Xinglin Plant with higher efficiency; (ii)
the adjustment of some product specifications; and (iii) the structural
adjustment of some products. Our utilization rate decreased compared
with 2021, primarily attributable to the temporary impact on sales volume
due to the implementation of our price adjustment strategy.
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OUR FOOD SAFETY AND QUALITY CONTROL

We are a leading snack food company in China, and food safety and
quality control are our top priority. Our food safety and quality assurance
system cover the entire production process of our products, including
steps from procurement, production, storage, distribution to sales. The
raw materials and products are tracked by the Group in order to meet
customers’ requirements and the corresponding legal and regulatory
requirements. We set up control points for food safety and quality control
in every segment throughout the production process and carefully track
and inspect our formulas, raw materials, food additives, and production
processes. In order to provide consumers with quality products, the
Group established a quality management center which is responsible for
food safety management, raw and packaging materials management,
production process management and customer service management, as
well as food safety and quality assurance systems.

OUR RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CAPABILITIES
We adhered to our product development philosophy of “maximizing
the intrinsic value of nature with an industrialized approach”. In order
to constantly enhance the competitiveness of our products, the Group
has been focusing on upgrading and iteration of products, introducing
innovative flavors and improving our raw materials. In particular, our R&D
model which integrates different teams forms the core of our product
development. We built R&D teams in food technology, industrialized
production techniques and packaging and preservation technology,
pairing technical talents with them to conduct in-depth specialized
research. Through close collaboration among teams, we integrate the
technologies in each module across multiple product development phases,
which significantly improves the success rates of the Group’s existing
product upgrade and new product launch.

Meanwhile, the Group shares a long-term cooperative relationship with
Jiangnan University, a well-known university in the food science industry
in China, with which we jointly established a laboratory of food science
and technology and developed our talent reserves, to strengthen our edge
in product and technology R&D. As of December 31, 2022, the Group
have established two application research and development centers, one
in Henan and the other in Shanghai, and had a professional research and
development team of 75 employees, and approximately 62.7% of whom
have postgraduate degrees, with specialties covering food engineering,
food safety and nutrition, polymer chemistry, biology, inspection
and testing and other fields. Relying on in a variety of research and
development activities, we invested in upgrades, renovation and research
and development of emerging technologies to meet ever-changing
consumer preferences and promote the sustainable growth of sales.
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OUR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

2020 marks the first year of WEILONG's digital transformation. Over
the past two years, the Group continued to strengthen WEILONG's
digital strategy and promote digitalization-related work to improve
the quality and efficiency of our business departments. Leveraging
information technology, the Group effectively monitored and optimized
our management system, sales, production and other processes in
2022. The Group's information system is based on our four major
types of infrastructure, including laaS/PaaS system, three-tier network
architecture, data center and hybrid cloud. In addition, we realized a
series of functions such as product operation and data management
through the complementary application of the ERP system, proprietary
sales management system, item-specific serial code information system,
automated warehousing recording system, supplier relationship
management system, enterprise asset management system, Industrial
Internet of Things, piece-wage system, OA process approval system,
contract management system, and expense control and reimbursement
system.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following financial results are extracted from the financial report of
the Group prepared in accordance with the IFRS during the Reporting
Period:

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB4,632.2 million in the Current
Year, representing a slight decrease of 3.5% as compared with
RMB4,800.2 million in the Previous Year, primarily due to (i) the impact
on our production and delivery from the COVID-19 resurgence; and (ii)
the temporary impact on sales volume due to the adjustment resulted
from the Group's recent product upgrade launched in our major product
categories with new packages, production techniques, ingredients or
specifications in the first half of the Current Year, which took time for the
Group's customers to adapt to.

Gross profit of the Group increased by RMB166.6 million from
RMB1,793.0 million in the Previous Year to RMB1,959.6 million in the
Current Year. Gross profit margin of the Group increased from 37.4%
in the Previous Year to 42.3% in the Current Year primarily due to the
increase in the average selling prices of the Group's products.
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Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses of the Group increased by 21.6%
from RMB520.6 million in the Previous Year to RMB633.3 million in the
Current Year, mainly due to (i) an increase in promotion and advertising
expenses from RMB78.7 million in the Previous Year to RMB139.3
million in the Current Year as a result of the increased advertisements
placements in outdoor media and online advertising activities, such as live
streaming, carried out on e-commerce platforms as well as other online
media platforms; (ii) an increase in the employee benefit expenses from
RMB220.5 million in the Previous Year to RMB248.7 million (including
share-based payment of approximately RMB17.4 million) in the Current
Year, primarily due to the continuous expansion of the sales team of the
Group; and (iii) an increase in professional fees.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 34.1% from
RMB359.1 million in the Previous Year to RMB481.7 million in the Current
Year, mainly due to an increase in employee benefit expenses and an
increase in depreciation and amortization.

Other Income, Net

Other net income of the Group decreased from RMB152.7 million in the
Previous Year to RMB107.6 million in the Current Year, primarily due to
the decrease in government subsidy.

Other (Losses)/Gains, Net

The Group recorded RMB597.7 million in other losses in the Current
Year compared to RMB11.7 million in other gains in the Previous Year,
primarily due to the share-based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments
in relation to the supplemental share purchase agreement in April 2022 of
RMB628.8 million.

Finance Income, Net

Net finance income of the Group increased significantly from RMB19.2
million in the Previous Year to RMB57.7 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to an increase in interests from bank.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expenses of the Group decreased from RMB269.9 million in
the Previous Year to RMB261.1 million in the Current Year, which was in
line with a decrease of the taxable income of the Group in the Current
Year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the period of the Group decreased
from RMB826.7 million in the Previous Year to RMB151.3 million in the
Current Year, primarily due to the share-based payments related to Pre-
IPO Investments, partially offset by the increase in gross profit of the
Group.

Adjusted Net Profit (Non-IFRS Measure) and Adjusted Net
Profit Margin (Non-IFRS Measure) for the Year

To supplement the Group’s consolidated financial statements that are
presented in accordance with IFRS, the Group also use adjusted net
profit (Non-IFRS measure) as an additional financial measure, which is not
required by, or presented in accordance with IFRS. The Group believes that
this non-IFRS measure facilitates comparisons of operating performance
from period to period and company to company by eliminating
potential impact of items that our management does not consider to be
indicative of the Group’s operating performance. The Group believes
that this measure provides useful information to investors and others
in understanding and evaluating the Group’s consolidated results of
operations in the same manner as it helped the Group’s management.
However, the Group’s presentation of adjusted net profit (Non-IFRS
measure) may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by
other companies. The use of this non-IFRS measure has limitations as an
analytical tool, and the investors should not consider it in isolation from,
or as a substitute for analysis of, the Group's results of operations or
financial conditions as reported under IFRS.
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The Group defines adjusted net profit (Non-IFRS measure) as net profit
for the year adjusted by adding back share-based payment expenses
and Listing expenses. The following table reconciles our adjusted net
profit (Non-IFRS measure) for the years presented to the most directly
comparable financial measures calculated and presented in accordance
with IFRS, which is net profit for the years:

AEEBEARFNECKERMBHREERDTE)
FEF BB INE AR RER MR R EHRX
HEENFNFMNE - TRERBKBEBRM KRS E
AN ENFERFNEETHE  ERRERATLH
M ETN - BAEHBNFRENEGKEERE
BRELEADE)

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLFE
2022 2021
202245 20214
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AR%TF ) (AR#EFT)
Reconciliation of net profit to adjusted % F;E SR K HRFE R (3
net profit (Non-IFRS measure) (EPRET SR 5 QT B) A&
Profit for the year FERHHE 151,297 826,729
Add: o
Share-based payment to employees” A& 8 ST R AR AR Y 3REMO 98,133 50,519
Listing expenses? EFHrZe 34,852 30,502
Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO HERAFRBEEAREBBIIA
Investments® &t REROHRS 628,811 -
Adjusted net profit RREFRE
(Non-IFRS measure) (BB B mEER DT E) 913,093 907,750

Notes:

(1) Share-based payment to employees, which is non-cash in nature mainly
represents the arrangement that the Group receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments of the Group.

(2)  Listing expenses mainly relate to the Initial Public Offering.

(3) Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments refer to the
supplemental agreement of share purchase agreement the Company
entered into with certain Pre-IPO investors, pursuant to which the Company
issued and sold to these investors a total number of 157,626,890 ordinary
shares, at a par value of US$0.00001 of each share, for a consideration of
US$1,576.2689 in April 2022.

Adjusted net profit (Non-IFRS measure) of the Group for the year increased
by 0.6% from RMB907.8 million in the Previous Year to RMB913.1 million
in the Current Year, primarily as the result of an increase in gross profit
of the Group and adjusted net profit margin (Non-IFRS measure) of the
Group increased from 18.9% to 19.7%, for the respective years, primarily
in relation to the increase in the average selling price of the Group's
products.
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Dividends

Based on the Group’s overall performance, having accounted for,
including but not limited to, surplus, overall financial conditions, capital
expenditures of the Group in the Current Year, the Board will propose
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to declare
a final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of RMBO0.12 per share as of the
end of Current Year (inclusive of tax, amounting to a total Final Dividend
of approximately RMB273.9 million), representing approximately 30%
of the adjusted net profit of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2022. Besides, in order to thank investors for the support and trust
in the Initial Public Offering of the Company, the Board will propose to
declare a special dividend (the “Special Dividend”) of RMBO0.12 per share
(inclusive of tax, amounting to a total Special Dividend of approximately
RMB273.9 million), representing approximately 30% of the adjusted net
profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022. However, the
implementation is subject to the approval of the annual general meeting.
The dividend is expected to be paid on or about June 30, 2023.

Term Deposits with Initial Term over Three Months,
Restricted Cash, Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Borrowings

As of the end of Current Year, the sum of term deposits with initial term
over three months, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB3,939.3 million, representing an increase of
77.8% as compared with RMB2,215.2 million as of the end of Previous
Year, mainly attributable to the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering
in December of Current Year and cash generated from operating activities
during the Current Year. Borrowings of the Group were RMB460.1 million
and RMB161.3 million as of the end of Previous Year and Current Year,
respectively. Borrowings of the Group were primarily secured bank loans
which the Group obtain for the construction of plants and other operating
needs.

Inventories

Inventories of the Group decreased by 0.8% from RMB604.3 million as
of the end of Previous Year to RMB599.3 million as of the end of Current
Year. Inventory turnover days of the Group increased from 70 days in
the Previous Year to 82 days in the Current Year, primarily due to the
increased reserve of finished goods before the Chinese New Year in mid
January 2023.

iR E

ERAEEAFEERENRE  EEAEERY
BEPISHRN UREASTHSE  EFEBRARA
BRI ZREBFASPERREHELAFER
REABR S ([HRERE D BRARKE12T(EH -
STREIR B ARKE2739BE L) AKREEE
F2022F 12 A3 B IEFELFHEFAHEN30% - I
BETEHBREANERRARERARBEPLETHL
BEEF ZREEFRE(THFARE])FB/RA
R¥E0.1270 (B - R FRIRENARK27398E
TT) A AAREBEF2022612 A31 B IEEEL AR
FRER30% c EERRRBEFAGHER ST E
6 o FERTIRT AL S B HIA2023%F6 A30A kA& °

NHHRAB=EA U LNEREFR - ZRH
Be  BERREFEYRER

HEAFER  AEBNVRERA=BEANENTE
HMEH - ZRERe MR MRS EDREAAR
#3,9393B &L BREFERHARYE2215288
TCIEINT7.8% + EFEHRAFENRAMNE A ARES
EEECURKETHEEANESRA - HELFE
RKEAFER REBNEZRS A ABARK46018
BLRARKIGI3EEL - AEENEREEAR
SEREERE R ELE T RKMESNBERRT
B o

7E
AEENGFEH EFERHARKE43IBEETLHD
08%EARFEAMAREKESIIEET - AEEWNTTF
EREEHE LFENTORBEAFENS2A T2
EMMR2023F 1 AR B AT - REEEINT KR
i -

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f

27



28

Management Discussion and Analysis & I & 5 5m B2 547

Trade, Other Receivables and Prepayments

Trade receivables of the Group increased from RMB56.1 million as of the
end of Previous Year to RMB66.4 million as of the end of Current Year.
The turnover days of trade receivables increased from 3.7 days in the
Previous Year to 4.9 days in the Current Year.

Other receivables of the Group increased from RMB13.8 million as of the
end of Previous Year to RMB62.4 million as of the end of Current Year,
primarily due to the increase in receivables from local government.

Prepayments of the Group decreased from RMB249.1 million as of the
end of Previous Year to RMB111.2 million as of the end of Current Year,
primarily due to decrease in input VAT recoverable.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group decreased
by 52.3% from RMB802.1 million as of the end of Previous Year to
RMB382.4 million as of the end of Current Year, because the Group
strategically decreased our investment in wealth management and
structured deposits products in anticipation of a decrease in return rates
of such products.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables of the Group decreased by 5.4% from RMB197.9 million as
of the end of Previous Year to RMB187.3 million as of the end of Current
Year, primarily due to a decrease in payables for purchasing raw materials
and packaging materials. The turnover days of trade payables increased
from 21 days in the Previous Year to 26 days in the Current Year.

Other payables of the Group increased by 26.9% from RMB396.0 million
as of the end of Previous Year to RMB502.5 million as of the end of
Current Year, primarily attributable to (i) an increase in salary and welfare
payables of the Group; and (ii) an increase in deposits payables primarily
referring to deposits from the Group’s distributors.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities of the Group increased by 24.7% from RMB180.6
million as of the end of Previous Year to RMB225.3 million as of the end
of Current Year, primarily because the distributors placed more orders
with the Group at the end of Current Year in anticipation of the Chinese
New Year in mid January 2023.

Gearing Ratio

As of the end of Current Year, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is
calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings divided by total equity, was
2.9%, as compared with 12.5% as of the end of Previous Year.
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Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach for its
treasury policy to ensure that the Group’s liquidity structure comprising
assets, liabilities and other commitments is able to always meet its capital
requirements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions settled
in RMB. The functional currency of the subsidiaries in mainland is RMB,
while the functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries outside
mainland of China is HKD or USD. Both the entities in and outside
mainland of China have assets and liabilities, like cash at bank and other
major licensed payment institutions, restricted cash, term deposits with
initial term over three months which are denominated in USD and HKD.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the fluctuations in exchange rates.
The Group has continued to closely track and manage its exposure to
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates confronted by the majority of the
Group's deposits denominated in foreign currencies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As of the end of Previous Year and Current Year, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of the end of Current Year, the Group had capital commitments for
the construction of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB79.5 million (Previous Year: RMB141.7 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As of the end of Current Year, the Group has pledged certain land use
rights amounting to RMB93.8 million (Previous Year: RMB68.7 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION
AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any significant investments held, or any material
acquisition or disposal of any relevant subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the Reporting Period.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

As of the Latest Practicable Date, save for the “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any
existing plans for acquiring other material investments or capital assets.
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GOING CONCERN

On the basis of current financial projections and financing available,
the Group has adequate financial resources to continue its operation in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out primarily in the PRC, while the
shares of the Company are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
businesses operated by the Group are mainly subject to the laws of PRC
and Hong Kong and other relevant jurisdictions. During the year ended
December 31, 2022 and as of the Latest Practicable Date, the Group
has complied with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impacts on the Group in the applicable jurisdictions. Specifically, as a
manufacturer of casual snack food, the Group’s operations are subject
to the applicable food production, sale and safety laws and regulations,
applicable consumer protection laws and regulations and competition
law, and applicable environmental protection laws and regulations. In the
Current Year, the Group did not have any material non-compliance with
such laws and regulations.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at December 31, 2022, the total number of employees of the Group
was 6,307, and the total annual employee benefits (including Directors’
remuneration) amounted to RMB853.0 million. We always believe that the
Group's long-term growth depends on the expertise and capability of our
employees. We proactively optimize the talent selection and cultivation
system in order to improve the general competitiveness of our employees
and their sense of belongings to the Group.

The remuneration and benefits for employees of the Group are
determined with reference to the market standards as well as individual
qualification and capability, and performance bonus and other incentive
systems are established. Performance bonuses are paid based on the
Group's revenue and profit targets, as well as the performance of the
organization in which the employee works and the performance of
the individual employee, and to recognize and encourage outstanding
contributions made by organizations and employees to the Group’s
business. Our overall remuneration policy is competitive.

In order to incentivize and reward our Directors, members of senior
management and other employees who have contributed to the
development of the Group, the restricted share unit scheme was approved
and adopted by the Board on January 1, 2021 (the “Date of Adoption”).
The RSU Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period of ten (10)
years commencing on the Date of Adoption.
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For details of the Employee Incentive Scheme, please refer to the
Prospectus of the Company dated December 5, 2022 published on the
website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
website of the Company (www.weilongshipin.com).

The details of the incentive shares granted to the employees under the
grant proposal can be referred to the Employee Incentive Scheme under
the section of Report of the Directors.

OUTLOOK

In line with the mission “to let the world fall in love with Chinese
flavors”, the value of “being a consumer-centric and innovation-driven
organization”, and the vision to “make authentic Chinese gourmet
more entertaining, casual, convenient and affordable, embrace digital-
intelligentization and ultimately build a great business that brings joy and
happiness to people for 123 years”, we continue to become a leading
consumer-centric company in the spicy snack food industry. Looking
forward to the future, the Group will continue to expand product
categories and improve product quality to enhance the core competency
of our products; continue to be devoted to brand building and enhance
user engagement through entertaining brand marketing activities for
young consumers and in-depth online content marketing; and spare no
effort in increasing the breadth and depth of our distribution network
based on our existing omni-channel distribution network, and promote
the establishment of emerging online cooperation channels and overseas
distribution networks through expanding our extensive geographical
presence, so as to further optimize the distribution channels and enhance
related management capabilities.

Meantime, in order to achieve our goal of “interconnection and digital-
intelligentization of all business processes”, the Group will continue to
implement the digital-intelligentization of our business to further enhance
our overall operating efficiency. Finally, we will strive to enhance our
manufacturing capability and R&D capabilities to maintain our leading
market position, and to improve our brand image and build a mechanism
to rapidly respond to the market demand. The Group will leverage our
position as a Listing company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and capitalize on the unique financial resources of the Hong
Kong international capital market to empower the development of the
Group in the Chinese mainland and overseas markets and embark on a
broader development journey in the future. The Group will continue to
seek for changes and firmly forge ahead to create more contributions for
our customers, shareholders, investors, employees and the society.
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DIVIDEND

Relevant resolution has been passed at a meeting of the Board held
on March 23, 2023, and the Board proposed the distribution of a
Final Dividend of RMBO0.12 (tax inclusive) per share for the year ended
December 31, 2022, with a total amount of approximately RMB273.9
million, and a Special Dividend of RMBO.12 (tax inclusive) per share, with a
total amount of approximately RMB273.9 million. The distribution of such
Final Dividend and Special Dividend is subject to approval by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting. The dividend is expected
to be paid on or about June 30, 2023.

The Company will not be liable for any claim or dispute over the
withholding mechanism arising from any delay in, or inaccurate
determination of the status of the shareholders. The Board is not aware of
any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We may distribute dividends by way of cash or by other means that our
Board considers appropriate. Distribution of dividends is subject to the
discretion of our Board and, if necessary, the approval of our shareholders.
Our Board may recommend a distribution of dividends in the future
after taking into account our results of operations, financial conditions,
operating requirements, capital requirements, shareholders’ interests and
any other conditions that our Board may deem relevant.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, our dividend policy is to
distribute to our shareholders no less than 25% of our distributable
profits for any particular year after the Listing. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to distribute dividends of the above amount or any
amount, or at all, in any year. The declaration and payment of dividends
may also be limited by legal restrictions and by loan or other agreements
that the Company and our subsidiaries have entered into or may enter
into in the future. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount
of dividends will be subject to our constitutional documents and the
Cayman Companies Act. We are a holding company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. As a result, the payment and amount of
any future dividends will depend on the availability of dividends received
from our subsidiaries and other reserves lawfully available for distribution.
Our shareholders may approve any declaration of dividends in a general
meeting, which must not exceed the amount recommended by our Board.
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of our profits and
reserves lawfully available for distribution.

SUBSEQUENT SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any material event requiring disclosure, that
has taken place subsequent to December 31, 2022 and up to the Latest
Practicable Date.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company attaches great importance to corporate governance,
especially the establishment of a diligent and conscientious Board of
Directors, and a sound risk management and internal control system. The
Company believes that this is very important for its development and the
protection of the interests of its shareholders. The Company has adopted
good governance and disclosure practices, and will continuously optimize
and improve the practices, and gradually establish a corporate culture
with high integrity.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to the best practices in corporate governance,
and had complied with all the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code of the Company from the Listing Date to December 31,
2022.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and management of the
Company and is primarily responsible for formulating the overall strategy
of the Company, setting performance and management objectives,
evaluating business performance and monitoring management
performance. The Board assumes the responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the
business of the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs. All
the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

a) Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and disposal of significant assets

b)  Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan
¢)  Supervise the management of the Company
d)  Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management accounts and updates to the Board for the management
report, provide detailed data on the Company’s performance, financial
position and prospects, supported by the most up-to-date financial data,
combined with an easy and comprehensive assessment, in order to ensure
the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information and
may take independent professional advice if necessary.
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The authorization granted by the Group’s Board to the management
mainly includes:

a) Decision-making rights of daily production, management and
operations (including purchasing raw materials, selling goods and
other transactions related to daily operations);

b) To implement annual production plans, investment plans, financial
budget and final accounts plans and capital expenditure matters
within the scope approved by the general meeting of shareholders
and the Board;

¢)  Appointment or dismissal of employees such as heads of various
departments and branches of the Company and other employees
excluding those who should be appointed or dismissed by the Board;

d)  Other matters authorized by the Articles of Association or the Board.

As for the matters that should be decided by the Board according to
laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, as
well as the matters that need to be decided by the Board, such as major
decisions, important personnel appointment and removal, key projects
arrangement and major capital operations, as well as the matters that
need to be decided by the general meeting of shareholders, shall not be
granted to the management to execute. The management shall faithfully
and diligently perform their duties in strict accordance with the scope
authorized by the Board.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
Directors to buy and sell the Company’s securities.

After making specific inquiries to all Directors, they confirmed that they
complied with the provisions of the Model Code from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2022.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Board and
independence in decision-making.

The Board of the Company comprises nine Directors, including six
executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman), Mr. LIU Fuping,
Mr. SUN Yinong, Mr. PENG Hongzhi, Mr. LIU Zhongsi and Mr. CHEN
Lin, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili,
Mr. ZHANG Bihong and Ms. XING Dongmei. The Board is required to
review periodically the contribution of the Directors in discharging their
responsibilities to the Company and whether they have devoted sufficient
time to discharge their responsibilities to the Company.

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship among the Board
members are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for the Current Year relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
and at least one independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the members of the Board
must be appointed as independent non-executive directors. As each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company considers them
to be independent.

There are no financial and business relationships among the members of
the Board, except as disclosed in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report.
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INSURANCES FOR DIRECTORS
The Company has made appropriate insurance arrangements with regard
to any legal proceedings against its Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
separated and held by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
is Mr. LIU Weiping and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr.
SUN Yinong (both are the executive Directors of the Company).

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted the Board diversity policy, which sets forth the means
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. Under the Board diversity
policy, candidates for the Board will be selected based on a number of
diversity indicators, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, industry experience, technical ability,
professional qualifications and skills, knowledge, length of service and
other relevant factors. We will also consider our own business model and
special needs. The final selection of Director candidates will be based on
the value and contribution that the candidates will bring to the Board.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprises professionals
from different professional backgrounds in economics, finance,
accounting, law and management with different gender, age stages and
industry experience, which provide favorable support and protection to
ensure the good functioning of the Board. Meanwhile, there are two
female members on the Board of Directors, accounting for 22.22% of
the total number of Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors
complies with the provisions of the Listing Rules on the gender diversity
of Board members and the Company’s Board diversity policy. So the
Board does not make any measurable objectives. The Company values the
importance and benefits of gender diversity of Board members, and the
Board diversity policy of the Company can ensure that the Board will have
potential alternative successors to continue the existing gender diversity of
the Board.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
diversity policy from time to time to ensure its ongoing effectiveness and
we will disclose the implementation of the Board diversity policy annually
in our Corporate Governance Report.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

As at December 31, 2022, the proportion of the Company’s male and
female employees (including executive Directors and senior management)
was 42.02% and 57.98%, respectively, therefore, the Company’s
employees (including executive Directors and senior management) has
achieved gender diversity. The Company will continue to consider the
view of diversity when hiring, which includes gender diversity.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
with its written terms of reference as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

¢) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

d) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board made a lot of efforts in improving the
corporate governance system of the Company and enhancing the
corporate governance standards, including developing and amending
relevant internal management rules in accordance with the requirements
of relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules as amended from
time to time, as well as the practice of the Company; monitoring and
organizing corresponding training courses for Directors and company
secretaries; regularly reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
domestic and overseas regulatory requirements and its implementation of
various internal corporate governance rules and policies, and reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. We will periodically
review and improve our corporate governance practices with reference to
the latest corporate governance developments.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for the Directors. The office of the Board has provided all Directors with
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to them,
duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Company. They have
also made timely updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance all Directors’ awareness of good corporate governance
practices. The Company has mechanisms in place to allow the Directors
of the Company to seek independent professional advice in the discharge
of their duties and responsibilities to ensure that the Board has access
to independent views and opinions. The Board adopted a policy on
the seeking of independent professional advice by Directors on March
23, 2023 and will review the implementation status and effectiveness
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of these mechanisms on an annual basis. The Directors confirmed that 4%
they have complied with Code Provision C.1.4 under Section Il of the
Corporate Governance Code on Directors’ training. During the Year, all
of the Directors have participated in training courses or reading materials
on corporate governance and related topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided relevant records of training to the
Company.
Training
participated in
(Note)
Name of Directors EEMR Fr2 B (M)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LIU Weiping BIETRE ab.c
Mr. LIU Fuping 2B T hE ab.c
Mr. SUN Yinong BRINEIE ab.c
Mr. PENG Hongzhi CRERE ab.c
Mr. LIU Zhongsi B RBAEAE a.b.c
Mr. CHEN Lin PRARSE A4 ab.c
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Ms. XU Lil BB+ ab.c
Mr. ZHANG Bihong sR3FasA A ab.c
Ms. XING Dongmei IS TR a.b.c
Notes: F3E -
a:  Law firm training a: EREEETEEI
b:  Internal training and/or seminars and/or conferences and/or forums b: REIFINRHAER S REHER L RIE
¢ Reading or watching documents or information regarding Directors’ c¢: RIESEBEESEEL HOEEAMNEMIAERE

responsibilities and/or corporate governance and other related topics
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POSITIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Company’s business, investment and strategic
decisions, maintaining an effective risk management and internal control
system of the Company and monitoring the performance of the Company.
The Board currently has three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each
Committee has its own terms of reference and reports to the Board on a
regular basis.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company held a Board
meeting and a general meeting. From the Listing Date to the date of the
annual report, a Board meeting was held. From the Listing Date to the
date of the annual report, the Company did not convene any general
meeting.

As the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
December 15, 2022, the code provisions on the number of Board
meetings did not apply to the Company for the year ended December 31,
2022. From January 1, 2023, the Company will fully comply with Code
Provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules (which came into effect on January 1, 2022), and
hold at least four Board meetings every year or approximately one Board
meeting every quarter.

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings and general meetings for
the Year is as follows:
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According to the Corporate Governance Code, the Chairman shall hold
at least one meeting with independent non-executive Directors every year
without the attendance of other Directors. As the Company was listed on
December 15, 2022, there was no meeting between the Chairman and
the independent non-executive Directors for the year ended December
31, 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As of December 31, 2022 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit
Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Bihong, Ms. XU Lili and Ms. XING Dongmei.
Mr. ZHANG Bihong currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

a)  to review significant financial policies of the Company and their
implementation, and supervise the financial activities of the
Company;

b)  to review the financial information and relevant disclosures of the
Company;

) to consider and approve the risk management and internal control
evaluation proposal of the Company, and supervise and evaluate the
risk management and internal control of the Company;

d) to consider and approve the audit budget, remuneration of staff
and appointment and dismissal of major officers of the Company,
supervise and evaluate the work of internal audit of the Company
and formulate the medium- to long-term audit plan, annual working
plan and internal audit system setting plan of the Company as
authorized by the Board, and report to the Board;

e) to propose the appointment or dismissal of an external accounting
firm, supervise the work of the external accounting firm, and
evaluate the report of the external accounting firm to ensure that
the external accounting firm undertakes its audit responsibilities;

f)  to facilitate communications and monitor the relationship between
the internal audit department and the external accounting firm;

g) to monitor the non-compliance of the Company in respect of the
financial reports and the risk management and internal control; and

h)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by
the Board.
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The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the Audit Committee
shall at least meet twice a year. As the Company was listed on December
15, 2022, the Audit Committee did not hold meetings for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the annual result announcement of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2022 and believes that the Company has complied with
all applicable accounting standards and regulations and made sufficient
disclosures. The Audit Committee has reviewed all material internal control
rules, including the financial and operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management of the Company in 2022. The Audit Committee
was satisfied with the effectiveness and sufficiency of the internal control
mechanism in its operations. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
adequacy of the Company’s resources, staff qualifications and experience
in the accounting and financial reporting function and the training
programmes and budgets received by its staff.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration of the auditors for
2022 and recommended the Board to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong, as the auditors of the Company
for 2023, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As of December 31, 2022 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Nomination Committee of the Company comprises the Chairman of the
Board and executive Director (Mr. LIU Weiping) and two independent
non-executive Directors (Ms. XU Lili and Mr. ZHANG Bihong). Mr. LIU
Weiping currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

a) to formulate procedures and standards for the election of Directors
and senior management and make recommendations to the Board
on the proposed procedures and standards;

b) to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination of
candidates for Directors, Presidents and secretary of the Board;

c) to preliminarily examine the eligibility of candidates for Directors and
senior management;

d) to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination of
candidates for chairmen and members of the Board committees; and

(EERTINRT  BRZECRELSFRITH
REH - ARARFN202212 41584 £ @ &
HE2022F12A318LFE - ERZEE8ERBRT
'/ o

HEREWTHE BEXZESEEHNARAEE
202F12A31BIEFENEFEERE  URAR
ARBETHEEAZEHREMBRE - WiHExD
R BRLZEQEHEEEARNESEETE
B BREARFNR2022F 207 - BERERERENK
[ER B IR AL + T B VE AR A PR B0 ES A I ) B ARURN
RHRERIRE - ANEZEZECRHARAES
IR BERBETENER BIEBEMERHIAR
HETHESNEIREREHEBE I ESE EMiE
e -

EREZECDEH022FZEMER  YRNESSE
FREEREFKBESIRMEHAM(EANESM A
N RI2023F EAXERED - AR R BN TR FE
BB ARG A - FRMEE o

REEE"
HZE2022F12A31H EEAITTEE - ARFHIRA
ZECHESREWTEZ(MRABETFAE) RMEE
SR ITE (AR T KR Mok o A ) 486K © £
BFEEEMETIERZESER - REZEGNE
ZRENOT :

a) HIEEREERSREBENETREE - Wt
BERFMBEREEGRIES

b) HELEF RANEFENERRAAEFE
SR
0 NSEEEERERTREREAEN,

o REAEFREEEIBRAAREAAEFRE
SR

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f

41



42

Corporate Governance Report ¥ E A&

e)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by
the Board.

The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the Nomination
Committee shall meet at least once a year. As the Company was listed on
December 15, 2022, the Nomination Committee did not hold meetings
for the year ended December 31, 2022.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authorities for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy, which sets out
the Company’s criteria, procedures and processes for the nomination
and appointment of Directors, as well as relevant considerations for the
check and review of the composition of the Board. The aim is to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diverse
perspectives to meet the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Director nomination policy sets out the factors used to assess
candidates for the proposed appointment of Directors and the re-

appointment of retired Directors, including but not limited to:

a) To evaluate, screen and recommend Director candidates to the
Board

Reputation for character and integrity;

ii.  Achievements, experience and other professional qualifications
in relevant industries involved in the Company's business;

ii.  Available time and related benefits to be invested in the duties
implementation of the Board;

iv.  Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and years of service;

v.  The potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the
Board; and

vi.  Plans for Board succession in order.
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To assess and recommend to the Board the re-appointment of one
or more retiring Directors

The overall contributions and service of the retiring Director
to the Company, including but not limited to attendance
at Board meetings and/or committee meetings and general
meetings, if applicable, other than the level of participation
and performance at the Board and/or its committees;

ii.  Period of service for the retiring Director; and

ii.  Whether the retiring Director continues to comply with the
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will give due considerations to a number
of factors, including but not limited to, the Listing Rules, as amended
from time to time

The Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the Board on

the appointment of Directors in accordance with the following procedures

and processes:

The Nomination Committee may consult any sources (such as
referrals by the current Directors, advertising, recommendations
from third parties and shareholders of the Company) that it thinks
appropriate in the search or selection of suitable candidates and take
due account of the criteria;

The Nomination Committee may adopt any procedure, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks, that it deems appropriate in assessing the
suitability of candidates;

The proposed candidates will be asked to submit the required
personal data for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may request additional information and
documentation from candidates if necessary;

After considering suitable candidates for the position of Director,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by a written
resolution, if deemed appropriate, to approve a recommendation for
appointment to the Board;

The Nomination Committee will provide the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with relevant information about the
selected candidate for consideration of the remuneration package of
the selected candidate;
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. Thereafter, the Nomination Committee will make recommendations
to the Board on recommended appointments and, in the case of
non-executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee will make
recommendations to the Board on recommended remuneration
packages;

e  The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed
by a member of the Board who is not a member of the Nomination
Committee before the Board considers and decides on the
appointment (as the case may be); and

o All appointments of Directors will be confirmed by filing with the
Companies Registry of Hong Kong the relevant Directors’ consent
to be Directors (or any other similar document requiring the relevant
Directors to confirm or accept their appointment as Directors, as
the case may be) for filing and updating the Register of Directors
of the Company. A Director shall agree to publicly disclose his or
her personal information in any document or relevant website in
connection with his or her appointment as Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director nomination policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XING Dongmei and
Ms. XU Lili, and one executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Lin. Ms.
XING Dongmei currently serves as the chairlady of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

a) to organize and formulate the remuneration policy and plan of
Directors and senior management and submit to the Board for
approval, and propose the remuneration distribution plan according
to the performance evaluation of Directors and senior management
and submit to the Board for approval; and

b)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by
the Board.

The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the Remuneration
Committee shall meet at least once a year. As the Company was listed
on December 15, 2022, the Remuneration Committee did not hold a
meeting for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITESHNEH

Starting Date Expiry Date

Name Bk B H & B HA
Ms. XU Lili April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
202147278 2024F4726H

Mr. ZHANG Bihong April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
20214 H27H 2024F4 A26H

Ms. XING Dongmei April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
20214 H27H 2024F4 A26H

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS IN RELATION TO ESAREMBHRRNER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm their responsibility to prepare the consolidated ZEZBREREAAFTEZ2022F 128318 IEFE
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, AHPIEFHREHEST -

2022.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company in relation AR BPEMIZEANE BEMBEHRERNOTESTEAR
to its reporting responsibility for financial statements is set out in the ~ FAHI0E EHI9BE B XA HRE A ©
independent auditor’s report on pages 90 to 99.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS K B A B 357 A

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external ~ FtE{ZE2022F 12 A31H It FEME TR MIEFEF
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for audit services and non-audit services AR [A AR A INEE i BR A 28 LRl kB 2 5D = ATH
for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set out below: B ERFMAMESIAT

Fees Paid/Payable

Bt EREA
Service Category BR# %8 5l (RMBAR)
Annual Audit Services FEETRY 2,680,000
Non-audit Services (including Tax Compliance Service) EE RS (BERGERRE) 28,000

PREWRESRERERAF 45
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for supervising the preparation of annual
accounts in order to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
operating results and cash flow of the Company during the year. For
the purpose of the preparation of the financial statements for the
Reporting Period, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, adopted applicable accounting principles, made judgments and
assessments that are prudent and reasonable and ensured the financial
statements were prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have
confirmed that the Company’s financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the requirements of laws and applicable accounting
principles.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company. The review covered all the material aspects of its
internal controls, including the supervision of the financial and operational
and compliance affairs, as well as risk management.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the ability of the Company
to operate as a going concern. The statement of auditors about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” of this Report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. SHEN Xiaochun was appointed as the joint company secretary of
the Company on April 27, 2021. She joined the Company in October
2020 and has been responsible for investor relations management since
then. In July 2021, she was appointed as the investor relations director of
the Company.

Mr. LI Kin Wai was appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company on April 27, 2021. Mr. Li is a senior manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business corporate and investor services. He has
over 10 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field.

The Company will ensure that Ms. SHEN Xiaochun and Mr. LI Kin Wai
continuously receive relevant training and support in relation to the Listing
Rules and the duties required to be performed by the company secretaries
of issuers listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. SHEN Xiaochun
and Mr. LI Kin Wai received at least 15 hours of relevant professional
training in the previous financial year, which complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. The primary contact person of Mr. LI Kin Wai at the
Company is Ms. SHEN Xiaochun.
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WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Company has put in place whistleblowing policy which applies to
all the Directors and employees (including but not limited to permanent,
full-time, part-time and contract employees, etc.) of the Group and any
parties who deal with the Group (including but not limited to investors,
customers, contractors, suppliers, creditors and debtors, etc.). The policy
is designed to provide the employees and any external parties with
confidential whistleblowing channels to report to the Group the actual
or suspected illegal activities and misconducts in corporate financial
reporting, internal control or other areas.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group does not tolerate any corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering during the course of its business activities. As such,
it has formulated an anti-corruption policy which prohibits all forms
of corruption practice by making reference to the relevant laws and
regulations. The anti-corruption policy forms an integral part of the
Group's corporate governance framework, which sets out the specific
behavioural guidelines that the employees of the Group must follow to
combat corruption. The anti-corruption policy is reviewed and updated on
a regular basis to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as
the industry best practices.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE ASSESSMENT MECHANISM
The Company has established a mechanism to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. This is achieved by giving Directors
access to external independent professional advice from legal advisers and
auditor, as well as the full attendance of all independent Directors at all
the meetings of the Board and its relevant committees held during the
Reporting Period. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness
of the aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company shall convene an extraordinary general meeting at the
request of shareholders who individually or collectively hold more than
10% of the Company’s shares. However, prior to the announcement
of the resolutions approved at the general meeting, the number of the
Company'’s shares individually or jointly held by the above shareholders
shall not be lower than 10% of the total number of the Company’s shares
with voting rights and the Members’ requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and the resolution proposed to be included in the agenda of
the meeting; should the shareholding is less than 10%, resolutions passed
at the extraordinary general meeting would become invalid.

The Directors may call general meetings, and they shall on a Members’
requisition forthwith proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the Members’ requisition duly proceed to convene
a general meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionists,
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of the requisitionists, may themselves convene a general meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall be held no later than the day which
falls three months after the expiration of the said 21-day period. A general
meeting convened as aforesaid by requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by Directors.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

From the Listing Date to the Latest Practicable Date, the Company did
not make any changes to its Articles. The latest version of the Articles is
available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited.

PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries. The
shareholders may put enquiries to the investor relations working team
of the Company or the Office of the Board via email (ir@wlspjt.com) as
stated in this annual report.
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CORPORATE TRANSPARENCY AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIPS

The Company always endeavors to improve transparency and
accountability to its shareholders in the best possible way. The senior
management of the Company participates in various investor relations
activities including investors and analysts meetings from time to time.
These provide the investors with an opportunity to further understand
the business of the Company. The Company actively liaises and carries
out high-quality communication with shareholders and investors via
diversified communication channels. In the future, the Company will
also hold press conferences and investor presentations/conference calls
where the financial performance, business review and prospect of the
Company are presented. This also sets an open communication platform
for the Company’s senior management to address any questions that
the investment community and the media may have. The Company
issues press releases and announcements where appropriate to provide
updated information about the Company’s business development in a
timely manner. The Company also updates its website regularly to ensure
information about its latest development disseminated promptly.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy after
Listing to ensure its implementation status and effectiveness. With the
implementation of the following measures, the Company believes that the
shareholders’ communication policy is now effectively implemented.

Purpose

The shareholders’ communication policy provides shareholders of the
Company and investors (including potential investors) with equal and
timely access to information about the Company, in order to enable
the shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to actively participate in the affairs of the Company, where
appropriate, and to facilitate the effective communication between
shareholders and investors and the Company.

General Policy and Principle

The Board of the Company shall maintain ongoing communication with
shareholders and investors, and shall regularly review the policy to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company follows the basic principles of fair and
timely communication to and open communication with shareholders and
investors, and discloses information of the Company to shareholders and
investors and communicates with them in accordance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, regulations and rules.
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Corporate Communications

Any documents issued or to be issued by the Company for reference or
action of any holders of its securities, including (but not limited to): (i)
annual report (including the Directors’ report, annual account together
with the auditors’ report and the environmental, social and governance
report) and interim report; and (ii) notice of the general meeting,
circular and proxy form, etc. Corporate communications provided to the
shareholders are prepared in plain language in both Chinese and English
versions to facilitate the shareholders’ understanding.

Shareholders have the right to choose the language (either English or
Chinese) or means (in printed copy or through electronic means) of
receipt of the corporate communications. Shareholders should access the
Company’s corporate communications through the Company’s website
(https://www.weilongshipin.com) or the Stock Exchange’s website
(https://www.hkexnews.hk).

Communication Channels

The Company has set up its website, https://www.weilongshipin.com.
Information disclosed by the Company on the website of the Stock
Exchange will also be published on the Company’s website immediately.
Shareholders may also obtain the press releases and other information
published by the Company from time to time from its website.

Shareholders’ and Investors’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shares held
in the Company (such as share transfer, change of address, replacement
of share certificate, etc.) to the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong. Shareholders and investors who have any
query in respect of the Company should contact the investor relations
department of the Company by email to ir@wlspjt.com.

General Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the shareholders
and, in particular, to communicate with the shareholders directly
through annual general meetings or other general meetings (including
extraordinary general meetings) of the Company. Board members, key
senior management (or their appointed proxies) and external auditors will
attend the annual general meetings to receive shareholders’ opinions and
answer their questions.
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Communications with Investors

The Company welcomes institutional investors for continual discussions
and communications on matters of the Company’s development and
will organize various activities such as results presentation, roadshow,
media interview and investors or analysts meetings at the appropriate
time in order to facilitate the communications between the Company and
investors.

The Company also contacts or communicates with investors, analysts,
media or other external related persons through emails and individual
contacts.

Shareholders’ Privacy

The Company recognizes the importance of protecting the shareholders’
privacy. The Company will not disclose the shareholders’ information
without their consents, unless otherwise required by relevant laws,
regulations and rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has established a risk management and internal control system
in accordance with the requirements of paragraph D.2 under Section Il of
the Corporate Governance Code, which is responsible for independently
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Company, and continuously monitoring and
reviewing the effectiveness of its operation once a year. The system aims
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, promote effective and efficient operations, reasonably ensure
the reliability of financial reports and comply with applicable laws and
regulations and protect the assets of the Company. The Board can only
give reasonable but not absolute assurance that there will be no material
misrepresentation or loss.

Characteristics of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Organization System

In accordance with the requirements of Code Provision D.2.2 under
Section Il of the Corporate Governance Code, the Company has established
a sound risk management and internal control organization system which
includes the Board, the Audit Committee, the office of the Board, the
audit center, the legal department and other departments to ensure that
the Company has sufficient resources, qualified and experienced staffs,
training courses and related budget for risk management and internal
audit.
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The Board of Directors, as the risk management supreme leading organ
of the Company, undertakes ultimate responsibility for construction
and effective operation of the overall risk management system, takes
charge of the building, improvement and efficient operation of the
overall risk management system and has the discretion to delegate senior
management and operational division of each department in the risk
management system.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
its strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board has established the Audit Committee, which
is responsible for monitoring the confirmation of the appropriateness
of the risk management system and internal control procedures and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company, and providing
a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems every year and assesses all important monitoring
aspects including supervision on financial, operation and compliance
affairs, etc. based on the elements of internal control such as the
internal environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication as well as internal supervision. The internal audit
department of the Company holds regular meetings to review and discuss
the Company’s annual risk assessment and supervise the implementation
of risk mitigation measures in relation to our business. Risk assessment
shows that the risks in 2022 mainly included operational risks and
compliance risks. We developed feasible solutions to effectively manage
the risks according to the actual situation of the Company:

Risk of fluctuations in raw material prices: In 2022, there were
increases in the prices of raw materials needed by the Group for
production, such as soybean oil, refined oil, flour, kelp and other
agricultural and sideline products, leading to the increased uncertainty
about production costs and their composition. Failure of the Group
to comprehensively analyze the macro-economy and the trend of raw
material prices, scientifically and reasonably predict the raw material
prices, or take timely and effective measures upon adverse fluctuations in
raw material prices may lead to an increase in the Group’s purchase costs
and a decrease in its profitability.
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Measures:

a)  The purchase cost control procedures are standardized. The purchase
center analyzes and predicts the domestic and overseas economic
situation and the price trends of various major raw materials in the
year, develops an annual purchase plan and budget, and adjusts the
purchase plan and budget according to the actual situation every
month to accurately control the purchase cost.

b) The Group carries out out-of-season purchases to effectively
avoid the risk of seasonal fluctuations in raw material prices; signs
medium-and long-term strategic purchase contracts with raw
material suppliers, to reduce price uncertainty by locking in the
prices through forward prices; and signs purchase contracts at a low
price to lock in the prices of bulk materials in advance, so as to avoid
the price increase caused by unexpected events;

¢) In order to further ensure the stability of the supply chain, the
Company signs long-term strategic agreements with key suppliers,
and implements the system with one entity as the responsible
party supported by another entity, for distribution and supply, and
continuously controls the supply chain risks through the strategy of
improving safe inventory and spreading out supply places.

Food safety risks: Food safety and quality are crucial to our reputation
and success. Maintaining consistent quality and food safety largely
depends on the effectiveness of our quality assurance system, which
in turn depends on many factors, including the design of our quality
assurance system and our ability to ensure that our employees and other
third parties involved in our operations comply with the quality assurance
policies and guidelines. Food safety risk is one of the key factors affecting
the business development of food enterprises, and negligence of any
detail in the process from research, development and production to
marketing may cause major food safety accidents. Failure of the Group
to inspect raw materials and finished products in accordance with the
latest laws, regulations and regulatory requirements or standardize
and effectively control the purchase, production and quality inspection
processes may lead to negative food safety incidents, thus affecting the
reputation of the Group and causing economic losses.
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Measures:

a)  We strive to enhance our core competencies in food safety and
quality controls, capitalizing on our source-to-sale product quality
management system. Our products are in compliance with the
HACCP and FSSC 22000 food safety system certifications.

b) We have established a stringent quality assurance system with
traceability from procurement to sales. We have a strict supplier
screening and assessment mechanism, and have set up a thorough
management system to inspect our procurement and storage
process to ensure the high quality and safety of raw materials.

¢)  Standardization and automation in production along with the
manufacture monitoring system have significantly increased the
stability of our production and product quality. We set up control
points for food safety and quality in every segment throughout the
production process and carefully track and inspect our formulas,
raw materials, food additives, and production processes. Our quality
management center is responsible for food safety management,
raw and packaging materials management, production process
management and customer service management, as well as the
establishment of food safety and quality assurance systems.

d)  We have put in place quality monitoring and management system
for different products during our production and logistic process to
achieve seamless integration of food safety risk management across
the supply chain.

FORMATION OF LONG-TERM MECHANISM FOR RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL MONITORING

In order to actively prevent and respond to risks in production and
operation, the Company has a comprehensive risk management and
internal control system, audit, internal control and legal departments to
identify major risks that hinder the achievement of the objectives, and
control the risks to an acceptable level, so as to ensure the achievement
of business objectives, improvement in the operational efficiency, and
the reliability of financial reports and compliance with national laws and
regulations. Meanwhile, the Company regularly evaluates the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management, and regularly puts
forward relevant risk management suggestions to the management.
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We evaluate and check the effectiveness of our risk management and FHfRBAEERE BREEERATPZERKETT - £
internal control system through the management, business units in the  FEFHFEETE X - SMNEZERD RIMNES FEER - SAT5EE
risk management system, the audit and inspection team of the Group, %536 /& R ST BRAR A K (PS E b B 18 Je I R4 ) 2 45
external auditors, external compliance consultants and legal consultants,  BIBRIE - ST&E AR ELTEE - RS ARERREIE
and improve the risk response measures. Meanwhile, in order to ensure B2 ZABEITZ AR - ANATIEN TEIFAMERE
the effective operation of the risk management system, the Company has  IZ#R{Ei#H| - BEREMT ¢

an inter-departmental risk management cooperation mechanism, with

specific responsibilities as follows:

Internal Audit

Audit Committee Legal Department
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REVIEW OF RISK AND INTERNAL MONITORING
SYSTEM IN 2022

According to the authorization of the Board of Directors, the audit
and inspection team of the Company focuses on business, financial
and compliance risks, and through agile audit, it can realize more
comprehensive and accurate risk monitoring, identify hidden risks more
quickly, and promote management and system process improvement, so
as to support the realization of the Company’s medium — and long-term
vision and strategic objectives.

The Company’s financial reporting, information disclosure and other
management processes strictly comply with the Listing Rules. The Board
office has developed the Information Disclosure Management System,
which was approved by the Board of Directors. The Board office established
the control procedures for information reporting, review and disclosure,
as required. Before disclosing relevant information to the public, the
Company will ensure that the information is kept confidential properly,
and inform the persons with insider information of their obligations and
supervise them according to regulations.

According to the independent review by the internal audit department
and the legal department of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and major internal monitoring (including financial,
operational and compliance monitoring) in 2022, the internal audit
department and the legal department reported the results to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors, and were responsible for the
follow-up to confirm that the management implemented the rectification
measures, and put forward the proposed rectification measures and
exchanged opinions with the management.

As at December 31, 2022, the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control system, including the adequacy of resources,
employee qualifications and experience, training plan and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions. The Board of
Directors believed that there were no major defects in the Company’s
risk management and internal control system in terms of completeness,
rationality and effectiveness.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Weiping (2I# ), aged 45, is the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company and holds directorships and senior management
positions at various subsidiaries within the Group, including as the
chairman of Weilong Commerce since July 2014.

Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in the snack foods industry. In
2001, Mr. Liu established Ping Ping Foods Factory (&1 M FF & )
(currently known as Ping Ping Foods) with Mr. LIU Fuping and served
as the general manager of Ping Ping Foods Factory until September
2004. Mr. Liu also served as the general manager of Ping Ping Foods
from September 2004 to November 2006 and the general manager of
Zhumadian Ping Ping Foods from November 2006 to July 2014.

In July 2017, Mr. Liu graduated from Southwest University (FAEAE2) in
Chongging, the PRC where he majored in administration management
through online courses.

Mr. LIU Fuping (2I38F), aged 42, is an Executive Director and the Vice
Chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Liu holds directorships and
senior management positions at various subsidiaries within the Group,
including as the President of Weilong Commerce since July 2014.

Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in the snack foods industry. In
2001, Mr. Liu established Ping Ping Foods Factory (&1 FF & M)
(currently known as Ping Ping Foods) with Mr. LIU Weiping and served as
the deputy general manager of Ping Ping Foods Factory until 2004. Mr.
Liu also served as the deputy general manager of Ping Ping Foods from
September 2004 to November 2006 and the deputy general manager of
Zhumadian Ping Ping Foods from November 2006 to December 2011.
From December 2011 to July 2014, Mr. Liu served as the general manager
of Ping Ping Foods.

In July 2017, Mr. Liu graduated from Southwest University (FEEIAZ2) in
Chongging, the PRC where he majored in administration management
through online courses.
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Mr. SUN Yinong (# 75 &), aged 54, is the Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Sun has over 20 years’
experience in the food and beverages industry. From July 1999 to April
2016, he served various positions in Coca-Cola (China) Beverage Co., Ltd
(ATART 44 (R ) 8RB IR A A)) and Coca-Cola Enterprise Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (ATO AJ {3 &8 (_ £/ ) AR A 7)), including the
marketing general manager from October 2012 to August 2015 and the
regional general manager from September 2015 to April 2016. Mr. Sun
joined Xiamen Yinlu Foods Group Co., Ltd (EFYIRERMERBABR A A)
in May 2016 and served as the chief commercial officer, chief operating
officer and chief executive officer consecutively till May 2021. From June
2021 to September 2021, he worked as a management consultant in
Suzhou Aizhihui Management Consulting Co., Ltd (BRI MEEIE 7
BB A]). Mr. Sun joined our Group in September 2021 and served as
the Special Assistant to the President of the Company till his appointment
as our Chief Executive Officer in December 2021.

Mr. Sun received a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering and
automation from Zhejiang University (#1,T A2 in Hangzhou, the PRC
in July 1991. He also obtained a master of business administration from
China Europe International Business School (FREIEER TR E67) in
September 2008.

Mr. PENG Hongzhi (%), aged 41, is an Executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer and Senior Vice-President of the Company and holds
senior management positions at various subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Peng has over 10 years of experience in operational management.
From March 2007 to June 2008, Mr. Peng served as an engineer in Beijing
Aoshi Sports Timing Service Co., Ltd. From October 2009 to September
2010, Mr. Peng served as an engineer in Guangdong Province Digital
Guangdong Research Institute. From October 2010 to March 2013, he
served as the assistant to the general manager of Ping Ping Foods. From
April 2013 to April 2016, he served as the deputy general manager at
Beijing Dermat Jiekang Technology Development Co., Ltd. From May
2016 to May 2019, he served as the director and general manager at the
Shenzhen Qianhai Xiangming Equity Investment Co., Ltd. From June 2019
to February 2023, he was mainly responsible for the financial center, IT
center and other management work of the Group. Since March 2023, he
has been mainly responsible for the management work of the financial
center and overseas business development center of the Group.
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Mr. Peng holds the qualification of senior project manager in information
systems awarded by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
in May 2010. He was awarded the Changchun City Government Award
by the Changchun City Government in 2007, the Outstanding Talents of
Fangshan District in Beijing in 2013 and the Outstanding Young Talents in
Beijing in 2015.

Mr. Peng received a bachelor’'s degree in geographical sciences from
Hunan University of Science and Technology (#FEHE K£Z) in Xiangtan,
the PRC in June 2005. He also received a master’s degree in cartography
and geographic information systems from Northeast Normal University (5
1b &R E2) in Changchun, the PRC in July 2008.

Mr. LIU Zhongsi (%]£.8), aged 38, is an Executive Director and Senior
Vice-President of the Company and is primarily responsible for the overall
research and development management of the Group, and has served
various positions at various subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 15 years of experience in the snack foods industry. From
July 2007 to October 2008, he served as a food technology officer in Ping
Ping Foods. From October 2008 to December 2009, he served as a plant
manager in production in Zhumadian Weilai Foods Co., Ltd. (B 55K
B AR AR, From December 2009 to December 2013, he served as a
plant manager in production in Ping Ping Foods. From December 2013 to
June 2020, he served as the director general of the technological research
and development department at Ping Ping Foods. Since June 2020, Mr.
Liu has served as the director general of the technological research and
development department at Luohe Weilong Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (£
B E YT B R A A).

Mr. Liu received the China Business Federation Science and Technology
Award (PRI EE S SR 2 M) and the National Business
Technology Progress Award (% B 3 BHE#E 8) from the China
Business Federation in December 2017.

Mr. Liu received a bachelor’s degree in sports education from Xiangnan
University (#8F 23 F%) in Chenzhou, the PRC in June 2007.
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Mr. CHEN Lin (BR#K), aged 37, is an Executive Director and Senior
Vice-President of the Company and has served various positions at various
subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Chen has over 10 years of experience in the snack foods industry.
From June 2009 to March 2016, Mr. Chen served various roles in Ping
Ping Foods, including management positions in the quality control
department, research and development department, auditing department
and production and sales department. Since 2016, Mr. Chen has served
various positions in Weilong Commerce, including the production, sales
and equipment manager, the deputy director general of the general
production office and the supply chain deputy director general. From
March 2020 to January 2023, Mr. Chen has been responsible for the
management of supply chain center, procurement center and human
resource administration center of the Group. Since January 2023, he
has been mainly responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
production and manufacturing bases.

Mr. Chen graduated from Yueyang Foreign Trade Vocational Technical
College (FRFTIIMNE B ZHAITE4R) in Yueyang, the PRC in July 2005.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. XU Lili (#RZ£%8), aged 42, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on April 27, 2021. Ms. Xu has more
than 17 years of experience in financial leadership. She is now the chief
financial officer of Cloudr Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9955), which operates ClouDr (B Z#7), China’s
Largest SaaS-based Digital Chronic Condition Management Solution
Provider. From March 2014 to September 2020, she was appointed as the
chief financial officer and executive director for Tongdao Liepin Group ([7]
EIEFEEE), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6100).
Prior to that, Ms. Xu held various positions at General Electric Company,
a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: GE),
including as the chief financial officer of GE Power Generation Services
China, from January 2005 to March 2014.

Ms. Xu currently serves as a director of MINISO Group Holding Ltd (5%
BlEmEEER AR AT, a company listed on both the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: 9896.HK/
MNSO.US) and Yalla Group Limited, a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (stock code: YALA).

Ms. Xu is a public accountant certified by the Board of Accountancy of
Washington State of the United States since June 2012.
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Ms. Xu received a bachelor’s degree in international business from Nanjing
University (B8R A2) in Nanjing, the PRC in June 2003 and a master of
science degree in local economic development from the London School of
Economics and Political Science in the UK in November 2004.

Ms. Xu was a director of Nenghe (Tianjin) Enterprise Management
Consulting Co. Ltd. (g R (K32 ) D EE B FH AR A A) since its
establishment in September 2017. It is a company established in the
PRC which principally engaged in provision of enterprise management
consultancy services before its cessation of business. As confirmed by
Ms. Xu, during her tenure, as the said company had ceased business
operation, its business license was revoked on June 17, 2021. Ms. Xu
confirmed that (i) the said company was solvent immediately prior to the
revocation of business license; (ii) there was no wrongful act on her part
leading to revocation of business license of the said company; (iii) she
is not aware of any actual or potential claim which has been or could
potentially be made against her as a result of revocation of business
license of the said company; and (iv) no misconduct or misfeasance had
been involved on her part in the revocation of business license of the said
company.

Mr. ZHANG Bihong (5&35k), aged 48, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on April 27, 2021.

Mr. Zhang has served as the deputy general manager responsible for
the financial management of Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial and Commercial
Holding Co., Ltd. (F/ERFEME XKD AR AT, a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600872) since June 2021,
and previously as the assistant to the chairman of the board from March
2019 to June 2021. He has also served as an independent non-executive
director and chairman of the audit committee of Pujiang International
Group Limited (HLEIBREEBMRAF]), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 02060) since December 2016. He has also served
as the investment relationship director of Honworld Group Limited (18
MEEEHFBRAR]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2226) since June 2016, and previously as a non-executive director from
December 2013 to June 2016. From January 2010 to April 2012, Mr.
Zhang served as a director and the chief financial officer of Aoxin Tianli
Group, Inc., (B{ERNEBEBRAF]) (a company currently known as
Renmin Tianli Group, Inc., delisted from Nasdaq Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Zhang has more than 25 years of experience in the areas of auditing
and taxation. He served as a senior manager at Reanda Certified Public
Accountants LLP (F|Z2E & ETRNE75FT) from October 2005 to July 2008.
Mr. Zhang also served as a partner of Zhong Cheng Xin An Rui (Beijing)
Certified Public Accountants LLP (| 3#i{E & 5s (3L ) & ETRNE S FT) from
August 2008 to October 2009.

Mr. Zhang is currently a certified tax agent in China as accredited by China
Certified Tax Agents Association in June 2000. He is also a certified public
accountant in China as accredited by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in December 2003. He was a certified asset appraiser
in China as accredited by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in 2006.

Mr. Zhang graduated from the Forestry College of Inner Mongolia
Agricultural College (R & #E2FT) in Hohhot, the PRC with a diploma in
economics (accounting) in July 1995.

Ms. XING Dongmei (8%44), aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on April 27, 2021. Ms. Xing
joined East & Concord Partners (KiEHFERHHFT) in July 2004 and
currently serves as a senior partner and member of the management
committee of the firm. She also works as an independent non-executive
director of Yinhua Fund Management Co., Ltd. (REE S EERMHBR A
&), AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Company Limited (FFfRLTRAZD AR A 7)),
(@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600760)
and Greatwall Wealth Asset Management Company (R 8 ERBE
EEERM B AT). Ms. Xing has over 25 years of experience in legal
practice, focusing on legal service in banking and finance, securities and
capital markets and corporate compliance. Before joining East & Concord
Partners, Ms. Xing served as an associate at C&I Partners (1= |12 e 275 F7)
(formerly known as China Legal Affairs Center (A BIAZ 755 0)) from
June 1995 to July 2004, and as a legal assistant at China Legal Affairs
Center from July 1994 to June 1995, during which time she advised on
the first and second rounds of Chinese state-owned enterprises reform
and the listing of such state-owned enterprises on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Xing is currently an expert adviser on civil and administrative law cases
of the Supreme People’s Procuratorate of the PRC (Zm ARBRRERE
TTHEGFEHRER). She has been selected for the third time as a legal
expert adviser by the China Banking Association (I EISR1TEH & A2 R
KEKS).
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Ms. Xing also takes an active role in terms of social responsibility. She
serves as a vice president of Beijing Chaoyang Lawyers Association (£ 5
MEAG R ERIH ), a director of Beijing Lawyers Association (1t = i 7Z&2AD
%), and a supervisor of the Lead Foundation (At R fER K AFEESE).
She was also a representative at the 12th National Women’s Congress of

China (F+ZEFBEGRLARKS).

In 2019, Ms. Xing was awarded as an A-List elite lawyer (A-List; X2 5 2E)
by China Business Law Journal, an Outstanding Lawyer by Chambers and
Partners and an Outstanding Lawyer in banking and finance by Asialaw
Profiles 2020. She was also recognized as one of the 2015 ALB China
Top 15 Female Lawyers (20157 B15{£ % #£RT) by Asian Legal Business in
October 2015.

Ms. Xing received an bachelor of laws degree from China University of
Political Science and Law (FF EIBUEAE) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1994,
and a master’s degree in law from Peking University (3t 5 AX£2) in Beijing,
the PRC in July 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, Mr. SUN
Yinong, Mr. PENG Hongzhi, Mr. LIU Zhongsi and Mr. CHEN Lin, please see
the biographies of “Executive Directors” above.

Mr. HONG Xingrong (#£%), aged 48, is a vice president of the sales
center of the Company.

Mr. Hong has over 26 years of experience in food industry. From
September 1996 to July 1999, Mr. Hong served as the sales supervisor of
Budweiser (Wuhan) International Brewing Co., Ltd. Mr. Hong joined Mars
Foods (China) Co., Ltd. in July 1999 and held various positions successively
as senior sales manager in various regions, the general manager of sales in
South China, the general manager of sales in West China and the senior
sales supervisor in China. Mr. Hong joined the Group on June 16, 2022
and served as the person-in-charge of the sales center of the Company.
On March 3, 2023, he was appointed as the vice president of the sales
center by the Board.

Mr. Hong graduated from Zhejiang Radio and Television University (47T
BEEEIRAZ) in China in July 1996, majoring in electronic engineering.
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Mr. LI Weihong (Z{#3#t), aged 49, is a vice president of the supply chain
center of the Company.

Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in cross-category food industry.
From November 1997 to August 2022, Mr. Li held various positions
successively in Mondelez International, Inc., a company listed on Nasdaq
Stock Exchange (stock code: MDLZ), as the director of Shanghai Factory,
the general manager in manufacturing in East China, the director of
human resources of supply chain, the director of integrated supply chain
in Vietnam, the director of supply chain process improvement in Asia,
Middle East and Africa and the leader of global projects (supply chain
digitalization projects). Mr. Li joined the Group on August 15, 2022
and served as the person-in-charge of the supply chain center of the
Company. On March 3, 2023, he was appointed as the vice president of
the supply chain center by the Board.

Mr. Li graduated from Harbin Engineering University (% 8178 T2 KE£2)
in China in July 1996, majored in thermal engineering, and received a
bachelor’s degree in engineering.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. SHEN Xiaochun (JLEE%&), aged 37, was appointed as a Joint
Company Secretary of the Company on April 27, 2021. She joined our
Group in October 2020 and has been responsible for investor relations
management since then. In July 2021, she was appointed as our investor
relations director. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Shen served as a senior
investor relations director of Zhejiang Panxing Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (3T TR E{E B R AT AR A F]) from October 2019 to May 2020.
From December 2016 to September 2019, she served as a senior investor
relations manager of Comba Telecom Systems Holdings Limited (15 @5
REHERE AR A |)), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2342). Ms. Shen also served as an assistant to the chairman of the board
and the secretary to the board in Aoxin Tianli Group, Inc., (B X %
EGBRAA]) (@ company currently known as Renmin Tianli Group, Inc.,
delisted from Nasdaq Stock Exchange) from January 2010 to December
2016. She also worked as the manager for the English department in
Wuhan Sense Translation & Interpretation Co., Ltd. (BUEMETHEAR
E{TAF)) from July 2007 to January 2010.

Ms. Shen obtained her bachelor of arts degree from Hubei University of
Education (#1t 58 —EM&3E3P) in Wuhan, the PRC in June 2007, and her
master’s degree in international banking and finance, partially through
online course from the University of Salford in the UK in November 2019.

Ms. Shen received the Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary from
Shanghai Stock Exchange in May 2017.
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Mr. LI Kin Wai (Z&&), was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary of
the Company on April 27, 2021. Mr. Li is a senior manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business corporate and investor services. He has
over 10 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field.

Mr. Li is a Chartered Secretary and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). He obtained a master’s degree in corporate governance
from The Open University of Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2022.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is a leading spicy snack food company in China, mainly
engaged in the production and sales of spicy snack food in China.
The Group’s major products cover seasoned flour products, vegetable
products, bean-based and other products, etc.

We focus on turning authentic Chinese gourmet into casual snack
food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and anytime. Our products
accompanied the youthhood of the millennials in China, who became
our first loyal customers. Meanwhile, under the product development
philosophy of “maximizing the intrinsic value of nature with an
industrialized approach”, and with our outstanding category development
ability, we have diversified into vegetable products and bean-based
products. Our modern and well received products have satisfied the taste
buds of generations and accumulated a broad and customer base across
various age groups.

We constantly adapt to changing purchasing behavior of consumers and
have quickly expanded to supermarkets, chained convenience stores and
e-commerce channels, which have wide exposure to young consumers.
Meanwhile, we have strengthened our presence on major e-commerce
platforms. We use e-commerce and social media channels to build a
trendy and engaging brand image through interactive marketing activities,
turning young consumers into our natural brand promoters.

Leveraging our strong brand recognition, product competitiveness and
channel distribution capability, we believe that we will continue to
increase our market share and capitalize on future growth opportunities
in the spicy snack food industry.

Please see the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and notes
to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report, for a
pertinent review of the Group’s business and analysis using financial key
performance indicators, the major risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and a discussion on the future development of the Group’s business.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022

EEEMAREAFRERANEBEE2022F12A8
AL FEZEETAHIBRE -

AEERPEBEEOFKANRG LY TBEE
RERRABRBOLENHE - AEBHTBES
ERBRELS  ANUR  SRSRANESSE
Bl o

B IN B EERERITEREEE AREREL
ERAMKRRM - HMHERBEHTHRETE-RA
MRE  ANLASIEERT RPN —HEENH
R AU TECBH  EERRHNWEERK
BN INERRBERES  BERMAERORENE
e BRAERWHRI GRS MERR - BV
HMERZHEBESHOER  WmET —RX—HAK
K& BRTEBEZEFKRBRNEZEPE

BMEREE  BEHBEBETRANEE - HRE
REIFEEEERZXBOME  BHENE - ER
RIE - R - HFIMBHZRERFENMRE © FiF
EMEFMERGERE  BBEHEHEE - T&
AABNMmET S  BFEAS A RRMRE
B BiEE

BIARE - BREEMAGKNMENEE  EmBFH
TRBEERE N - HMBEBRATSNE - LER
RAE RMTTEARIIE RS

UAKEEBNTEERMERUWKERRREITE
TENDHT - AEEEERN T ERRMTEEE - I
SEEBARBERNIRBIAFHR I EERE ]
[EEEIWEIN ] [REERRE | REHIBER
RMEERE -



Report of the Directors BB =2 iRE

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's results also depend on the support of key relationships
with suppliers, customers and employees. The Company maintains good
relationships with suppliers, customers and employees to ensure smooth
business operations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the results of the Group for the Current Year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of operations of the Group for the Current Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 100 of the annual
report.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the changes in the share capital of the Company during
the Current Year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDENDS

Based on the Group's overall performance for the year, and taking
into account the Group’s surplus, overall financial position and capital
expenditures, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the Board will propose a final cash dividend of RMB0.12 per
share as of the Current Year (inclusive of tax, totaling approximately
RMB273.9 million), and a special dividend of RMBO0.12 per share (inclusive
of tax, totaling approximately RMB273.9 million) in appreciation of the
support and trust of investors during the Initial Public Offering of the
Company. The distribution of final and special dividends is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Further details of the dividends are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is not liable for any claim arising from the failure to
determine in a timely manner or erroneously determine the status of the
shareholders or any dispute over the withholding mechanism. The Board
of Directors is not aware that any shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We may pay dividends in cash or otherwise as the Board considers
appropriate. Distribution of dividends is at the discretion of the Board
and, if necessary, subject to the approval of the Shareholders. The
Board may propose future dividend distributions, in consideration of our
results of operations, financial position, operating requirements, capital
requirements, shareholders’ equity and any other conditions that the
Board may deem relevant.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, our dividend policy is to
distribute to our shareholders no less than 25% of our distributable
profits for any particular year after the Listing. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to distribute dividends of the above amount or any
amount, or at all, in any year. The declaration and payment of dividends
may also be limited by legal restrictions and by loan or other agreements
that the Company and our subsidiaries have entered into or may enter
into in the future. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount
of dividends will be subject to our constitutional documents and the
Cayman Companies Act. We are a holding company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. As a result, the payment and amount of
any future dividends will depend on the availability of dividends received
from our subsidiaries and other reserves lawfully available for distribution.
Our shareholders may approve any declaration of dividends in a general
meeting, which must not exceed the amount recommended by our Board.
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of our profits and
reserves lawfully available for distribution.

DONATION

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Current
Year totaled RMB2,021,391 (Previous Year: RMB11,694,633).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS AND
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group’s business operations are principally conducted in China and
the Company’s shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Our
business is mainly subject to the laws of China, Hong Kong and other
relevant regions. During the year ended December 31, 2022 and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, we complied with relevant laws and regulations
in the applicable areas which had a significant impact on the Group.
Specifically, the operations of the Group as a spicy snack food producer in
China are subject to applicable food safety and environmental protection
laws and regulations of China. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not commit any material breach of these laws and regulations.

PURCHASE, DISPOSAL AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, disposed of or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2022.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022

iz S BUR

BRI BEREREFERA/BENEMT DA
BE - BRENDEHEFERNERE  WALE - A
RIERCREELE - ERE A EEERMMEERE -
MR - REBER - BAER  BRRESMNEES
R BRI AR IR E - ZEARAROKESD
fi o

RBBERZERER - BANBREBEREN LR ER
BEFERARRAENDRADEMNEN25% ° &
AR BT RE T FEAES D i LS FRs
EAEEORE » HERNTENELE - KRENE
IR A B A BER BDERR S - A RARR] REAFIA
BB A B A A SR AT BERT LBV B R E A i ek O PR
o BB EAE IR TARKRESREHETAEH
PINERX M RASEE(AREMRE - HfAR—K
RIEH SR EEAETMALAER AT o Bt - £/
AR BER R BBEUAR R PIEES R E R R)
REMAHEEED KFHETREGRE - BRRARBRR
RE FHEEMREEIR - BRNSETNSBBEES
SEENDE - REEF AAHAED IREFE R
BHREIRSRS

B
REBRAFEEHNES MEMETATEARE
2,021,391t ( EFE + AR¥E11,694,6337T) ©

HERER NS RN EEFRD

REEMEBEEXTSHEPEET  MAQBNBKNG
AIER BB ET - RPIMEENERETEXH
- BASEHEREFAEEE - #8iE2022F124
1AL FEUREERTEELL - RS ETHTEA
@I E AR EEERZENREED KRG - B8
T EARRKKERRMNEER - REEEPEMNE
EZBATPERMLTERBREFEEIARLENEE -
RBEHER - NEEREGERNENERZZERE
HETTA -

BE - HEREE EHES

B ETHSEEZ2022F12A31H » AARISEMT
B AREEE HEXERAQR ZEM LM

e

°
A



Report of the Directors BB =2 iRE

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
December 15, 2022. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2022, the
Group progressively utilised the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering
according to the intended use set out in the Prospectus.

The net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering of the shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (after deducting
underwriting fees and other related expenses) were approximately
HK$903.3 million. As of December 31, 2022, the Group utilized total
proceeds of approximately HK$18.2 million for the intended purposes set
out in the Prospectus issued by the Company, accounting for 2.0% of all
raised funds, and the remaining unutilized proceeds were approximately
HK$885.2 million.

B RERE
RABMDA2022F 12 B15BEBET - 8 F
TMHEEEEERET2022412A318 - AEECDRER
BEMEBTEARELSBAE N MEEMEHRE -

RABRHDREE R ER ETOE X AFEENER
FE(RIIRAEERREMBBREBREZ) O AREBE
903.3HETT ° H{E2022F12A3181L - AEEER
BARR BB MGRBIREFEET AR 258 AMER
BRMBE18 288 hEEEESM2.0%
BT ARBVAFSRIBR AEES8S 2B ETT ©

Actual Expected
Net netamount  Unutilized timeline Expected
proceeds utilized  net amount for fully  timeline as
from the as of as of utilizing disclosed
Intended purposes of Listing December 31, December 31, unutilized in the
net proceeds FEREFERERAR available 2022 2022 netamount  Prospectus
i BZ20225 #HZE20225 GES
B&%¥¢ 12A31HLE 12A31HLE BRAFEE BREH
AR BREA ie R B B EH REH
B8 BE B8 FRAKE FAHREX
(HKS$ million) — (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
(&%) (8%T) (BE¥%T)
Production facilities and supply FEREEREEREER 514.90 7.80 507.10  2-3years®  3-5years®
chain system
Expanding our sales and R SHE A SHABE 135.50 0.00 135.50 Tyearf  3-5years
distribution network
Brand building MR R 90.33 10.07 80.26 Tyear®  3-5years®
Product research and EmifEEE R 90.33 0.31 90.02  1-2years®f  3-5yearsF
development activities and WEsRE iR
enhancement of research and
development capabilities
Advancing the construction of MRS R 72.27 0.00 7227 1-2years®  3-5yearstE
digitization and intelligence
Total wst 903.33 18.18 885.15 - -

Note: Due to rounding, there may be a difference between the sum of the

individual sub-values and the total amount

The balance of the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering will continue
to be utilized according to the purposes and proportions disclosed in the
Prospectus. The expected time for the full use of the proceeds was earlier
than disclosed in the Prospectus, which was mainly due to the Group’s
reassessment of the business execution plan.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the name, principal place of business, country of incorporation
and issued share capital of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the changes in the reserves of the Group and the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in notes 25 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements in the annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The distributable reserve of the Company as at December 31, 2022 was
RMB1,471.6 million (2021: RMB1,230.5 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Current Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s borrowings during the Current Year are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Current Year, the Group did not issue corporate bonds.

KEY CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Current Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
total purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less than
10% and 30% respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as disclosed in the Group’s
Prospectus, none of the Directors or their associates or any shareholder
who is expected to have 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company have any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and five
largest customers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has maintained Directors’ liability insurance to protect the
Directors of the Company against any potential losses arising from his/
her actual or alleged misconduct. During the Current Year and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, the permitted indemnity provision (as defined in
section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was and is being in force for the benefit of
the Directors of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules) constitute connected transactions of the Company. The
Company regulates and manages such transactions in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The followings are the non-fully exempt continuing
connected transactions conducted by the Group during the Reporting
Period.

NON-FULLY EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2022, the following transactions are conducted in
the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group and on normal
commercial terms or better, where the highest relevant percentage ratios
(except for the profits ratio) for the three years ending December 31, 2024
calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will, as the
Company expect, be more than 5% on an annual basis. Pursuant to Rules
14A.49, 14A.71, 14A.35 and 14A.36 of the Listing Rules, the transactions
will be subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

The following table sets out the proposed annual cap for such transactions
and actual transaction amounts:

FEXS

RIBCETRBDRE - RAREARRNEEAL
(B ETRADFER)HNZ SIBKA R RIHBIER
5 HNZER S ARARB(EMRAD T IAEE
MER - UTAREERREREMET 2T EZE
HRRERERS -

TEZHERRSERERS

HZE2022F 1283181 - LW TRGEAREERN—
M RIEFEFBRER R MR EREGRKET - K
NETEFAEE2024F 12 A31BIL=EEE - B#E( L
THRADE T AT ENERAEBE DL R (AR
EERIN R FEEETIETR5% o BRIBCEMHRAD
F14A.49 ~ 14A.71 ~ 14A35F114A 3615 * 2 EX 5
EESTRR - FEEHN - AERBRRIVERTE ©

ATRBINE T HERSNERFERIHEE LRM
ERR ST -

Actual transaction
amount for the

year ended
Proposed annual December 31,
cap for 2022 2022
BE2022F
E$2022F 12A31BLEE
FE LR BERXSRER
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EBET) (ARBBEET)
Total expenses paid by the Group to Luohe AREEAPR)A HEFEFHZEE 157 98.4
Delong Color Printing Development Co., BRAT([EEXEDOZ
Ltd. (“Delong Color Printing”) @ for the HEEE RN AN ER A
purchase of packaging materials
Total Bt 157 98.4
(1) A company owned as to 30% by Mr. LIU Fuping and therefore an associate (1) —KAZI@FEEEEI0%BEN DT - F itk A

of our Controlling Shareholder.
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PACKAGING MATERIALS SUPPLY FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT

We entered into a framework agreement on supply of packaging materials
with Delong Color Printing (the “Packaging Materials Supply Framework
Agreement”) on November 29, 2022, pursuant to which Delong Color
Printing will provide food packaging materials to our Group.

The initial term of the Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement
will commence on the Listing Date and end on December 31, 2024, and
can be renewed upon its expiry as agreed by the parties to the agreement.

Separate underlying agreements will be entered into which will set out
the details of materials, purchase price, payment method and other details
of the materials supply arrangements in the manner provided in the
Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement. The definitive terms
of each of such agreements will be determined on a case-by-case basis
and on fair and reasonable basis after arm’s length negotiation between
the parties.

Delong Color Printing has historically supplied packaging materials to
members of the Group due to its satisfactory products, favorable prices,
and geographical advantage. In addition, our Group and Delong Color
Printing have a long term, stable relationship and Delong Color Printing is
familiar with our business needs and requirements. Based on our previous
experience in business dealing with Delong Color Printing, we believe
Delong Color Printing is capable of effectively satisfying our demands for
the relevant products and services in a stable and reliable manner.

The purchase price payable by us to Delong Color Printing under the
Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement will be determined
through a bidding process according to the internal rules and procedures
of the Group. We will send bidding documents to selected suppliers,
collect and compare quotes offered by at least two Independent Third
Parties for products of the same or similar quality. The Group will also
take into consideration the cost of materials provided, the quality of the
materials, as well as the production scale and capacity of the supplier.
The winning bidder and the purchase price of packaging materials will be
subject to approval of our procurement departments.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the proposed annual cap
for transactions contemplated under the Packaging Materials Supply
Framework Agreement was RMB157.0 million, while the actual amount
incurred was RMB98.4 million.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the above non-fully exempt continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these transactions had been
entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
ii. either on normal commercial terms or on better terms; and

iii. in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Group as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditors of the Group to perform certain agreed-upon procedures in
respect of the continuing connected translations and the auditors have
reported the factual findings on these procedures to the Board.

In a letter to the Board, the Group's auditor confirmed that with regard to
the above continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
ended December 31, 2022:

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board of the Company.

ii. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

iii. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

iv. for the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transactions
as set out above, nothing has come to their attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the amount of the transactions exceeds
the annual cap for the Group.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended December 31, 2022, there
are no other related party transactions or continuing related party
transactions set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
which constitute disclosable connected transactions or disclosable
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. In respect of
the connected transactions and the continuing connected transactions,
the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of the annual report.

The list of Directors during the Reporting Period and as at the Latest
Practicable Date (unless otherwise stated) is set out below:

Relationship with other

Directors and senior
Name Position management
RAMEER
HE Btz BREBRENEE
Mr. LIU Weiping Chairman and executive  Brother of Mr. LIU Fuping;
Director Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi
AETEE EERHK ARTEENTT
HITER ABBRENER
Mr. LIU Fuping Executive Director and Brother of Mr. LIU Weiping;
Vice Chairman Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi
BRIt WTESHEESR BIRTEER RS
ABBRENER
Mr. SUN Yinong Executive Director and N/A
Chief Executive Officer
BREE POTBEEREREHTE B
Mr. PENG Hongzhi Executive Director and Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi

Chief Financial Officer
and Senior Vice President

YEERE YIESRERMKE  BBREENRR
HBRELH
Mr. LIU Zhongsi Executive Director and Cousin of Mr. LIU Weiping and
Senior Vice President Mr. LIU Fuping; cousin of
Mr. PENG Hongzhi and
Mr. CHEN Lin
ABBEE WTEEFRSRAEE  AETEERIETEEN
2R PLERER
B EERRAF
Mr. CHEN Lin Executive Director and Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi
Senior Vice President
BARSE nTEERSREER  ABRBEENRS
Ms. XU Lili Independent N/A
Non-executive Director
BB L BUFNTES &
Mr. ZHANG Bihong Independent N/A
Non-executive Director
WAL BUFRTES &
Ms. XING Dongmei Independent N/A
Non-executive Director
JiES L BAFHITES &
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Commencement

date of the Expiry date of
Time of joining current term the current term
the Group of office of office
MAK B AEEHRRES AREHERES
Since the establishment  April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024

of the Group
BARE BRI 2021447278 20244 F268

Since the establishment  April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
of the Group
BAEER AR 202164R27R  2024%4A26R

September 2021 April 27, 2022 April 26, 2024
202149R 2022547278 202454268
October 2010 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
2010410 2021472768 2024%F4F26H
July 2007 August 18, 2021 April 26, 2024
20074%7R 202148 A 18H 202454268
June 2009 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
200946 A4 2021544278 202454 F268
April 2021 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
2021F4A 202147278 202447268
April 2021 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
2021 4R 202147278 2024%F4F26H
April 2021 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
20214 4R 2021544278 202454268
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PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

AND APPOINTMENT LETTERS

(a) Executive Directors
Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with us pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive Directors
for an initial term of three years with effect from the date of their
appointments. Either party has the right to give not less than three
months’ written notice to terminate the agreement.

(b) Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with our Company. The initial term for their
appointment letters shall be three years from the date of their
appointments or until the third annual general meeting of the
Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier, (subject
always to re-election as and when required under the Articles of
Association) until terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the appointment letter or by either party giving to the
other not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors had a service contract with the Company
which was not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST-PAID INDIVIDUALS
The Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances,
benefits in kind, performance-related bonuses, share-based payment,
pensions, and other social insurance benefits. Independent non-executive
Directors are remunerated according to their duties (including serving as
members or chairmen of the Board committees).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, senior management of the
Group and the five highest-paid individuals for 2022 are set out in notes
9 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022, the remuneration of members of
senior management (including executive Directors) by pay range is set out
below:

HE2022F12A31MHIEFE  sREREKE (B

HITER)RHFISRB D MEN M

Number of

individuals
Range NF A
HK$0 to 1,000,000 072 1,000,0007T 0
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 7#1,000,0017C2 1,500,0007T 0
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 7 #1,500,0017C22,000,0007T 0
Above HK$2,000,001 7 #2,000,0017T A £ 8

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
From the Listing Date to December 31, 2022, none of the Company’s
Directors or entities connected with them had any material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements
or contracts to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended December 31, 2022, none of the Directors, the
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries or their respective associates had
any interest in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Company and its subsidiaries (except
as acting as Directors and/or directors of their subsidiaries and their
respective associates), which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2022, the interests or short positions of our Directors
and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
our Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, which will have to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein,
or which will be required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

EERRETRAEBRA QAR EEEE
B2k - MR RERER 2 BER K
B

R2022F 128318 EERESTBRABRAAR
B - BERD REEETEERB(EFRPE
&BIYEXVERET R85 EBAEME AN A 7] KB X AT A4
wmoAR (& B(EFRIEKRFDEXVE) (B ER
B(EHEREEMDOEBECEEESRAEED
AR » SIRECGES KA EEHI)E 352167850
SR ZIEFTIE B R MRS sA R + SR ETR
RIDEr SR ZEE ST R )ZB A& A1 B) KB 22 B 0 4 2 3%
KB

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in  Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
EEBITRA
HEREN TR/ KBS
®E EEE BENKRG BMABSH(%) FHEEHNRE
Mr. LIU Weiping™@® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
(note 1, 2, 3)
ZIF A0 FREXEA (Bi5E1, 2, 3) TR
Mr. LIU Fuping®@® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
g T 000 EREERA i7A
Mr. SUN Yinong® Beneficial Owner 7,326,683 0.31%  Long Position
RINREHE BEmiEaA HE
Mr. PENG Hongzhi® Beneficial Owner 5,601,592 0.24%  Long Position
TRELES BEnEAA "HE
Mr. LIU Zhongsi® Beneficial Owner 6,521,919 0.28%  Long Position
2B BEEE BEmBEaA HE
Mr. CHEN Lin® Beneficial Owner 5,122,216 0.22%  Long Position
BRARSE O BEREAA "HE
ERERSRIERERAT
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Notes:

(1) The Integrity Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green
Philosophy (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH
Innovation Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr.
LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust
Company Limited acting as the trustee. The Integrity Trust is interested
in 95% of shareholding in HH Global Capital through two intermediary
entities, namely Amused Town Limited and Adroit Fairy Limited.

2) The He He Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green Philosophy
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation Group (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr.
LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company Limited
acting as the trustee. The He He Trust is interested in 5% of shareholding in
HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely Beacon Flash
Limited and Decision Stone Limited.

(3) Immediately following the completion of the Global Offering, Mr. LIU
Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping, through their trust vehicles and various
intermediary subsidiaries (including HH Global Capital, Amused Town
Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited, Beacon Flash Limited,
HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group), were collectively interested
in approximately 80.99% of our enlarged issued share capital, thus they
remained as the group of our Controlling Shareholders. Accordingly, each
of Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping is deemed to be interested in the
1,904,243,183 shares held by HH Global Capital for purpose of Part XV of
the SFO.

4) Mr. SUN Yinong is interested in 7,326,683 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(5) Mr. PENG Hongzhi is interested in 5,601,592 underlying shares relating to
the RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(6) Mr. LIU Zhongsi is interested in 6,521,919 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(7) Mr. CHEN Lin is interested in 5,122,216 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2022, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the requirements of the Model Code.
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RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR BONDS

During the Current Year, none of the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or subsidiaries of its holding company entered into
any arrangement that enables the Directors and chief executive of the
Company to obtain benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN
Details of the retirement benefit plan are set out in note 2.21 and note
9(a) to the financial statements.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31, 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the interests or short positions of the following persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EERBRETRARBEROSES 2&
il

RAFE - ARF - EAEAMBAR  HERAFNK
HERA TS A REMEI LETLY - BEAR
Az EFREBTHABIEBIMARRAREME
fth % A AR A BRAD S35 T 1S F 2 o

BRIRERIEE
ERARKSTBFHBEHNA H SRR 7E2.21 W
9(@a) °

FERRRAQXTRG R EER G HER
5879

HZE2022F12A318  REEA - LFAL(IIE
ERZLARRESTHAB)RARRAR RN REHER
NHREBRIB(ES MEEN)FE3364EMETHE
AR R R SR A

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding in  Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
HERTRABERE A KB/
A ERME FENRG MBABE (%) FHREHNRS
HH Global Capital™® Beneficial owner 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
AMMEIRER0@ ERBEBA A
Mr. LIU Weiping@®® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
BTk Ee BREXmA HE
HH Green Philosophy@@ Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
ARG IR S 0w X EmA oe
The Integrity Trust @@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
The Integrity Trust@@ R EE R HeE
Adroit Fairy Limited®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Adroit Fairy Limited@ A B oe
Amused Town Limited@@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Amused Town Limited@@ R EE R HeE
IRERERERERDF
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Approximate
percentage of

shareholding in  Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
HEERTRALERE TR %Ke/
A ERtE FENRS MBABE (%) FTHEHNRS
The Core Trust Company Trustee 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Limited®®®

[ERETEAR AR A TR
Mr. LIU Fuping@®@ Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
2R kL BEREXEA HE
HH Innovation Group®®“ Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
AL EEIFHE@ EFEEmA 3y}
The He He Trust®4 Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99% Long Position
The He He Trust®® S rEER TR
Beacon Flash Limited®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Beacon Flash Limited®@ R EEER 0e
Decision Stone Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99% Long Position

Decision Stone Limited®@

Q)

@)

(©)

XEmrEER

As of December 31, 2022, HH Global Capital directly held 1,904,243,183
shares of the Company.

The Integrity Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green
Philosophy (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation
Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping
and Mr. LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company
Limited acting as the trustee. The Integrity Trust is interested in 95% of
shareholding in HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely
Amused Town Limited and Adroit Fairy Limited.

The He He Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green Philosophy
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation Group (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr.
LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company Limited
acting as the trustee. The He He Trust is interested in 5% of shareholding in
HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely Beacon Flash
Limited and Decision Stone Limited.
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(4)  As of December 31, 2022, Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping, through
their trust vehicles and various intermediary subsidiaries (including HH Global
Capital, Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited,
Beacon Flash Limited, HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group), were
collectively interested in approximately 80.99% of our enlarged issued share
capital, thus they remained as the group of our Controlling Shareholders.
Accordingly, each of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, HH Green Philosophy,
HH Innovation Group, The Integrity Trust, The He He Trust, Adroit Fairy
Limited, Beacon Flash Limited, Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited,
The Core Trust Company Limited and HH Global Capital is deemed to be
interested in the 1,904,243,183 shares held by HH Global Capital for purpose
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2022, the Directors were
not aware that any other person had any interest and/or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of our Company which would fall to be
disclosed to us pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of our share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of our Company.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” of
the Report of the Directors, (i) no significant contracts were entered into
by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Current
Year; and (ii) there are no significant contracts in relation to the provision
of services by the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the
Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Since the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2022, the Company had
not entered into or maintained any equity-linked agreement which would
or could result in the issuance of shares by the Company, or which would
or could require the issuance of shares by the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the
Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

(4) EZE2022F12A318 ' BEFLERREFLEB
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions in the ordinary course of business
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements in the
annual report. Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above, these related party transactions are carried out in the
ordinary course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better, and the Directors of the Company currently expect that each
relevant percentage ratio calculated under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (other than the profits ratio) will be less than 0.1% on an annual
basis. Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, the transactions
will be exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules requires that there must be an open
market in the securities for which listing is sought, and a sufficient public
float of an issuer’s listed securities shall be maintained. Generally, at least
25% of an issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held
by the public. Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, the Stock
Exchange may, subject to certain conditions and at its discretion, accept
a lower percentage of between 15% and 25% in the case of issuers with
an expected market capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10
billion.

The Stock Exchange confirmed that it would exercise its discretion under
Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, provided that the minimum public
float of the Company shall be the highest of (i) 15% of the total issued
share capital of the Company; (ii) the percentage of shares held by the
public (including pre-IPO investors) after the completion of the Global
Offering, namely 17.06%. Based on information publicly available to the
Company as of the Latest Practicable Date and to the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirmed that the above minimum public float
required by the Stock Exchange was maintained by the Company from
the Listing Date to the date of the report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

There was no contract concerning the management or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
was entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not involved in any material
legal proceedings.

LOANS AND GUARANTEES

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not directly or indirectly
provide any loans or loan guarantees to the Directors, senior management,
Controlling Shareholders or their respective connected persons of the
Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

For details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance, please
see the Group’s 2022 Sustainability Report (ESG Report) issued with the
report.

ENTRUSTED AND MATURED DEPOSITS

As of December 31, 2022, the Group did not have entrusted deposits
with financial institutions in China, or any matured deposits which were
overdue and could not be withdrawn.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION FOR HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief to which any holder of the
Company’s securities is entitled as a result of holding such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company received an annual confirmation of independence from
the independent non-executive Directors, based on which the Company
believed that all independent non-executive Directors were independent
under the Listing Rules.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the total number of
employees of the Group was 6,307, including 1,760 employees aged
below 30, accounting for approximately 27.91% of the total; 2,901
employees aged between 31 to 40, accounting for approximately 46.00%
of the total; 1,599 employees aged between 41 to 50, accounting for
approximately 25.35% of the total;, 47 employees aged 51 and above,
accounting for approximately 0.75% of the total. The total annual
employee benefits (including Directors’ remuneration) amounted to
RMB853.0 million. We always believe that the Group’s long-term
growth depends on the expertise and capability of our employees. We
proactively optimize the talent selection and cultivation system in order to
improve the general competitiveness of our employees and their sense of
belongings to the Group.

Employee development is the key to the continuous growth of the
Company and business. We have established a sound training system,
in order to meet the career development needs of diversified employee
groups, continuously improve the ability of employees and ensure that we
can continuously provide high-quality products for customers.

Based on the Company’s strategic development needs, our training
system is developed from three aspects, namely basic general training,
professional training and competency improvement training. Meanwhile,
we adopt an online and offline approach and established an online
learning platform “sharing hall” to regularly provide courses and
encourage employees to carry out fragmented and autonomous learning.
Online and offline courses provide diversified training to better meet the
needs of all parties.

In strict compliance with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Group
pays labor remuneration and makes contributions to social insurance
and housing provident funds for its employees. Meanwhile, we also
provide annual check-ups, holiday benefits, etc., so as to fully protect our
employees through a variety of benefit measures.

The remuneration and benefits for employees of the Group are
determined with reference to the market standards as well as individual
qualification and capability, and performance bonus and other incentive
systems are established. Performance bonuses are paid based on the
Group's revenue and profit targets, as well as the performance of the
organization in which the employee works and the performance of
the individual employee, and to recognize and encourage outstanding
contributions made by organizations and employees to the Group’s
business. Our overall remuneration policy is competitive.
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EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE SCHEME
In order to motivate and reward the Directors, senior management
members and other employees who contributed to the development
of the Group, the Company adopted the RSU Scheme pursuant to the
resolution of shareholders dated January 1, 2021. The main contents of
the RSU Scheme are summarized as follows:

1. Purpose
The purpose of the RSU Scheme was to provide incentives and
rewards to Directors, senior management members and other
employees who contributed to the development of the Group.

2. RSU participants in the RSU Scheme

Participants of the RSU Scheme (the “RSU Participants”) are selected
by the Board from our Directors (executive or non-executive, but
excluding independent non-executive Directors), management,
officers and existing employees of the Company or any member of
the Group.

3. Number of shares and maximum number of shares
that each participant is eligible to receive
The number of RSUs to be granted shall be determined at the sole
and absolute discretion of the Board and may differ among selected
RSU Participants.

The total number of shares which may be issued under the RSU
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total issued share capital of the
Company upon the approval of the general meeting of the Company
for the RSU Scheme, or 235,114,557 shares (representing 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
the report). The total number of shares granted or to be granted to
any participant shall not exceed 1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company upon the approval of the general meeting of the
Company for the RSU Scheme namely 23,511,455 shares.
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Vesting period

The awards to be granted will be vested and unrestricted pursuant
to the terms of the respective grant letters to the individual RSU
Participant.

Consideration for application for incentive shares
All awards under the RSU Scheme are granted at nil consideration.

Term of the scheme

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
the RSU Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the Date of Adoption (the “Term of the RSU
Scheme”). As of the Latest Practicable Date, the remaining term of
the RSU Scheme is 7 years and 9 months.

At the beginning and end of the Current Year, the number of
awards that may be granted under the RSU Scheme was 5,075,462
and 27,179 shares respectively. The weighted average number of
shares issuable in respect of the awards granted under the RSU
Scheme divided by the number of shares issued during the year was
2.04%.
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HZE2022F12A318BULEE  REBEABHTER
HEREN D R B E BT

Details of the incentive shares granted under the incentive scheme
and the changes during the year ended December 31, 2022 are as

follows:
Number Number
of shares Number Number Number of Number  of shares
granted  of shares  of shares shares  of shares granted
but not granted vested lapsed  cancelled but not
Name and vested on during the during the during the duringthe vested on
category of January 1, Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting December
grantee Date of grant Date of vesting 2022 Period Period Period Period 31,2022
20225 #2022
1A1H 12A31H
BREE REEHA REEER RREHEA REEER  BRHEE
AEBH R FRH Pl dHEE  RKEEW
ERAMERER  REAE HEAH ROEE ROBE ROHE ROBE KROBE ROME
Director
s
SUN Yinong October 10, 2021 April 30, 2023 - 6,660,621 - - - - 6,660,621
April 30, 2028
BrhE 2021104 10H 2023/4/30 - 2028/4/30
December 1, 2022 April 30, 2025 - 666,062 - - - 666,062
202212818 2025/4/30
PENG Hongzhi January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - 558,000 - - - - 558,000
January 1, 2027
BN 20211718 2022/1/1-2027/11
October 10, 2021 January 1, 2022 - 4,534,356 - - - - 4,534,356
December 30, 2030
20214108108 2022/1/1 -2030/12/30
December 1, 2022 April 30, 2025 - 509,236 - - - 509,236
2022127318 2025/4/30
LIU Zhongsi January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - 697,000 - - - - 697,000
January 1, 2027
) 20151 AR 2022/1/1 - 2027111
October 10, 2021 January 1, 2022 - 5,231,950 - - - - 5,231,950
December 30, 2030
202146104 10R 2022/1/1 - 2030/12/30
December 1, 2022 April 30, 2025 - 592,969 - - - 592,969
202212818 2025/4/30
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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Number

of shares

granted

but not

Name and vested on
category of January 1,
grantee Date of grant Date of vesting 2022
R2022F

1A18

B&HE

ABRRH

ARAMERER  REAH BEAH ROEE

CHEN Lin January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - 471,000
January 1, 2027
Bk 202151318 2022/1/1 - 2027111
October 10, 2021 January 1, 2022 - 4,185,560
December 30, 2030
202141074 10R 2022/1/1 - 2030/12/30
December 1, 2022 April 30, 2025 -
2022612718 2025/4/30

Subtotal
e . - 22,338,487

The RSUs in respect of all shares under the RSU Scheme have been
issued in full immediately before Listing. No further awards will be
granted under the RSU Scheme after Listing. For further details of
changes in share options during the Reporting Period, see note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

For details of the employee incentive scheme, see the Prospectus
of the Company published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.weilongshipin.com) on December 5, 2022.
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2,233,923 - -

Number

Number Number Number of Number  of shares
of shares  of shares shares  of shares granted
granted vested lapsed  cancelled but not

during the during the during the duringthe vested on
Reporting  Reporting Reporting Reporting December
Period Period Period Period 31,2022

20225
128318

REEHA RREHRN REEER RESHEA  ERHEE
R BEN RAH SHE  REEH
ROBE KOBE KROBE RORE RORE

- - - - 471,000

- - - - 4,185,560

465,656 - - - 465,656

24,572,410

B BR B0 B AL ET B T PR A AR B RE R KR
Bin BB R EMATERET - LWE - THIR
ESER BB BRI T EME — PR 2R -
BRMEHABREZESNE TS - F2H
B BHRARMEE0

EEMEEIFBEE R AR T20225612 A5H T
B B R B A8 uh (www.hkexnews.hk) FI R &
AU (www.weilongshipin.com) I FRALE °



Report of the Directors BB =2 iRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is fully aware of the importance of good corporate
governance in enhancing the management of the Company and
protecting the interests of shareholders as a whole. The Company has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
as its code for its corporate governance practices. The Directors believed
that the Company complied with relevant code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting Period. The Board
will continue to review and monitor the Company’s practices to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in the annual report.

AUDITOR

During the year ended December 31, 2022, PricewaterhouseCoopers
acted as the reporting accountant and independent auditor of the
Company. The financial statements set out in the annual report were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company has not changed its
auditor since the Listing Date.

OTHER EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material events after December 31, 2022 that would
materially affect the Group’s operating and financial performance as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

Other sections, reports or notes to the report referred to above constitute
part of the report of the Board of Directors.

By order of the Board

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
LIU Weiping

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, China
March 23, 2023

TR
ARBRMRIFEEERHRAARRRER RRER
RERBMNEMNERNE - ARFRDHREKEEERTAD
IO TRESAERA AR TRIE AEARERE
B BERR ARARRERACEEEER
STRDPTE M ARRE T AN - EE SR EBEMN RE
RARBNER - UERSKFOREER -

BRAARRRIRNEEE AR ERNER SRR AFER

[EERRSE | —& -

EEm
HE2022F12A318EFE - NATAIHBSETAD
NMIBAZ AN 2R LB B R AR BISATEE - ANF
WATE SRR D R E LK E S SIS
RNARZERI A ETAES W EES -

WMEHENEMEY
BEER2022F12A3THBEANERETHSHAE
ERREAITRENSERMBERIBERBREFE -

EXREROANREHLMEE -
BEEgWmEN—#0 -

HEXME - GBEA

EEERW
IDREREFERERAF
BiEY

EFETRE

REES
2023F3AH23H

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f

89



Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of WEILONG Delicious Global
Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 100 to 208, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2022;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, R Il K B ] R T
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Revenue recognition

o Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter

RRNE#R @)
BRETEEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRETER EPNBENAEERERNSZE
Revenue recognition In addressing this key audit matter, we performed the following
WA SR procedures:

Refer to Note 2.23 Summary of significant accounting policies —
revenue recognition to the consolidated financial statements.

2R HUERRIM T2 23BAG A BRME — WARER -

The Group is engaged in the production and sale of spicy snack
food. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group
recognized net revenue from sales of goods amounting to
RMB4,632,221,000. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized
at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

EEBERERRRE R M EE RIFE - 8122022912 431
HIESFE  EEEERHEEERFRAARYE4,632,221,000
TC o HEEMRARBEEFIREE EE SO HREER

The Group also offers certain rebates (including volume rebates
and trade incentives) to its customers. These rebates are
accounted for as a deduction from revenue.
BEEETAEFPREE TITN(RELEFNRZS8E) - %
S MARTHEBA SR

We considered revenue recognition is a key audit matter because
of large volume of transactions and large number of customers
in different locations and hence significant effort was spent on
auditing revenue recognition.

BB AERRE—IAFRBAFIE - DARRSERK
BETRAMBERERF  ARAESETRABRBIEEE T K

45 -
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HRRIEZRRE FHE - HAIDHITUTIER

- Understood, evaluated and tested the controls over revenue
recognition;

- TE - FHME RIS ARERARRR A

—  Checked, on a sampling basis, revenue transactions to
customer contracts to identify terms and conditions relating
to the transfer of control over the products sold and assessed
the Group's timing of revenue recognition with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

—  DABABRAR ZEEP A REITRY - UAHEE BT
EEMNEHIEEE BRI ZGY - WRERTEE
AR 2K B SR B EV A TR

—  Checked, on a sampling basis, revenue transactions to
supporting evidence (e.g. sales orders and goods receipt
notes);

— DA EBMAR S BB (ST E RS m
W) HEFTAZ S
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

RRNE#R @)
BRETEEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ETNIREERREENSE

Checked, on a sampling basis, revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end date to
supporting evidence (e.g. goods receipt notes and other
relevant documents) to assess whether they are recorded in
the proper periods;

LART SIS B 45 B AT A BRI A 2 5 B2 37 51t 35
1B (08 mm iR K B AR A S ) T TAZ S - DARTIE A RRES

HEEE

i3

Checked, on a sampling basis, transaction of rebates to
supporting evidence (e.g. sales contracts);

LA S ST 5 B S 3 1 38k (NSH A R #1T1%
#

Assessed the Group's provision for estimated rebates as
at the financial year end date, considering the Group’s
historical data and the subsequent settlements of rebates;
and

KRERSEBNEL IR LBEENITNERER - SHEES
E R B A B AR HR AR - &

Sent confirmations to customers, on a sampling basis, to
confirm the sales amounts with the customers during the
year.
B R BERE R - NEREFREFHHEE
B o

Based on the procedures performed, we found the revenue
transactions tested were supported by the evidence we gathered.
ERPIHTOERF - BPIR AR EN BRI AR
EULAZZ G
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

RRNE#R @)
BRETEEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ETNIREERREENSE

Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments

B E R E ERTIRE BRI (7 BEREAI 5

Refer to Note 7 Other (losses)/gains, net to the consolidated
financial statements.

L& M B IRRIEE7 E b (B518) W R -

On April 27, 2022, the Company, the controlling shareholders
of the Group and certain pre-IPO investors (collectively, the
“Pre-IPO Investors”), entered into a supplemental share
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to issue and sell an aggregate of 157,626,890 ordinary
shares of the Company with a par value of USD0.00001 each
for a total consideration of USD1,576.2689 (approximately
RMB11,000) to these Pre-IPO Investors. The fair value of these
ordinary shares as at April 27, 2022, the issuance date, was
approximately RMB628,822,000, which was determined by
management with the assistance of an independent external
valuer using valuation models based on the discounted cash
flow method. The difference between the fair value of the
ordinary shares and the cash consideration as mentioned
above was recognized as an “other loss” of approximately
RMB628,811,000 in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022. The
assumptions used in determining the fair value as at the
issuance date included revenue growth rates, long-term
growth rate and discount rate of the Group.

K2022F4R278 - ERF - EEENERBERMETERR
FEBRATRES (FE & XA ARBRATIREE L —Hfx
Bk Bl ERARAERNZEERARBRIKRES
BT R EA 157,626,890 5 2 71 F AR E{E0.00001 % 7T
BB - BEER1,576.2689F L (K AR 11,0007T)
ZELBP2022F4H27B (B TTREH)N AR BEHARAR
#628,822,0007T * HE IR BB LM EDIAE RN &Y 75 B) T
ERFRReRBENAEREETE - TERNALBES
PR e HE 2 MR EEHARE628,811,0007T7E & EEE
F2022F 1231 B IEFENEHIBRETHERIR EMME
Bl EEFRETEHNAABERMEANRREEES
EHRAERE  KERRERIFTHRE o
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In addressing this key audit matter, we performed the following

procedures:
IR Ag R FEN - RPIERTATIRR -

—  Discussed with management to understand the

background and substance of the transaction;
— HEBENWMILTHIZINERRAE

—  Inspected the supplemental share purchase agreement to

understand the key terms of the transaction;
— REWHIEBERmE TR INBERIER
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

RRNE#R @)
BRETEEHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RS NRERREENSE

We considered this is a key audit matter because the significant
management assumptions applied in the valuation and the
resulting other loss recognized is significant to the consolidated

financial statements.

B Lt =RG R EA FR AN EREAMEBRED
EANERNRR LA EEN B HEAE RS G 5mR

MEBENX °

Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent external valuer; and

FHEBINBEERNER BN REFEN - Rk

Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation models
and key assumptions (revenue growth rates, long-term
growth rate and discount rate), with the assistance of our
internal valuation experts:

ERMASEEZROHET @ s EHERE RERR
FBAERE  KEERERTRE)NESIE -

Assessed the appropriateness of revenue growth rates by
considering historical results and the management'’s profit
forecast;

BAZRELAERNERENMERA - FFHHKRAER
EHEBM

Assessed the appropriateness of long-term growth rate

with the economic forecasts in China; and
RIERBLCETR R KBS REAEEN &

Assessed the appropriateness of discount rate by
considering comparable companies’ weighted average
costs of capital in the open market.
BBEEALAREARTS O IETFHERKE -
AR EEEE I -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the significant

assumptions applied by management in assessing the fair value
of the ordinary shares at the issuance date were supported by
the evidence we gathered.

REBFTAITEOET RO ENBBERIFE R B ET AT
BRNEITEBRN A A BERMERNESRR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in
WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd 2022 Annual Report (the “annual
report”) other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other information
including the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining other
information, including the Company Profile, Corporate Information,
Financial Overview, Corporate Governance Report, Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management, Report of the Directors and the other
sections to be included in the annual report, is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit
Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Peter Man Kam Tsang.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 23, 2023
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For the year ended December 31,

BZ12AMBLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE AR®T T AREETTT
Revenue from contracts REEFEREAN
with customers A 5 4,632,221 4,800,200
Cost of sales of goods SHE A 5,8 (2,672,616) (3,007,169)
Gross profit EF 1,959,605 1,793,031
Distribution and selling expenses I LI EEH 8 (633,300) (520,613)
Administrative expenses EIRE A 8 (481,687) (359,110)
Net impairment gains/(losses) CREERBERE(BE)
on financial assets JREE 3.1 182 (303)
Other income, net Hi U A JF5E 6 107,578 152,666
Other (losses)/gains, net Hih(E518), Wz F 58 7 (597,686) 11,715
Operating profit KEFE 354,692 1,077,386
Finance income BE U A 11 71,067 24,782
Finance costs A& R A 11 (13,382) (5,536)
Finance income, net BMEWAFEE 11 57,685 19,246
Profit before income tax Fir15%4 50 758 412,377 1,096,632
Income tax expense FGHER 12 (261,080) (269,903)
Profit for the year FRFE 151,297 826,729
Profit is attributable to: AT &F BT :
— Owners of the Company NI =N 151,297 826,729
Earnings per share for AATHEE AENL
profit attributable to owners FBNERER
of the Company (RMB) (AR®)
Basic earnings per share BRERZF 13 0.07 0.41
Diluted earnings per share GRETE R T 13 0.07 0.41

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BHGEERER

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARKETT
Profit for the year FERFHE 151,297 826,729
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hihir ez, (BE)
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss ~ FJEFHHIEEIEZEHIER
— Exchange differences on translation —REGINETER
of foreign operations M =5 (16,500) 831
Items that may not be reclassified to TR EH D EEEEN
profit or loss HH
— Exchange differences on translation —HRERRFIE
of the Company M =5 115,880 (43,048)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMGERE (BE) -
for the year, net of tax HIBRBIE 99,380 (42,217)
Total comprehensive income for the year  FR&GZAUWNFHELE 250,677 784,512
Total comprehensive income for UT&ELFEEER
the year is attributable to: FEkmREE
— Owners of the Company . VNGIEZ 2N 250,677 784,512

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be it & G457 & ISR 8 LAREFT P E—HFRIAE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

ERERSRIERERAT 1 01
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

BHEEARE

As at December 31,

M12831H
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARETT AREETTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N&E 15 1,127,556 964,449
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 533,705 181,203
Intangible assets BEE 17 21,445 9,740
Term deposits with initial term AR A =8 A N &Y
over three months TEBIER 23 1,603,886 954,340
Deferred income tax assets REFBHEE 29 68,827 42,190
Other non-current assets HiIEmENEE 20 17,730 52,402
Total non-current assets B EERE 3,373,149 2,204,324
Current assets REBEE
Trade, other receivables B 5 R E A FEW SRIE K
and prepayments A RIE 19 240,048 319,007
Inventories FE 21 599,263 604,255
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBEFEBEZSH:TA
profit or loss EHREZNSREE 3.3 382,440 802,103
Restricted cash SRR & 22 - 294
Term deposits with initial term over MR EARR A= A L&Y
three months TEBER 23 1,020,982 766,331
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEEEED 22 1,314,453 494,275
Total current assets MEEERE 3,557,186 2,986,265
Total assets EERE 6,930,335 5,190,589
Liabilities aE
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Borrowings EEN 28 161,180 64,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 1,966 7,170
Deferred income EEWA 26 196,033 160,316
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHARE 29 46,498 33,662
Total non-current liabilities ERDBEERE 405,677 265,148
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMEMNFRIE 27 689,732 593,855
Contract liabilities aRBE 5 225,261 180,583
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRSEL B & 81,795 77,417
Borrowings EEN 28 120 396,112
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 3,338 7,545
Total current liabilities mEAEARE 1,000,246 1,255,512
Total liabilities BEHE 1,405,923 1,520,660
Net assets EEZFE 5,524,412 3,669,929

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 5 EEBEX

As at December 31,

RW12A318
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B E AR%ET R ARBTFT
Equity Ex
Share capital ik 24 155 137
Other reserves H b f#E 25 3,226,009 1,481,512
Retained earnings BIF&EF 2,298,248 2,188,280
Equity attributable to owners ZiN/NEIET 2N
of the Company JEfG R 5,524,412 3,669,929
Total equity ERBE 5,524,412 3,669,929
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 6,930,335 5,190,589

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 208 were
approved by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2023 and were signed

on its behalf:

Mr. Weiping Liu

BEFERE
Director

EF

LA HEERBEREEBENRME—HRIE -

F 1002208 B A I EHRERE 1K 2023F3 23K
BEeE THATAIRARE

Mr. Hongzhi Peng
TRERE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SPHEREDR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AREESFAARE

Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
PN H At BIFAA &t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at January 1, 2021 R2021F1 518 &R - 166,564 1,465,700 1,632,264
Comprehensive income/(loss) mEekE(E8)
Profit for the year FAFE - - 826,729 826,729
Other comprehensive loss Hikr e e - (42,217 - (42,217)
Total comprehensive(loss)/income %4 (FiE) B - (42,217) 826,729 784,512
Transactions with owners HESEEAETH
in their capacity as owners: x5
Profit appropriation to MBS BEET R
statutory surplus reserves {1 25(b) = 68,160 (68,160) =
Capital injection 1B 25(a) 137 3,600,554 - 3,600,691
Repurchase of shares in connection EBRERRRESHIRE
with Pre-IPO Investments islzlien) 25(a) - (1,802,065) - (1,802,065)
Dividends declared EEIRRE 14 = (560,000) (35,989) (595,989)
Share-based payments-value AR B ETEE R
of employee services —EERBEE 25(c) = 50,519 = 50,519
Treasury shares held for FEX BRI Bz
the RSU Scheme RN EERA 25(d) = 3) = 3)
Total transactions with owners EREREREAETH
in their capacity as owners R 137 1,357,165 (104,149) 1,253,153
Balance at December 31, 2021 M2021F12 8318 ek 137 1,481,512 2,188,280 3,669,929

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & 3tfEm= & 8k

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ENRERFEE AERL
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
(&N Hitif# 6 BEFER &t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz AR¥TR AR¥Tx AR%®Tx AR®Tx
Balance at January 1, 2022 R2022F 1B 1B H&EeR 137 1,481,512 2,188,280 3,669,929
Comprehensive income mEWE
Profit for the year FAFE - - 151,297 151,297
Other comprehensive income HAitfRE W - 99,380 - 99,380
Total comprehensive income RAkBEE - 99,380 151,297 250,677
Transactions with owners in their BREREEAETH
capacity as owners: X5
Profit appropriation to MEIBEEERH
statutory surplus reserves B 25(b) - 41,645 (41,645) -
Capital injection AE 7(a) 1 - - 1
Issuance of ordinary shares related to Rt E R AR REIT
IPO, net of underwriting commissions Tak  HkeHERe
and other issuance costs N E 0 BEITRUR 25(a) 7 876,360 - 876,367
Share-based payments-value of LARR D BERE IR
employee services —EEREEE 25(c) - 98,133 - 98,133
Share-based payments related to BRAREENIRERREN
Pre-IPO Investments Wi REREE R 7(@a) - 628,811 - 628,811
Transfer to retained BREERFAT
earnings — subsidiary cancellation NG - (316) 316 -
Deferred tax impact related to HREE A/ l«XHﬁﬁ?@z
share-based payments to employees ERHNRBEBNE
pinni=)= 2 29 - 484 - 484
Total transactions with owners BERBEEAETH
in their capacity as owners RBBEE 18 1,645,117 (41,329) 1,603,806
Balance at December 31, 2022 M2022512 A31 A W &EER 155 3,226,009 2,298,248 5,524,412
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in  _E#lt & (48 &5 8 8h 5% fie BB B o — OF B o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRETRER

For the year ended December 31,

HZE12831BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B = AR¥TT ARBTIT
Cash flows from operating activities EEEHMEHESRE
Cash generated from operations ,%& RS 30(a) 1,456,451 1,169,803
Interest paid 27 A (12,792) (14,312)
Interest received BEHAE 25,273 11,120
Income taxes paid EAATER (265,988) (277,485)
Net cash generated from RETEBRE
operating activities BHERE 1,202,944 889,126
Cash flows from investing activities REZHEENEESRE
Payments for acquisition of property, BEVE BER
plant and equipment BABERK (288,482) (377,290)
Payment of intangible assets BIZEENK (8,715) (15,198)
One-off payment made for purchase BE L BREELE
of right-of-use assets — IR R (368,581) =
Deposit payment related to land-use-rights 2+ {3 F#EA BRI RE SN - (6,000)
Return of deposit payment related to SR FEREEEN
land-use-rights REBEEHFK 2,000 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair BENAAABEFTZAEES
value through profit or loss STABHEZNSREE 3.3 (5,137,265) (11,736,802)
Redemption of financial assets at BOARRBEFEEREES
fair value through profit or loss SASHERNSHEE 3.3 5,625,232 11,854,404
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  WMEKRENTE
plant and equipment I 4,336 2,838
Increase in term deposits with initial TIIRER A=A A LA EH
term over three months FREm (2,382,606) (2,375,658)
Redemption of term deposits with BEYHREBRA=EALLR
initial term of over three months TEBITERR 1,570,674 822,624
Payment to a third party H%:EH?X (50,000) -
Net cash out for the settlement EERBARA
of forward contract fﬁ@mﬂ:‘ﬁt%ﬁ 7 (5,238) =
Government grants received BFHAEENDE W
related to assets BTN 26 42,305 50,065
Repayment of loans to third parties EZHERRBE 200 200
Net cash used in investing activities REFDARTFE (996,140) (1,780,817)

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERER

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
P& AR¥TT ARBTIT
Cash flows from financing activities BETHEENEESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEFPTS IR 1,122,300 664,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BBIBITER (1,425,000) (520,000)
Repayments of borrowing from the Evcezlit i Rkl
companies controlled by the NAERED
Controlling Shareholders (BN 33 - (73,366)
Repayment to the Controlling Shareholders  [A1#EA& AR ER B 3% 33 - (671)
Capital injection A& 11 3,600,691
Proceeds from issuance of HERAFABEEMBITRN
shares upon IPO FrigzIa 25(a) 907,698 -
Repurchased of shares in connection BEEHAARBEEALE
with Pre-IPO Investments szl - (1,802,065)
Dividends paid EfRE 14 - (595,989)
Payments for listing expenses St ERR A (15,086) (4,723)
Repayment the principal elements BEHEEEW
of lease liabilities K&HH (5,231) (7,401)
Net cash generated from RMEETBEEN
financing activities HEFHE 584,692 1,260,476
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 MIR& ZEBYHEINFHE 791,496 368,785
Cash and cash equivalents FOHEe Rk
at the beginning of the year Eﬁé%{*% 22 494,275 161,740
Effects of exchange rate changes EXFBUReRALE
on cash and cash equivalents {E%E’]ﬁ’ 28,682 (36,250)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of EXREER
the year ReEEY 22 1,314,453 494,275
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in it & GfIR & k& 3% FE ARSI P 3T — GFRIEE o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on July 6, 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Company Act (Cap 22, Law
3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is the offices of Maples Corporate
Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the production and sale of spicy snack food (the “Listing Business”)
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The ultimate holding company of the Company is HH Global Capital
Ltd (FIFI2ERE A HFBRAF], “HH Global Capital”). The ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Liu Weiping (ZIf&F) and his brother Mr.
Liu Fuping (ZIf&8) (the “Controlling Shareholders”), who are also
the chairman and executive director of the board of the directors (the
“Board"”) of the Company, respectively.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since December 15, 2022 (the
“Listing”) by way of its initial public offering (the “IPO").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and rounded to nearest thousand Yuan, unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXSHBEREw)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1. Basis of preparation 2.1, iRBIE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and interpretations issued by IFRSs Interpretations
Committee (IFRSs IC) applicable to companies reporting under
IFRSs. The financial statements comply with IFRSs as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The
consolidated financial statements has been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing January 1, 2022:

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use — Amendments to IAS 16

e Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract —
Amendments to IAS 37

e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020, and

e Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments
to IFRS 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1. Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 2.1, REEE (&)
The above standards did not have any impact on the amounts FEEYEHBTHERERANSEEE
recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly AR ERERTSHE s R RAME
affect the current or future periods. {E{a[E KL -

EXETBRBE )

AR RRR T R R R
HTHETSEER - S ENBITAR
HEEMR2022F12 A31 B HRE BB A
ExablER  BREAEERTERA -
TERTZEER - BRI AN RETSHER
RE AR REPERATBRAORRZ
RPEFEATE -

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting
standards and interpretations have been published and are
not mandatory for December 31, 2022 reporting periods and
have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards,
amendments or interpretations are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting

periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

New Standards, interpretations and amendments

Effective date

FETER ~ RERETA EXMEH
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts January 1, 2023
(BB B TS 3R 5 2RIV 1 75% Rz &R 202351 H1H

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(IR B s AR BN 1055k &
(BBt )EE 2858 (IEETA)
Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2
(ERR g ERDE 1R R
(BRI BEREENBEBRAEF25HR)
(EETA)
Amendments to IAS 8
(BB g 2ER)SE SR (IBETA)
Amendments to IAS 12

(B ERDE1 25 (BRTAN)
Amendment to IFRS 16

CEIBR B iR 5 22 RIDE 1658 (1B ETAR)
Amendments to IAS 1

(BB ERE 19 (BETA)
Amendment to IAS 1
CEBREErERNE 157 (BET )
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Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associates or joint ventures
BEEMEBENRREECE HNEEDER
AE

Disclosure of accounting policies

SRR EE

Definition of accounting estimates
BEHEHOER
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities

arising from a single transaction
HE - GMESCBERBBEEBEIRLEMREN
Leases liability in a sale and leaseback
EREENEEAR
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
BESBARBIIERE
Non current liabilities with covenants
MR IERE A S

To be determined

N

S

January 1, 2023

2023F1H1H

January 1, 2023
2023F1R1H
January 1, 2023

2023%1H1H
January 1, 2024
2024F1R18
January 1, 2024
2024F1A1E
January 1, 2024
20241718



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB IRR M

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Contd)

2.2. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under common control by
the Group (refer to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB IRR M

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Contd)

2.2. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Cont’d)
(b) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognized in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate
is reduced but joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.3. Business combinations

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
for business combinations not under common control,
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.3. Business combinations (Cont'd)
(a) Business combinations (Cont’d)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
. consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.4. Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.

2.5. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker (“CODM").

The Board of the Company assesses the financial performance
and position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions. The
board of directors, which has been identified as being the
chief operating decision maker, consists of the chief executive
officer, the chief financial officer and the manager for

corporate planning.

2.6. Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is HK Dollar (“HKD"), while Group’s

presentation is presented in Renminbi (“RMB").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.6. Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(b) Transactions and balances

(9]

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognized in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the statement of profit
. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the

or loss, within “Finance (costs)/income, net”

statement of profit or loss on a net basis within “Other
(losses)/gains, net”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet

o income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation less impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statements of profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line depreciation
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values
over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term as follows:

o Buildings 20 years
e Machinery 10 years
e Vehicles 3-5 years
e Furniture and office equipment 5 years
° Electronic equipment 3 years
e Building improvement and decoration 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within
“other (losses)/gains, net” in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.8. Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(9]

Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programmers
are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognized as intangible
assets where the following criteria are met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the software so
that it will be available for use

o management intends to complete the software and
use or sell it

e thereis an ability to use or sell the software

o it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits

o adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
software are available, and

o the expenditure attributable to the software during
its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of
the software include employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalized development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortized from the point at which the asset is
ready for use.

Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that
do not meet the criteria in (a) above are recognized as
an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset
in a subsequent period.

Amortization methods and periods

The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited useful
life using the straight-line method over the following
periods:

o Software 3-10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.9. Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets with definite life but not ready for use are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10. Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI")
or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.10. Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
(b) Recognition and derecognition

()

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at financial assets at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.10. Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Measurement (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

(9]

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognized in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments

at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following

the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such

investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognized in other gains/(losses) in the statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal

of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at

FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in

fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.10. Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

(d)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit loss associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, impairment is measured as lifetime
expected loss.

For other receivables, impairment is measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.11. Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is

reported in the balance sheet where the company currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in

the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.12.

2.13.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under IFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognized in
accordance with the principles of IFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party
for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognized as part of
the cost of the investment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labor and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognized
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 19 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other major licensed payment institution,
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company’s
equity instruments, for example as the results of a share-
based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the
Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. When such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the owners of the
Company.

Shares allotted and issued under the restricted share units
scheme (“RSU Scheme”) is treated as treasury shares and
deducted from contributed equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.17. Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.18. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period

of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in

profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability

for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.19.Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.20. Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Contd)
2.20. Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
(b) Deferred income tax

EXETBRBE )

2.20. BN R ARSEFRASBL (42)
(b) EEFTEH

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realized, or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognized for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.21. Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(o)

Liabilities for wages and salaries

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

Pension and other obligations

The entities within the Group registered in the PRC
make employee benefit contributions based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan, unemployment plan,
work injury plan, maternity plan and medical benefit plan
organized by relevant government authorities in the PRC
on a monthly basis. The government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable to
the existing and future retired employees under these
plans and the Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
Assets of the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separate from those of the Group.

Housing provident fund

The PRC employees of the Group are also entitled to
participate in various government-sponsored housing
provident fund. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to those funds based on a certain percentage of the
employee’s salaries. The Group's liabilities in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions payable in each
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREFBRBE@)
POLICIES (Contd)
2.21. Employee benefits (Cont'd) 221 BERFR (&)
(d) Share-based payments (d) URGAERNSRK
Share-based compensation benefits are provided BB R IR ER RIS E =
to employees via the RSU Scheme or third parties. BERBMHUBRND EERNENETR o
Information relating to the RSU Scheme is set out in Note B ZREIA D B A2 A B R
10. RHIEET0 ©
Restricted Share Units (“RSUs”) of the Group T [B] 5 R R 5 B ([ IR HIER
1 EM])
For grant of RSUs, the total amount to be expensed is BT ZRBIRDEME - B HR
determined by reference to the fair value of the Group’s SEIRBETFANERRMDH AR
shares at the grant date. BEST -
The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, BERANRBHERN(BMEEENE
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting BIEHHEEKNER)ER - RN
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, AR NEBREBREIGHETE
the Group revises its estimates of the number of RSUs HIEEEBNTREH IR BB EE
that are expected to vest based on service condition. It HEEE o BN ERSPEREFRGE
recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, SHEFTMFE (WA ) @ WHRERSET
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment FAFEEE o
to equity.
Share-based payment transaction among group entities EFER R AR SR
Z

The grant by the Company of share incentive plan RATIBRERER T AmAE "R E
over its equity instruments to the employees of NEEBEEE TG BT 2%
subsidiaries undertakings in the Group is treated as a BALE BESHEERBEHNAAE
capital contribution. The fair value of employee services BE2BETANALEBEESE A8
received, measured by reference to the grant date BEANERAEINEHE QT EREDN
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as an 158 - WHEHEARD R LB
increase to investment in subsidiaries undertakings, with WE R AREDS ©

a corresponding credit to equity in separate financial
statements of the Company.

Modifications and Cancellations 1E 20 FIER

The Group may modify the terms and conditions on which RE B A& o 1% T IR0 S Bh SE B A9 (5
share incentive awards were granted. If a modification AMGEF - INBASEIB I T IR FHER
increases the fair value of the equity instruments granted, TEMAAREE  AIBRTFHFREAL
the incremental fair value granted is included in the BEFACFHGEEEEN®RDIES
measurement of the amount recognized for the services RIGHEZNSENEE - REBEE
received over the remainder of the vesting year. A grant MEUHY k45 B 15 T 0I5 B 2B
of share incentive awards, that is cancelled or settled REINREE - NEERISERAFE
during the vesting year, is treated as an acceleration of AR R EBEE AR REER
vesting. The Group immediately recognizes the amount S o

that otherwise would have been recognized for services
received over the remainder of the vesting year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.22.

2.23.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. No significant element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with a prepayment or a credit term up to
90 days, which is consistent with market practice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.23. Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally upon the acceptance of the goods. The costs of
transporting finished goods to a customer are recognized in
distribution and selling expenses when occurred.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with
rights of return, volume rebates and trade incentive. The rights
of return, volume discounts and trade incentive give rise to
variable consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right of
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The
requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied in order to determine the amount of
variable consideration that can be included in the transaction
price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead
of revenue, a liability is recognized. A right of return asset
(and the corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also
recognized for the right to recover products from a customer.

Variable consideration: volume discounts

The goods are often sold with retrospective volume discounts
based on aggregate sales over a 12-month period. Revenue
from these sales is recognized based on the price specified
in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for
the discounts, using the expected value method, and revenue
is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.23. Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Trade incentive - co-advertising services

The Group may enter into agreements with its customers in
relation to product advertising and promotion, under which
the customers will be entitled to an advertising allowance. If
no distinct service can be identified, the amounts due by the
Group to its customers would be deducted from revenue.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a payment is received,
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods. Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group satisfied
the performance obligation under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods to the customer).

2.24. Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.25. Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXSHBEREw)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.25. Leases (Cont'd) 2.25. & (%)

134

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the company, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and

O restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.25.

2.26.

2.27.

Leases (Cont'd)
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received, and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment and other non-current assets are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets. Note 26 provides further information on
how the Group accounts for government grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.28. Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the
net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets, see Note 7 below.

Interest income on financial assets at amortized cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest
method is recognized in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets, see Note 11 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.
3.1. Financial risk factors
This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks
and how these risks could affect the Group’s future financial
performance. Current year profit and loss information has been

B S B E

3.1. B EREE

included where relevant to add further context. N o

Risk
E

o}

Exposure arising from

1 0 SR

7N B o ) 2 A 5 T e 0 B S PR B B R
RBEAEBARARMBERANEZE - °OH
ARFEBRER (NER) AIEINEEINA

Measurement

FTE

Market risk — foreign
exchange
M5 E -5 NE

Market risk —
interest rate
BB

Recognized financial assets and liabilities not denominated in
the functional currency

WIATHRE B ENERACREERAE

Interest income/costs from cash and cash equivalents and
borrowing as a result of changes in interest rates

B EBEMEENRE RRSEEYHN
EREIFILBURA AR

Cash flow forecasting,
Sensitivity analysis

WEmETER -
BREE ST

Sensitivity analysis

BREDHT

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, term deposits with Aging analysis
initial term over three months, financial assets at fair value Credit ratings
through profit or loss, trade receivables and other receivables

EERR RERBREEY  XRERE - VRERA=EA N L& ARl DT
EHEH - MAnBEAEEEZFHAZHIERN AR
SREE - B RUIGRIEN R EM BRI

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Maturity analysis

REE €A ERREMER FHIB 57

The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group regularly monitors its exposure and currently has
not used any derivative financial instruments to hedge any of
these financial risks.

(@) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk primarily arises from
recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by minimizing non-functional
currency transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

3. BiiEmE b

A (ot
=)

EE (&)

3.1. B EBREEE)

()

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transaction settled in RMB. The functional
currencies of the subsidiaries in mainland are RMB,
while the functional currencies of the Company and
subsidiaries outside mainland of the PRC are HKD
or USD. Both the entities in and outside mainland
of the PRC have assets and liabilities like cash at
bank and other major licensed payment institution,
restricted cash, term deposits with initial term over
three months are denominated in USD and HKD.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the fluctuation in
exchange rate.

The Group has continued to closely track and
manage its exposure to fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates confronted by the majority of the
Group's deposits denominated in foreign currencies
during the reporting period.

Exposure
The exposure of the Group’s foreign exchange risk
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

() WmHEERGE)

(i)

SE ()
AEETRAETELSE - KED
RBTVANRKEGEE - R E
RANDEEEE RARE - A
NE R E AP BEAM AN B A )
MIEE B RBITTRETT © U
R IR BRI A EE
REE - MRRTT R EME B
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K w6 HARR A =18 A A £ &0 E B4R
TFRAERTTRABTTAHE) © SME
[\ f I E ZOm B T AR A o

RIEHRE - AEEEHERY)
B E R AR KB AR B ASNE
SHE BT 3R P TED il 0 S/ EE B ¢
PRk

Wy a
REREEIR - AEEASNERR
MO

As at December 31,

M12831H
2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Cash at bank and other major PRIT R E M B35
licensed payment institution TIHEENIR S
USD (functional currency — HKD) ET(hEEEET) 91,141 179,479
USD (functional currency — RMB) EL (e EB-ARE) 18,616 119,016
HKD (functional currency — USD) B (e EE-£7T) 13 2
RMB (functional currency — USD) AREE(ThEEE-=TT) 3,924 1
RMB (functional currency — HKD) AR (Thae & 8T) 10 =
Term deposits with initial term MR EARR B =E AN L&Y
over three months TE BATF R
USD (functional currency — HKD) E (e s ET) 797,182 -

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MEEERE®)
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1. I EBEEE)
(a) Market risk (Cont'd) (a) WERKRE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d) () sMEREE(E)
Exposure (Cont'd) WO (&)
The aggregate net foreign exchange losses PIBEE P RERAIE I8 F5ER
recognized in profit or loss were: H-E
For the years ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 5t A E b (j&18) Uk
included in other (losses)/gains, SFEERIE KU
net (Note 7) (E18) FE(MisE7) 13,185 (6,148)
Sensitivity BRE

As shown in the table above, the Group is primarily
exposed to changes in USD/HKD, USD/RMB, HKD/
USD and RMB/USD exchange rates. The sensitivity
of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates
arises mainly from USD denominated financial
instruments.

W ERAUR - AREEREERSE
TSR ERSARE B
T ETRARE,FETTEERN

EEXEREAETAHENEZRE T

Ho

As at December 31,

M2A318
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR®TFT
Impact on post tax profit HEENRNTE
USD/HKD exchange rate - weaken 5% 357t/ B TEX-E2{E5% (37,087) (6,730)
USD/HKD exchange rate — strengthen 5% 27T,/ 78 7T B R FHE5% 37,087 6,730
USD/RMB exchange rate — weaken 5% %71,/ ARMEEZ-E/E5% (698) (4,463)
USD/RMB exchange rate - strengthen 5% 7T,/ A RIEFEZ-FHES% 698 4,463
HKD/USD exchange rate — weaken 5% 7T,/ T IE R-E2(E5% - =
HKD/USD exchange rate — strengthen 5% &7t/ 37T B &—THE5% - =
RMB/USD exchange rate — weaken 5% AR /FETEXR-E{E5% (147) -
RMB/USD exchange rate - strengthen 5% AR /EITEZ-FHES% 147 -
RMB/HKD exchange rate — weaken 5% AR /B TEZ-_F7{E5% - -
RMB/HKD exchange rate — strengthen 5% AR /7T fE &-FHE5% - -
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

BB IRR M

3. MBEBREER®
3.1, B EBE R )
(@) TIBEM(A)

Interest rate risk (i) FEm
The Group's income and operating cash flows are REEHBKARKESIRSREE
substantially independent from changes in market RETEMSHEEBTE - ¥
interest rate. Borrowings carried at floating rates BEFEAEERERSRER
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk, }\;\ﬂlg,ng  E R ER D W LA Bl & F
which is partially offset by cash held at variable RIFENRLHTIKE  MESE
rates, whereas borrowings carried at fixed rates FEREEmEBR AL BEXRE
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. ﬁ
All of the Group's borrowings have no variable rate RBERR - KEBEERL
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. An 45T B o Bt ET 2855I B EA
analysis by maturities is provided in Note 28. BT -
As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, if the interest 72022 K2021F12 4318 -
rates of borrowing, cash and cash equivalents, HEZF ReRRSSEY %
restricted cash, and term deposits with initial term PR 1|28 & LA X 9046 BARR & = 1@ B
over three months had been increased/decreased VA - BT HATE BRI 2R 38 o0, iRl >
by 50 basis points with all other variables held SOMEEE: - BFrE Hibh B 815
constant, the change of the post-tax profit would (RIS . BRI ER B S
be disclosed as follows: WEWT :
The Group NEE
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARETFT
Net profit increase/(decrease) SER G, CRd)
— increase in interest rate —FI =R 30 15,378 8,343
— decrease in interest rate —F| =S > (15,378) (8,343)
The majority of the Group’s borrowings carried at $’$lj<*5’\ﬁ JERERE AT

fixed rates is either close to current market rates or

SREEESNER —FNER -
repayable within one year and hence the group is N

Iﬁt%@ﬂzﬁﬁﬁuu{ﬂﬂ%ﬁ
BEHEER

not subject to any significant fair value interest rate
risk.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk

()

(ii)

Risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit
risk of the Group’s financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
term deposits with initial term over three months,
trade receivables, other receivables and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, arises
from potential default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts
of these instruments.

All of the Group’s trade receivables and other
receivables have no collateral.

The Group assessed the credit quality of the
counterparties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history, forward looking information
and other factors. Management also regularly
reviews the recoverability of these receivables and
follow up the disputes or amounts overdue, if any.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss:

o cash and cash equivalents

. restricted cash

e term deposits with initial term over three
months

. trade receivables, and

. other receivables

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and term
deposits with initial term over three months

As at December 31, 2022, all of the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and term
deposits with initial term over three months were
held in state-owned or reputable commercial banks,
which management believes are of high credit
quality. Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables mainly represents the trade
receivables from direct sale customers and several
distributors for sale of spicy snack food. The Group
applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
As at December 31, 2022, the expected loss rates
of trade receivables ranged from 0.03% to 4.65%
(2021: ranged from 0.03% to 4.57%). Thus, the
loss allowance for trade receivables was not material
during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Other receivables

Other receivables at the end of each reporting
period were mainly deposits from third parties and
loans to third parties. The Group applies the IFRS
9 general approach to measuring expected credit
losses for all other receivables. The directors of the
Company consider the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:
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FEREmERITY - BEENREZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Other receivables (Cont'd)

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change
to the counterparty’s ability to meet its

obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the counterparty;

e significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the counterparty, including
changes in the payment status of the counterparty.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where other receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.
Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in

profit or loss.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Over the term of the financial assets, the
Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely

basis.

As at December 31, 2022, the expected loss rate
of other receivables carried at amortized cost
was minimal. Thus, the loss allowance for other
receivables carried at amortized cost as at December

31, 2022 was not material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3.
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

E]J’i%@ ﬁ%iin/?:}
3.1. BB EREZE#)
(b) FEREE)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (i) U BEFEARZETAE
R 2 EE

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation ZERNAMRELEEER TN

to the investment in wealth management products,
structured deposit and fund management products
issued by reputable banks and other financial service
institutions that are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. As at December 31, 2022, the
maximum exposure was RMB382,440,000 (2021:
RMB802,103,000).

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized
in profit or loss.

During the reporting period, the following gains/
(losses) were recognized in profit or loss in relation
to impaired financial assets:

RITRE S B ARTS B AT T
R R EEF2 B EZEHETA
EHERNEMER A8 NF
RERECEBEMEBANEE
BB - R2022F 128318 © &
A A A AR 382,440,0007T
(20214 : AR#¥802,103,000
TT) °

EREENREBRN RS’

2
o

KSR - U TEDRES R
BEEABNEE(BR)ERE
R

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLLFE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Net impairment losses on financial ~ F#H 4 /L& ZR{E
assets at the beginning of the B8 F R (FE19)
year (Note 19) 903 800
Movement in loss allowance for E S RIGIENEER
trade receivables Db (211) 429
Movement in loss allowance for H i e B B e 1R
other receivables LEEEE) 229 74
Receivables written off during the 45 (A A 4 5K Uk 2] E i fE Uk
year as uncollectible for other SRIE T 5 ) FE U R IR
receivables - (200)
Receivables written off during the RN A EEULEIE 5 e
year as uncollectible for trade SRIB TS &Y FEI R IR
receivables (94) =
Unused amount reversed for A fE W B R B R FOE
other receivables LA (200) (200)
Net impairment losses on financial & RM & B E ERERETE
assets at the end of the year FEE(MIEE19)
(Note 19) 627 903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Liquidity risk
(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

To manage the liquidity risk, the Company monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Company’s operation and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations cash flows. The Company expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally
generated cash flows from operations.

The maturity analysis of borrowings that shows
the remaining contractual maturities is disclosed in
Note 28. Generally, there is no specific credit period
granted by the suppliers but the related payables
are normally expected to be settled within one year

after receipt of goods or services.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group has cash and
cash equivalents, term deposits with initial term
of over three months, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables of
RMB4,388,191,000 (2021: RMB3,073,172,000),
that can be used for fulfillment obligation or used in

operation to generate cash inflows.

The directors of the Company closely monitor the
Company’s cash flow projections, which cover
a period of not less than twelve months from
December 31, 2022 to enable it to meet its liabilities
and obligations as of the date of this reporting.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows during the reporting

period.

3.

Eﬁﬁ%@ [@’;%ii‘ iZ)
3.1. BB EREZE#)
(0 REBELEK

(i)

EEE B EBHIR

REERDESRR - ARFE
EXRe MRS EBEMAIRER
FEEEERRITRHIKF - LA
REARBNELEMFES IR
ERERENPNTE - KXAF
BERBANMEENKERENR
ERERKREREFTIIRHEE

isE28 BB KB HE DM
BTRHTHERZMER - —&&
mE  HEBTERTHERE
H - (EAERAFE T FOR B B IR
WE G R RISIR —F RS °

M2022512A318 » AEEK
ReRBSEEY  VHBHRA
“EANEMEBRFR - K2R
BEFE A EEFHT AEHiER
NEeREEREZERWFIES
A R ¥ 4,388,191,000 7t (2021
F . AR#3,073,172,0007T)
AAREITERIAREZEF A
EERESRA -

ARREFHRYEEARRAH
REeEREER - ZBARE A
2022F 12 A31 BT 1218
RABVERRE - AR EBEEITHE
AEBHNEERES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1. Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

E\j;},%@ ﬁ%ii‘ Z)
3.1. IR EE#)

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (o) RBELEAKE)
()  Maturities of financial liabilities (Cont’d) () ZELEEZRIER (&)
The Group REEH
Less than Between Between Over 3
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total
P 1225 2235 3ENLE At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%Tr AR¥Tz ARETRT AR%®TR
As at December 31,2022 #2022F12A31H
Borrowings BE% 6,514 8,081 8,845 158,305 181,745
Trade and other payables &5 kEfn
(excluding non-financial ~ ERFIE(TEE
liabilities) FemasE) 399,476 - - - 399,476
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,530 1,091 997 - 5,618
409,520 9,172 9,842 158,305 586,839
As at December 31,2021 #2021%12A31H
Borrowings A 399,642 2,631 3,264 67,743 473,280
Trade and other payables &5 kE At
(excluding non-financial ~ JERFUE(TE4E
liabilities) FemaRE) 355,790 - - - 355,790
Lease liabilities HEBE 8,086 4,727 2,565 1,350 16,728
763,518 7,358 5,829 69,093 845,798
3.2. Capital management 3.2. EAREE

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash, which
includes cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, restricted cash, term deposits with initial
term over three months, borrowings and lease liabilities.

The directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis
taking into account the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through raising new debts as well as redemption of the existing
debts.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of liability-
to-asset ratio, which is calculated as total liabilities divided by
total assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3.
3.2. Capital management (Cont'd)
The liability-to-asset ratio of the Group as at December 31,
2022 and 2021 were as follows:

R EE )

3.2. EXRNEHE(E)
RNREBER2022F K2021F12 A31 BN EE
BERMT

As at December 31,

R12A31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTFT
Total liabilities BERR 1,405,923 1,520,660
Total assets BERE 6,930,335 5,190,589
The liability-to-asset ratio EEBMEXR 20.3% 29.3%

3.3. AAEEMAE

(@) DAEEEBR
AETRMEE R BWMERTIZANE
BEERKTENESHITAAAEE
FRrEH B S BT R 5t o BISH AR
EANBE RSS2 A S
2 AEBD R EIREEES
MIAD A=K - RIETHAES
EBARHIFA -

3.3. Fair value estimation
(a) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made
in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognized and measured at fair value in the
financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the Group has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.
An explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in E—EBf mEEMBEEENEmT
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and AP AHEENTETIARRA
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the BHF)N AR BERBEREHARNT
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used HREIER - AEERENEREE

for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

F i R M T R B TR B AR o
=TAHAE—BR -

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.3. Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.
Recurring fair value
measurements
REMEAAEETE
Note

3.

BO SRR

Bt 75 L e B BB
33@%&@@%@”
(a) AREEBRE)

EoBR: UHENERTHEENS
BT A(FIIIgsMTET R AALE
ETERHERNETE - RS HmER
WREFATEETSEE - Y&
BRI E B E Mt o WETE
TAQAKBEMENREEABALK
BEBUEE  MEIASFAE_"E
& e

FEER W ENEZEERHAH
B SRR AT R IS EURE L - Bl
I/E\-D-I_Akk_i& FE AR AR 5
HRZEBA -

Total
&t
RMB’000

Level 3
E=ZEBR
RMB’000

Level 2
E_EBR
RMB’000

Level 1
F—EBR
RMB’000

i AR¥TIT AR®TRT ARBTRT AR¥TR

At December 31, 2022 R20225612H31H

Financial assets SREE
NARBEFEEHESE
Financial assets at fair value  Zhzt AZHIIBZH IS
through profit or loss BMEE 18 - - 382,440 382,440
At December 31, 2021 7"2021512A31H
Financial assets SEMEE
/Afcf‘i@;ﬁriﬂﬁi\
Financial assets at fair value &8st A B H1B%H
through profit or loss SHEE 18 - - 802,103 802,103
The fair value of the financial assets at fair value through UAREBEEREEE T A EE
profit or loss is estimated by discounting the future cash HNEMEENALBE  JigaE

flows using the expected yield rate with reference to the
benchmark yield rate of the financial investment products
of banks.

There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and
level 3 for recurring fair value measurements during the
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3. Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(b) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items
for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

3.

B EREE )
3.3. AREBEMREF )

(b) ERAEXTAEEBABENAAE
BB (E=ZEHR)
TREVNEZ2022F K%2021F12 A
BNHLEFEF=ERIBENED :

Opening balance as at 202F1 R B LR
January 1, 2022 454,882 220,274 126,947 802,103
Additions NE 471,230 3,960,800 705,235 5,137,265
Settlements HE (933,448)  (4,082,538) (609,246)  (5,625,232)
Fair value gains on AR EBEHESEEFHHA
financial assets at fair EHEENERAENDR
value through profit or loss (Note 7) BEE (E7) 7,336 21,613 1,943 30,892
—includes unrealized gains recognized  —BIENIERERH
in profit or loss AEBUm - 150 2,265 2,415
Exchange difference X ER - - 37,412 37,412
Closing balance as at 2022412 A318
December 31, 2022 FRER - 120,149 262,291 382,440
Financial products
SRER
Investment
Wealth in fund
management  Structured  management
products deposit products Total
HeER
BHER HBEEEX EmRE CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE ARETT ARETRT ARBTR
Opening balance as at January 1, 2021 202141 A1 BEkE# 586,497 305,792 - 892,289
Additions NE 10,679,863 669,700 387,239 11,736,802
Settlements #® (10,833,499) (758,613) (262,292)  (11,854,404)
Fair value gains on AR BETEAEZHTA
financial assets at fair EHERNERAENDR
value through profit or loss (Note 7) ~ B{EUES (iHiE7) 22,021 3,395 2,000 27,416
—includes unrealized gains recognized  -BFERIBFTERL
in profit or loss RERWE 4,882 275 237 5,394
Closing balance as at 20214124318
December 31, 2021 FREHS 454,882 220,274 126,947 802,103
DREERSRIZRBR D

2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3. Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

BB IRR M

() Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarizes the quantitative

information about the significant unobservable inputs

used in level 3 fair value measurements.

MEEREEZ)
3.3. AREEME#E)

(9]

HERABEREXAEENREER
TRAFE=ZEBRAABEFEERN
BEATABRBARBNEEER 2
e -

Description Fair value at December 31, Unobservable Inputs
A AREER12A31H TABRBARE
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBFT
Wealth management - 454,882  The estimated weighted average return rates of
products these products were 2.15% to 4.00% per annum.
BEEm FZEEMBENGINMETILHMER2.15%E
4.00% °
Structured deposit 120,149 220,274  The estimated weighted average return rates of
these products were 1.40% to 3.50% per annum.
rEEMTER ZEEMBFENMGEFHIETHRBRER40%E
3.50% -
Investment in fund 262,291 126,947  The estimated weighted return rates of the

management
products

ESEREMRE

The financial assets measured at fair value through
profit and loss were investment in wealth management
products that usually held for several days, investment in
structured deposit that usually held from several months
up to one year and investment in fund management
products that usually held for several months. The
increase of estimated weighted average return rates will
lead to the higher fair value of the financial products.
If the estimated weighted average return rates had
increased/decreased by 0.5% with all other variables held
constant, the profit before income tax for the year ended
December 31, 2022, would have been approximately
RMB1,069,000 higher/lower (2021: RMB818,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.3. Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
(d) The Group’s valuation processes

For the financial assets, including level 3 fair values, the
Group's finance department performs the valuations. The
finance department reports directly to the chief financial
officer (“CFO"). Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO and finance department
annually, in line with the Group’s balance dates.

The valuation technique is discounted cash flows. Future
cash flows are estimated and discounted using the
expected yield rate with reference to the benchmark yield
rate of the financial investment products of banks.

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in different areas in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes in various jurisdictions. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax
losses are recognized when management considers to be probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized. The outcome of
their actual utilization may be different.

R EE )
3.3. AREEMETE)

(d) ZEEHGERE
AEENPBRELREE(BESE
SERODABE)ETIRE - B
HEEAEETBERS - AEVK
BEM NS ERGERRRE RS
Tilsh - EAEEAEERRE B -

BERMARSREFIE - KRR
TREDNESERTERMREEMN
ERWHKE - KA EET
flET R ArIR -

4. BAEETRHER

SEAEET RAE o R RAEDENEL L
BREMEAE  BEAUEHERELMBREY
RLEBR TRRSEEZRKEM AR -

BIVEA R IEFIE P 1S 80
REERHESHBHANTEN - EEEREE
ERASHBERAELERHE - F2RXH5R
AERBZARETRETE - AEBREES
T RBMBEIIM R SR - R IEETURE R
BHAE - HZEFENRRHRBRESIA
FRHSRHREZR  ZEFERBPTENELER
ETHRNNRRREEREHEERAE

EERERASEL ALY R ZRNIARE
IR BRI - RS RE TR Z
ENRBBENEEREEE - RERERGER
AJRER PN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of spicy
snack food. Majority of the Group’s revenue and business activities
are conducted in the PRC.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business
units based on their products and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

By product type:

e Seasoned flour products, primarily comprising Big Latiao, Mini
Latiao, Spicy Hot Stick, Mini Hot Stick and Kiss Burn.

e  Vegetable products, primarily comprising Konjac Shuang and
Fengchi Kelp.

o Bean-based and other products, primarily comprising Soft Tofu
Skin, 78° Braised egg and meat products.

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on gross profit. No analysis of segment operating
profit is presented as CODM does not regularly review such
information for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as
CODM reviews the assets and liabilities on a central basis. Therefore,
only segment revenue and segment gross profit are presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

Segment revenue and results DERA R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by LT RIEHME DS 2|5 ANEE A B ER
reportable segments. DHT ©
Seasoned Bean-based
flour  Vegetable and other
products products products Total
FREE Z8mRk
fm BEEm HtiEm ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETRT AR¥TRE AR®TR AR¥TxR

For the year ended B E20225128318
December 31, 2022 IEFE
Revenue WA 2,718,613 1,693,339 220,269 4,632,221
Cost of sales SHEK AR (1,634,171) (900,160) (138,285) (2,672,616)
Gross profit ER 1,084,442 793,179 81,984 1,959,605
For the year ended B ZE2021F12A31H
December 31, 2021 IEFE
Revenue WA 2,918,039 1,664,120 218,041 4,800,200
Cost of sales SHE A (1,871,077)  (1,000,717) (135,375)  (3,007,169)
Gross profit EF 1,046,962 663,403 82,666 1,793,031
(a) Geographical information (a) EBEHER
Revenue from external customers broken down by location of REPUESIDIINEE PR AINTE
the customers is shown in the table below: FiR -
For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLFE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
In PRC F 4,566,747 4,780,404
Overseas HN 65,474 19,796
4,632,221 4,800,200
Majority of the Group's identifiable assets and liabilities were REBHRIEHDAIHROEERBBHN
located in the PRC. RAFE o
DREERSRIZRBR D

2022 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Segment revenue and results (Cont'd)
(b) Information about major customers
No revenue from a single customer accounted for 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue during the reporting period.

() An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2 WA )

DEBRARFELE (#)

(b) EBRXEEFNER
RS A - SiEREE—F P AL
REBWAET10%MA L -

() WAZHMT :

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT

Revenue from contracts REEFERMNEA
with customers

Sale of goods HEEM 4,632,221 4,800,200

The timing of the above revenue recognition is when the
performance obligations of sales and delivery of goods are
satisfied at a point in time.

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment in advance is normally required, except
for customers with credit terms up to 90 days. Some contracts
provide customers with a right of return, volume rebates
and co-advertising allowance which give rise to variable
consideration.

(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
The Group has recognized the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

R N\ TR B B B AT RIS PRI R TR AT T 8
ERREMNEOES -

BHEBEERINEACET - BEERREA
R BEEHTBEIOENT KRN - BH
ARATEPIRIEREHR HEFHNNESEIER
B HEHWEHE -

(d) BEEFERFHENEERAR
AEBECDHERATREFPARAEHNEE

As at December 31,

®12A31H
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFT
Contract liabilities aRAaE 225,261 180,583

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. oE&ER )
Segment revenue and results (Cont'd) DERAREE(E)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers d) HEEFESREEENEERERB(E)
(Cont'd)
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINTRERHREHANE ERAED 4
recognized in the current reporting period relates to carried- EARABEHEBENWRASEE :

forward contract liabilities:

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLFE
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
Revenue recognized that was include in 5t AFEHIE R B EEHH
the contract liabilities balance at the BRERUA
beginning of the year
Contract liabilities aRAE 180,583 233,251
The Group has no revenue contract that has an original REEREDGTEET BRE R —F A
expected duration more than one year, thus management AR AtEEEREA(EBR SRS %E
applies practical expedient under IFRS 15 and is not disclosing ADFEISFIBBTHEREE % - BEER
the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the HEHRTREBRDR T RETHI D ETT
performance obligation that are unsatisfied or partially satisfied HEXNEBRHZ S EELERE -
as of the end of the reporting period.
6. OTHER INCOME, NET 6. HUWAFHE

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBTFT
Government grants T
Related to income (a) N EIEIE) 85,586 130,988
Related to assets (b) (Note 26) B EAERDb)(FiEE26) 4,144 3,525
Sale of scraps and raw materials THERER R R
Proceeds income related to HAEER R R RHA R
scraps and raw materials Frigies 24,058 22,359
Cost related to scraps and raw materials BAEERL R R R R AT (8,679) (6,197)
VAT reduction HERRE 2,469 1,991
107,578 152,666

ERERSRIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

6. OTHER INCOME, NET (Contd) 6.

The government grants represent subsidy income received from

Hi W A F 5 (2)
BURF BN R 1 B IRIT BFI S e RE A - 1B
HARKEEPENETHEARNEE -

various government authorities as incentives to certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC.

(a)

(b)

The government grants and subsidies related to income
have been received to reward for the contribution to the
local economic growth. These grants related to income were
recognized in the statement of profit or loss upon receipt of
these rewards and the related conditions associated with the
rewards, if any, met. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.

The Group has received certain government grants related
to the investments in production plants. The grants related
to assets were recognized in the statement of profit or loss
over the useful lives of relevant assets. Details of these grants
related to assets are set out in Note 26.

(a)

(b)

R £ B B U B B2 Y A AR B A RO 6 B K B
B MEREHE BB RAERRA
R2E - ZFRBAEENMBHELIZE
B2 LA S /2 2 52 Bh 8 R M AR B 151 (e
BEERERTHER - ZXEMPMELR
ERRER G RRBEEE -

REED R AEE TR EBBENET
B8 - EEEMRBENHBERREEE
MERFHMAMNMERRTHER - BEEH
B 5 BN RIS BN I 5E26 ©

7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

7. Htt(&8) W@ FEHE

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Fair value gains on NAanBEAEEEZEHHA
financial assets at fair ERERNeREEN AR EE
value through profit or loss (Note 3.3) Wezs (Pf5E3.3) 30,892 27,416
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE  BER
plant and equipment HEEE (2,185) (1,647)
Donation B (2,021) (11,695)
Share-based payments related to HERAREERNRER BN
Pre-IPO Investments (a) VARG (7 BRI R (a) (628,811) =
Settlement loss related to foreign ERIR BRONE & [F B B m A B 518 (b)
exchange forward contract (b) (5,238) =
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) P W ss(B518) %58
(Note 3.1) (H45E3.1) 13,185 (6,148)
Impairment of property, plant and M - BE REERE
equipment (Note 15) (M$3E15) (7.026) =
Net impairment loss on other HibIEme&EE
non-current assets PERIEY Spi=be = - (76)
Others HAtb 3,518 3,865
(597,686) 11,715

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (Cont'd)
(a) Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO

Investments

On April 27, 2022, the Group, the Controlling Shareholders
and Pre-IPO investors (namely, CPE Investment XVIII Limited,
CWL Management XVIII Limited, CWL Food Co-invest Limited,
AUT-IV Holdings Limited, Image Flag Investment (HK) Limited,
Duckling Fund, L.P., YF Demeter Limited, Harmony Capital
Limited, Oceanpine Focus Fund LP, SCC Growth VI Holdco F,
Ltd. and Shanghai Hongluo Enterprise Management Consulting
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/8 3LVEEEBHERE
B (BRAER)) (the “Shanghai Hongluo”) (collectively,
the”Pre-IPO Investors”)), entered into a supplemental
agreement of share purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue and sell to the Supplemental
Agreement Investors in a total amount of 157,626,890
ordinary shares with a par value of USD0.00001 for a total
consideration of USD1,576.2689, equivalent to RMB11,000.
On the same date, the Company adopted a second amended
and restated memorandum and articles (“MAA") by a special
resolution passed on April 27, 2022. According to the MAA
dated on April 27, 2022, subject to the provisions and
circumstances under the relevant legal documents dated on
April 27, 2022, if a qualified IPO has not occurred, the Board
of the Company may cause the Company and without any
further approval from the Supplemental Agreement Investors,
and the Company shall be entitled, to compulsorily redeem all
of the aggregate amount of 157,626,890 ordinary shares held
by the Supplemental Agreement Investors at its par value (i.e
UsD0.00001).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

7.

Hit (18) Wz F 82
(a) BEERARBEABREFEN R

D BERITRK

M20226F4A278 - AEE - ERERER
B R AREE R E & (BICPE Investment
XVIII Limited CWL Management XVIII
Limited * CWL Food Co-invest Limited -
AUT-IV Holdings Limited * & & 2 j#1& &
(&%) BB 2Qa -~ Duckling Fund, L.P. »
YF Demeter Limited Harmony Capital
Limited + Oceanpine Focus Fund LP ~ SCC
Growth VI Holdco F, Ltd. 2 H/EBLEEE
BHAGBEEERER) (T LERVE]D
(ZBRIERARBEIREE])FINLT
ROBEMREFBRIBZE - Bt - AAFR
ELAMBE(E1,576.2689F L (FHE R AREE
11,00070) RIS H AR EEHITREE
& 3£157,626,890 A% I {E0.00001 FE T ) &
R - FB - KRRAER20225F4 7278
BBNFIRAERREME RGBT NE
MEABERRERERZMA - BEREH
R2022FAR27THEMER RERER
A8 - £ B HIA202244 27 BRMEEDA
BEXHRERBEEHERRT - WEaERS
RARBEWREE NARESEAE
RABENE R T R EEE— S
BIER T - BREREmEE(810.00001%7T)
BRI EARIREERFBENEHEH
157,626,890 &3 ©

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (Cont'd)
(a) Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO

(b)

Investments (Cont'd)

The fair value of total amount of 157,626,890 ordinary shares
at the issuance date was amounting to RMB628,822,000
with the assistance of by independent external valuer using
valuation model based on the discounted cash flow method.
According to the relevant requirements under IFRS 2 share-
based payments, the difference between the fair value and the
cash consideration received amounting to RMB628,811,000
was charged into the consolidated income statements and
credited to other reserves correspondingly.

The discounted cash flow method under the income approach
has been applied in the determination of the fair value. The
assumptions used in determining the grant date fair value
included revenue growth rates, long-term growth rate and
discount rate, which were set out as follows, and a listing
probability of 55% was considered in determining the share-
based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments.

Revenue annual growth rates 9% - 20%
Long term growth rate 3%
Discount rate 12%

On March 15, 2022, the Group entered into a certain foreign
exchange forward contract, pursuant to which, certain amount
of US dollars would be settled into RMB at a fixed exchange
rate on June 15, 2022. As at June 15, 2022, a loss due to
the settlement of the foreign exchange forward contract
amounting to RMB5,238,000 was recognized.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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7.

Hito (B518) s F 82

(@)

(b)

HEX AHARENREBBRNUR
HAERNETRE)

B HNEMEERMA BB T - FHAERA,
RRSHEENEEELTE - RE1TH
89 £ 2£157,626,8908 LM AR (EE
BARME628,822,0007T ° AR BB B 75
RN 25 LARR (5 B E A A8
BMER - AR EBEEEMBINESHEZ
=% AR#628,811,000T:E AA HflEE &
WABFE ST A AL EES -

WaEZ THMRREREECEARETE
DAEE - BRETCREBHAABERN
FAMNRR(BERAEBRE  KEEBRE
RITBRE)HHNAT - RETEHE X AR
SRR E B R AR AR 315
BEEE55%H) EHiE -

WA FHERE 9%-20%
KB RE 3%
FIRE 12%

2022 3R158 » AEEFTY T HRIER
HANES R - Rt - FA2022%F6 A 158 -
HETERBOETHUARBIZE FEE R
E o 20226 A158 - REHINEASR
HEHESRE B ARS,2380007T 2 #E

=7
o ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

8. EXPENSE BY NATURE 8. BEMBEIINER
For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR¥T T ARETTT
Consumption of raw materials R ELERE 21 2,141,677 2,440,908
Changes in inventories of finished Bosh ~ R m &
goods, semi-finished goods, EREYMEE
and goods in transit EpED) 21 (38,318) (25,458)
Employee benefit expenses EERTEMA 852,998 786,998
Transportation expenses EEE A 160,191 170,722
Utilities KEMAEA 92,353 91,979
Promotion and advertising expenses HEMEESBR 139,266 78,679
Other tax expenses HhFiEE R 44,538 43,588
Depreciation and amortization Pres Ry 15-17 135,267 106,436
Travelling expenses ZIkE A 30,129 35,018
Repairs and maintenance BIERRE 32,003 32,079
Office expenses WAE A 38,511 27,639
Listing expenses FiAX 34,852 30,502
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEEE
— Audit services —FETARTS 2,680 103
— Non-audit services -JEEA RS 28 =
Expense relating to short-term EEHEAERAE A
leases (Note 16) (Fi7E16) 11,158 4,349
Professional fees HEEH 70,479 18,902
Others Hith 39,791 44,448
Total cost of sales of goods, SHERA - KHEKE
distribution and selling expenses and ~ $§&E&A &
administrative expenses EIRBRBE 3,787,603 3,886,892
DRERERERERAD

2022 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9. EERNEH

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - e RAF 602,817 613,679
Pension costs — defined contribution plans (a) E{R& K A5 E R RET2(a) 58,056 33,220
Welfare and other expenses mi kEMER 93,992 89,580
Share-based payment expenses (Note 10) VARG 15 B EERE R 3R 2 (B EE10) 98,133 50,519
852,998 786,998

Employee benefit expenses changed in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss are as follow:

BHBRERTEPNESENERIHIILT

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLFE
2022 2021
2022%F 202148
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTFT
Cost of sales of goods HER A 322,421 348,053
Distribution and selling expenses KN EEER 248,660 220,478
Administrative expenses EIEEH 281,917 218,467
852,998 786,998

(a) Defined contribution plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a
state-managed pension obligations operated by the PRC
Government. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs as determined by respective local
government authority to the pension obligations to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions under the scheme. During the year ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no forfeited
contributions under the Group’s defined contribution plans.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022

(a) REMHFTE

AEERFTBREMNES BT BBTEENE
REBRARSETMKE - ASEBEEIRIE
B R EEEM TERANEER
DHLABRKSETER  UIREEMNE
& AKBEHENKRBIFENE—ETER
MFFSIMELIEE #E5R - BZE20224F %2021
F12A318LEFE - AEENREHRET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd) 9. EERAMER )
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEGRESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HZE2022F12A31HIEFE » AEEHT
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 include five EERETMALTBIERIRES (20214 :
directors (2021: four) whose emoluments are reflected in the ) » HENS SN 36T R TA - &
analysis shown in Note 36. Details of the emoluments of the BRIEBESEHFSHFMATRERNOMES S
remaining highest paid non-director individuals during the year T :

are set out as below:

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE  Hekaar - 1,655
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RK & AR5 E 7RG E] - 10
Welfare and other expenses B REME A - 10
Share-based payment expenses AR D BB R - 4,352
- 6,027
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BERUTHEANNZEATZHE
Number of individuals
A
For the year ended December 31,
BZE12A310LEE
2022 2021
20224 202148
Emolument bands (in HKD) e E(Bx)
HKD7,000,001 — HKD7,500,000 7,000,001 7C47,500,00078 7T - 1

ERERSRIERERAT 1 61
2022 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES

During the year ended December 31, 2021, to incentivize directors,
senior management and employees, the RSU Scheme was approved
and adopted by the Company. Shares of 41,389 were allotted and
issued to for the purpose of the RSU Scheme.

On January 1, 2021, in exchange for employee services to the
Group, 4,764 RSUs were granted to certain eligible persons selected
by the Company (the “January 2021 Awards”). On and subject to
the limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested
as to 15%, 15%, 20%, 20%, 20% and 10% on January 1, 2022,
2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 respectively.

As disclosed in Note 24, on March 31, 2021, the Company effected
a 1,000 for 1 share split of its shares. Accordingly, the shares
allotted and granted under the RSU Scheme were then equivalent to
41,389,000 shares and 4,764,000 shares, respectively.

On October 10, 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of
32,295,893 RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible
participants with performance and service conditions at a
nil consideration to incentivize them for the Group’s future
development (the “October 2021 Awards”). On and subject to the
limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in
different proportions from 2022 to 2030.

On April 27, 2022, pursuant to a shareholder resolution, additional
shares of 4,509,681 were issued for the purpose of the RSU Scheme.
After the issuance, the aggregate number of ordinary shares under
the RSU Scheme was 45,898,681.

On May 26, 2022, the Company granted an aggregate of 2,135,376
RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible participants
with performance and service conditions at a nil consideration to
incentivize them for the Group’s future development (the “May
2022 Awards”). On and subject to the limitations and conditions
of the RSU Scheme and the terms and conditions of the respective
grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in different proportions from
2023 to 2027.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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10. E{ESFH ARG HER AR

HE2021F12A31HILEFE - BEBESE - &
BERABRES + AR RUEI RN ZIR HIAL
DERETE o RERIBRHIRMDEME - AR
AIEC B R BT T 41,3890% /% 5 ©

R2021F1 A18 - 4,764E2 R HIA% ) B AL IR
TARAREENETEERAL  EAASEE
RENREBRBAZIA([2021F1 A4EE)]) - B
BRI AR 19 B 51 B AIPR il S G LA R AR B
FRHE R R RIEEAERT - R D
BENIAER 20224 ~ 20234F ~ 20244F « 2025%F -
2026F K 2027F 18185 R B15% * 15%
20% ~ 20% ~ 20% % 10% °

IENFIEE24FT IR EE - ANEIMR20219F3 83184
HAZ (R #E1T T 1571,0000047 0% - E itk - RIES
PR I AR (0 B A2 5T BIBC B8 K % T OB & B 5 BIAR
E1A41,389,0000% %15 F14,764,0008% 4% {5 °

20215108108 » RABRIEZ R HIR 0 &
ETEIASHERFT A EERRBSGKERRES
EigsmE A £% 132,295,893 52 [R #I i 15
B BB EARNEENARREREL TR
([20215F10 A 888 ]) - RIZF R HIAX (5 BEALET
10 BR il B2 (61 DA R AR T R B9 R R R AR 1
REEBRT « ZRHIRMGEMNEE202FF
2030F AR L FIHE -

20224 A278 - RIEMRFRIARE - 4,509,681
AR BB IR 1 3 2 PR I AR 15 BE AL AT &I B Ay i i 2%
17 ° REETIR - ZIRFIRM EMTEIB TRES
fi% 48 8 545,898,6810% °

7202295268 + AR EIRE SR $IAR G5 AL
BN THERFTAXERRBIEHNETES
BI{R2EES HLE 2,135,376/ R HI (N E
iz - BUBKEN B 5 B AN SR B A R 2R B R 1B B Bk
([2022F5 A 52@) ) - IRIBZRHIARD BT
B PR 1 B2 A1 LA S AR BB 35 7 R B0 A6 R B A6 A4 B AE
HERT + ZRHIRMDEMSE2023F£2027
FURAMLAIHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)

On December 1, 2022, the Company granted an aggregate of
10,254,671 RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible
participants with performance and service conditions at a
nil consideration to incentivize them for the Group's future
development (the “December 2022 Awards”). On and subject to
the limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in
different proportions from 2023 to 2027.

Share-based payment expense relating to awards granted to
employees is based on the grant date fair value of the RSUs is
recognized, on a straight-line basis over the entire vesting period
for each batch. The fair value of each RSUs at the grant dates
are determined by reference to the fair value of the underlying
ordinary shares of the Company on the date of grant. The grant
date fair value of the underlying ordinary shares was determined
with the assistance of an independent valuer. The discounted
cash flow method under the income approach has been applied
in the determination of the fair value of the equity interest of the
Company. The discounted cash flow derived by management
considered the Group's future business plan, specific business and
financial risks, the stage of development of the Group’s operations
and economic and competitive elements affecting the Group’s
business, industry and market.

The table below sets forth share-based payments expenses for RSUs
during the reporting period:

10. EESFHBURDHERNTR D

R2022F 12 B1H » ANRGRIE R HIAR 9 B AL
STEILTHEERFAEERREIEHRNETEE]
M EEA LR H 10,254,671 18 R I (B
7 - BUSKEN R 5 AR S BER R RE R ED BB
([2022F 12 A82E) ]) - WRIZZ R HIAK (D BEALET
10 BR il B2 (61 DA R AR T R A9 R R R AR
MEEBRRT + ZRHIGELEEH2023FE
2027 F AR BISFE -

SRR 8 X 2R A B R AR (0 R AR RO 4 558
XYRBEBRZREIBROELAABENRLR
B EEHNUENE2HEEBHAAERESE -
EXRBIRM BN L BN AR EBELZR
ARARPRE N A HNEEEBRAAEETAE
E o R BRI L R AREETINELG
BRI TETE - EEEARFBENAAE
EF - FATRANETHRSRENRE - A&
EnEREERHNTRRASREEZE T AKEN
RREBTE - ARNEXBAMBER - A EE
EBMBEREBRARFZERREERS - TN
BHEBEMBFEE

TRESIN TS SR BB AD ERLAVARAD R
RE R

For the year ended December 31,

HBE12A310 L EE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBTFT
RSUs PR HilRR 1D BB AL 98,133 50,519
ITRERSRERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (Contd)
Movements in the number of RSUs granted and the respective
weighted average grant date fair value are as follows:

10. AESFHNURGRERNARD)
EETOZRARDENLHA BB RS Q0ME
THFEHERARBENAT

Weighted
average grant

Number of date fair value

RSUs per RSU

SEZ R

RGELH

= R BR17 I 9ER

BugA BHAREE

RMB

AR¥TT

Outstanding as at January 1, 2021 202151 A1HRITHE - -

Granted during the year RENEET 37,059,893 8.94 t0 11.01

Forfeited during the period REIRE 2K (746,355) 8.94 t0 11.01

Outstanding as at December 31, 2021 7202112 8318 K171&E 36,313,538 8.94t0 11.01

Outstanding as at January 1, 2022 M2022F 1 B1BRITE 36,313,538 8.94 to 11.01

Granted during the period REIRNBE R T 12,390,047 7.25 to0 9.57

Forfeited during the period REARE R (2,832,083) 7.25 to 11.01

Outstanding as at December 31, 2022 M2022F12 A31HKRITE 45,871,502 7.25 to 11.01
Vested and exercisable as at

December 31, 2022 2022612 A31BHB R ATT{E 1,765,867 8.94 to 11.01

As at December 31, 2022, a total of 465 employees (counted based 2022612 A318 - AEEEEBEI65REES (1R
on person-time) of the Group have been granted with a total of NIRET) B H B R F49,449,94018 52 IR $1 B9
49,449,940 RSUs and an aggregate of 1,765,867 RSUs become Bz BA $£1,765,867 % R HIA 9 BE AR IR
vested but not yet exercised under the terms and conditions of the R Il A 19 B8 iz 7t 1 B {6k TR S 1 1 BB JB 1B M R 7T
RSU Scheme. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

11. FINANCE INCOME, NET

11. BEWAFE

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Finance income: AMERA :
Interests from bank ERITHIE 71,067 24,782
Finance costs: RE R :
Interest expenses on bank borrowings HRITEFFERXZ (16,289) (9,730)
Finance costs on lease liabilities (Note 16) HEEBENREKAPTEE6) (391) (694)
Less: borrowing costs capitalized in property, & : ¥1% - BB M &EHERNCH
plant and equipment (Note 15) AR AN (B7E15) 3,298 4,888
(13,382) (5,536)
Finance income, net MEWAFE 57,685 19,246

(a) Capitalized borrowing costs

The capitalization rate used to determine the amount of
borrowing costs to be capitalized is 3.97% applicable to the
Group's borrowings during the year December 31, 2022 (2021:

3.93%).

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@) BAR{LBRAT
HZE2022F 128318 IEFE - BEH TR
BRI ERA A BEREANE R X
53.97% (20214 : 3.93%) * ZHFE KL
EEARAEBRIER

12. FIEBLEH

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A3MBLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Current tax BIERE1E
Current tax on profits for the year FERFEAENERR IR 274,397 277,108
Deferred income tax EAEF 2R IE
Increase in deferred tax assets (Note 29) EERIEEELN(KIEE29) (36,866) (39,475)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities (Note 29)  JERIEF B & BN (MHEE29) 23,549 32,270
Total deferred tax expense EERIEE AR (13,317) (7,205)
Income tax expense Frig%iEE 261,080 269,903
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that could arise using the statutory corporate
income tax rate of 25% in the PRC during the reporting period is as
follows:

12. FiSHER @)
AR IR S BRI FIE 2 BURSRR AR E
EECEFEHH RS % EREEEREH
ZEBIT

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LFE
2022 2021
20225 202148
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Profit before income tax PS5 B A1 B 412,377 1,096,632
Tax calculated at statutory tax rates of 25%  ¥225%HEE R Rt E HFIIE 103,094 274,158
Tax effect of; T EENRBHE -
Difference in tax rate MERER 458 305
Expenses not deductible for GIE N1
income tax purpose (i) FrSEL & ) 162,375 3,312
Income not subject to tax MIBRBIUA (5.423) (9,957)
Additional deductible research and MEERAD
development expense DRETINER (4,735) (417)
Tax losses for which no deferred income REREEMSHBEERN
tax assets were recognized FIEEE 1,606 1,944
Other HAth 3,705 558
261,080 269,903

(0]

(@)

(b)

During the year ended December 31, 2022, expenses not deductible
for income tax purpose mainly included the expense relating to share-
based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments (Note 7(a)), which was
recognized in the Company’s statements of comprehensive income and
not deductible for income tax purpose.

Cayman Islands Income Tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
local income tax.

British Virgin Islands profit tax

The Company’s direct subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands
were incorporated under the BVI Business Companies Act,
2004 and accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

(0

(d)

(e)

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax was provided as the
Company. Pursuant to the two-tiered profit tax rates regime,
the Group’s first HKD2 million of assessable profits under Hong
Kong profits tax during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 is subject to a tax rate of 8.25%. The Group’s remaining
assessable profits above HKD2 million will continue to be
subject to a tax rate of 16.5% for the reporting period.

PRC corporate income tax

Enterprises incorporated in the PRC are subject to income tax
rates of 25% throughout the reporting period unless subject to
tax exemption set out below.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as
small and micro enterprises and are entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 20% during the reporting period.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are engaged in
agriculture and entitled to the tax exemption on agricultural
products.

The income tax provision of the Group has been calculated
at the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
for the reporting period based on existing legislations,
interpretations and practices.

PRC Withholding Tax (“WHT")

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after January 1, 2008
are generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign investor
incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions and
requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be 5%.

12. FREBIE A=)

(©

(d)

(e)

BEERFNEH
RABWEBLBFBNEHIELBE - RIE
MEHMARS  AEBEBEREZE20220 K
202112 A3 AL FERBEEFEHH
B2 B BATT R E1%8.25% M B = 4
i o AEBRMERBELEN FBB2E
EETHNB T EREFEIZ16.5% M E
Bw -

B ZEFEH
FE R B REM AR A2 ) 1 SR AN B B R & 1R
25%H) TR BT - ERRHMT X
PREVEIRE BRI ©

Rl - AEENETHENBA DY
AIMRRZER - Y HEZH0%NES
DEFSBRE -

AEENETHEMBAREERE I
EREZAERERRH

-

AEENFEBEEEERBTER - 2
RRIED] - RS s 5 B 4
RBIREE -

Fh R FE A ([ FEHIHE )
RIEEAFBRBEER  EPEKZHR
A FL20084F 1 B 1 B & BV A9 A8 [ SMEX
BEEDRHORE—REHMN0%HTEN
o BEBBEMERINIIRREEFE
PREEESFITNEEHRKDTE LMK
HRIFE - HERETEINRER A5% o

ERERSRIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
(e) PRC Withholding Tax (“WHT") (Cont'd)

As at December 31, 2022, the aggregate undistributed
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC are RMB2,889,370,000 (2021: RMB2,114,122,000).
As the Company has the ability to control the timing of the
distribution from these subsidiaries and it has no intention to
distribute such earnings to foreign entities in the foreseeable
future, accordingly, despite an assessable temporary difference
on such retained earnings exists, no deferred income tax
liability has been recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year

12. FRSHER#)
(e) HERTEIMB(MFEHB L) (2)

MR2022%F 128318 AEERPEEM
RIZMMBRARINAD RABFBEAA
R #2,889,370,000 7T (20214 : AR
2,114,122,0007T) ° AR 8] 88 212 i
ZEWB AR D IREFRE - B ESFER
ATTE R MR R AIBINEE D IRZZERF -
Hi > BEZSHEERNFTEERHER
Z8 - BUEELEFEHRABENE HTE
MR AR o

13. BREF
(a) EAX

BRERBIHZAT I AGE :
o ARABEAARENB(TEHRER

BRONE T 4 iR 2 B ) B DABA B
FEABETEI T BIH IR T8

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLFE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Profit attributable to owners of the RAREEB AEGEFIE
Company (RMB’000) (AR#BFT) 151,297 826,729
Weighted average number of outstanding 2%777E 9N 38 A Hnge
ordinary shares (thousands) SEHE (TR 2,163,327 2,036,295
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BEREREF(ARET) 0.07 0.41

Outstanding ordinary shares that are contingently returnable
(ie subject to recall) are not treated as outstanding and are
excluded from the calculation of basic earnings per share until
the date the shares are no longer subject to recall.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, an aggregate
of 1,765,867 RSUs become vested under the terms and
conditions of the RSU Scheme, so the effect of these shares has
been taken into account in the calculation of basic earnings per
share since the vesting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (contd) 13.
(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company after adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the year.

BREN )

(b) #8
SREERNSERFAMB IHENE
AT BB LBOBRKRT  HBETEIN
BRI R REARAHES
AEEFEE -

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
Profit attributable to owners of RARGEE ANEEFE
the Company (RMB'000) (AREETTT) 151,297 826,729
Weighted average number of BTN E BAREY
outstanding ordinary shares (thousands) — Jl#E-FH&(FA%) 2,163,327 2,036,295
Adjustments for: NGB IEEL AR -
— RSUs (thousands) —Z R Bz (FAR) 5,693 -
Adjusted weighted average number of SRS RFIRETT
outstanding ordinary shares for diluted EINE BRI TR
earnings per share (thousands) INEESE & (FRR) 2,169,020 2,036,295
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) SREERAN(ARET) 0.07 0.41
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BILEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Dividends declared EEIRRE - 595,989

A final dividend in respect of the year ended December 31, 2022
of RMBO0.12 per share, amounting to a total final dividend of
RMB273,928,000 and a special dividend in respect of the year
ended December 31, 2022 of RMBO0.12 per share, amounting to a
total special dividend of RMB273,928,000, are to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial statements do
not reflect these dividend payables.

The dividends declared and paid during the year ended December
31, 2021 was RMB595,989,000.

HE202FNA3BLEFENRERE B
BRARKOI2T REBREBBEAARE
273,928,0007C © B E2022F 12 A31BHILEFER
BRI E AT ARK12TT BRIk EEEs
AR #273,928,0007T © SR EEREBFRE
FREBR - ZEMBRE T ERMZEEMNRK

B o
o

HZE2021F12A31HLEFE » EERARMAK
B A AR#595,989,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

Building
Furniture improvement
and office  Electronic and  Construction
Buildings ~ Machinery Vehicles  equipment  equipment  decoration in progress Total
FHR BFEE

& i B BORE  ETEG Rk#i  ERIR &t
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR

Net book amountasat  }2021%151A

January 1, 2021 HEEEE 129,164 217,733 8,362 36,113 2,495 38,934 230,721 663,522
Additions NE 10,539 49,510 2,746 34,104 3,850 25,221 272,825 398,795
Transfers upon completion  52FK( 14 &7 138,220 101,028 = = = 47,827 (287,075) =
Disposals RE (12) (2,020) (1,716) (391) (1) (1,745) - (5,885)
Depreciation (Note 8) FE(s) (12,881) (34,641) (3,115 (10,199) (1,551) (29,59) - (91,983)
Netbook amountasat  #2021512A318

December 31,2021 WEEFE 265,030 331,610 6,277 59,627 4793 80,641 216,471 964,449
As at December 31,2021 120215128318
Cost B 293,731 421,743 12,586 79,614 9,660 129,404 216,471 1,163,209
Accumulated depreciation  2E17E (28701) (90,133) (6,309) (19,.987) (4,867) (48763) - (198760)
Net book amount REFE 265,030 331,610 6,277 59,627 4793 80,641 216,471 964,449
Netbook amountasat  }2022F181RH

January 1, 2022 REFE 265,030 331,610 6,277 59,627 4,793 80,641 216,471 964,449
Additions NE - 6,769 3,495 14,256 3,088 7,346 262,381 297,335
Transfers upon completion  52FK( 14 7% 200,388 129,324 - - - - (330,212) -
Disposals kE - (4.917) (500) (345) ) - - (5771)
Depreciation (Note 8) FE(:8) (22173) (47,330) (2,901) (14,249) (2,197) (32,581) - (121,431)
Impairment (Note 7) AT - (6,601) - (425) - - - (7,026)
Net book amountasat  #2022%12A31H

December 31, 2022 HNEEEE 443,745 408,855 6,371 58,864 5,675 55,406 148,640 1,127,556
As at December 31,2022 1420225128318
Cost A 494,619 550,884 15,136 92,999 12,706 115,285 148,640 1,430,269
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z5HTE (50,874)  (135,428) (8,765) (33,710 (7,031) (59,879) - (295,687)
Impairment HfE - (6,601) - (425) - - - (7,026)
Net book amount RmFE 443,745 408,855 6,371 58,864 5,675 55,406 148,640 1,127,556

1 70 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment of the Group is

analyzed as follows:

15. ¥ - RERRE#)
AEEYE  BERIENTEINOT -

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LFE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTFT
Cost of sales of goods $EE R AN 71,778 65,001
Administrative expenses EEEH 49,321 26,691
Distribution and selling expenses KHENEEER 332 291
Total &% 121,431 91,983

(a)

(b)

()

()

Construction-in-progress as at December 31, 2022 and 2021
mainly comprised of buildings being constructed in the PRC.

The Group has capitalized borrowing costs amounting to
RMB3,298,000 on qualifying assets during the year ended
December 31, 2022 (2021: RMB4,888,000) (Note 11). The
weighted average rate capitalization rate was 3.97% for the
year ended December 31, 2022 (2021: 3.93%).

Refer to Note 28 and Note 32 for information on non-current
assets pledged as security by the Group.

As at December 31, 2022, the carrying amount of buildings
without building ownership certificates was RMB141,230,000
(2021: RMB51,633,000). The Group is in the process to obtain
the certificates.

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

2022 K2021512 A31BMERETIRE:
ERRBTHRBREENET -

HZE2022F 128318 LFE - AEEAE
BEEE MG TR BARE3,298,000
T (20214 + AR #4,888,0007T) (Ff 5
11) « EE2022F12831BIEFEE » 10
BFHERFEE397% (2021 4F :
3.93%) °

EBRAERERARRNIERDEES
B B2k 28 K KIEE32 o

MR2022%F 128318 XEBEEAE
FHEFEREEEASAR141,230,0007T
(20214 : AR#¥51,633,0007T) - AEE
FHEFRBHIEERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

16. LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a

lessee.

(@) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

leases:

16. A&

SRR A REERERRANEERSE

(a) REERBERTEINTE
BEERBEXRERNEHERENSE

As at December 31,

o

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land-use-rights TP 527,694 165,874
Buildings gt 6,011 15,329
533,705 181,203
Lease liabilities HEESE
Current mEp (3,338) (7,545)
Non-current FEAED (1,966) (7,170)
(5,304) (14,715)

(i)  Additions of the right-of-use assets during the year ended
December 31, 2022 were RMB369,407,000 (2021:

RMB5,571,000).

(b) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit

or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts

relating to leases:

() #EHZE2022F12A31BIEEE  AE
M{E AL E A AR369,407,000
JC(20214F : AR¥£5,571,0007T) °

o

(b) RE

L

v

p=1ll

MRPERH S

2Bk 28 THRAEHBENSHEE

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLFE
2022 2021
202245 202148
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKTFT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEEN
assets ERX
Land-use-rights TP 6,761 3,568
Buildings BgF 5,307 9,128
12,068 12,696

1 72 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

16. LEASES (Cont'd)
(b) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit

(9

(d)

(e)

or loss (Cont’d)

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LFE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTFT
Interest expense (included in finance cost)  FI SRS (GFABVERKA)
(Note 11) (BiFaE11) 391 694
Expense relating to short-term leases 52 HATH S AR R 7 2
(included in cost of goods sold, GTABEERA - KR
distribution and selling expenses and HEERAREREM)
administrative expenses) (Note 8) (H45E8) 11,158 4,349

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended December
31, 2022 was RMB16,780,000 (2021: RMB12,444,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group lease factory, office buildings, warehouse and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 17 months to 9 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purpose.

As at December 31, 2022, the carrying value of right-of-
use assets related to land-use-right purchased from the
government of RMB232,447,000 (2021: RMB165,874,000)
and purchased from a third party of RMB295,247,000 (2021:
Nil), has 50 years useful lives stated in the relevant land-use-
right certificates. All the Group’s land-use-rights are located in
the PRC.

Refer to Note 28 and Note 32 for information on land-use-
right pledged as security by the Group.

HE2022F12A31BILFE - HERES
A AR16,780,0007T (20214F = A
R#12,444,0007T) °

(0 "EBNHETBRZEHEEMM
FE
AEBHAETIR MO AEREE-
HEARMAR—KA17E A Z9FAEE
HARR - MEKFRBEERB R REETE
BEEBTRMGRIGHE - HERZL
RIEIER R - EAEARELBAMSR
EEEMERAE - HEEETARAERE
FRPEIR o

(d) 720225128318 BRFFEREE=
FRE L AEEREEAEEEREE
D RIAANREE232,447,00075 (20214 = A
R#165,874,0007T) 2 AR #295,247,000
(20214 « &) WHBSOFMERE
o HRAE L REE - AEBE
T ARSI AR o

(e) EEAAEEEFAERO T FERERE
B B2k 28 kIEE32 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

Software

B

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Net book amount as at January 1, 2021 A2021F1 A1 B WEREFE 1,685
Additions INE 9,812
Amortization (Note 8) B 3H (MI7E8) (1,757)
Net book amount as at December 31, 2021 A2021F12 A31AERE R E 9,740

As at December 31, 2021 720214128318
Cost BN 17,198
Accumulated amortization BT (7,458)
Net book amount BREFE 9,740
Net book amount as at January 1, 2022 A2022F1 B 1AMREFE 9,740
Additions N 13,473
Amortization (Note 8) #54(M7E8) (1,768)
Net book amount as at December 31, 2022 742022512 A31H WERERE 21,445
As at December 31, 2022 742022128318

Cost A AR 30,671
Accumulated amortization R (9,226)
Net book amount IRENFE 21,445

Amortization of intangible assets of the Group is analyzed as follows:

AEBELEERHEIMAOT

For the year ended December 31,

Administrative expenses (Note 8)

/

BZ12AMBLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
1,768 1,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

18. REHE TSI A
AEEBEATHSHIA

As at December 31,

M12831H
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Financial assets SREE Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥T T AREETTT
Financial assets at amortized cost REHER AT ENEREE
— Trade and other receivables B 5N H M ERIE 19 128,834 69,884
— Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEED 22 1,314,453 494,275
— Restricted cash -ZRHIRE 22 - 294
— Term deposits with initial term IR EARR A =1E A
over three months LA _EHYE HATEER 23 2,624,868 1,720,671
Financial assets at fair value AR EBEEBHEES)
through profit or loss AZHBEENeREE
— Wealth management products BB G 33 - 454,882
— Structured deposit BT 3.3 120,149 220,274
— Investment in fund management REES
products EEEM 33 262,291 126,947
4,450,595 3,087,227
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Financial liabilities Az =R Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE ARETT AREETTT
Financial liabilities at amortized cost WHEK AT ENSRAE
— Trade and other payables —“E G REMEFIE 3.1 399,476 355,790
— Lease liabilities -HEAE 16 5,304 14,715
- Borrowings &R 28 161,300 460,112
566,080 830,617

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the financial
instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets mentioned above.

AEEE SR T RAARO S &R R DR ES
AEtm © RIREHRNEAEERRIKA A Lt
BRI EREENIREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

19. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 19. B 5 & HAbfEU K18 B 78 {2518

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Trade receivables: B 5 REIRE
Receivables from third parties FEUWE =18 66,554 56,552
Loss allowance (Note 3.1) BB (FHEE3.1) (124) (429)
66,430 56,123
Other receivables: HAb U RE ¢
Deposits T 10,286 11,234
Proceeds receivable from sale of property, HEDE - WELERED
plant and equipment FEURFRIS I8 650 1,400
Loans to third parties (d) RIEFE=FHERWC) 200 400
Receivables from local government FEUE Ho BT 5K IR 50,000 =
Others Hi 1,771 1,201
Loss allowance (Note 3.1) E R (FE3.1) (503) (474)
62,404 13,761
Prepayments: AR -
Prepayments for raw materials R BRI FRIE 35,335 37,800
Prepayments for services PRF& TR R IE 6,616 42,281
Input VAT recoverable RIS ET I 68,348 598378
Prepayment for income tax FriSfi a8 915 4,946
Prepayments for listing expenses X IENRIE - 4,723
111,214 249,123
240,048 319,007
(a) Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their (a) B ENEAfEWER BN SIS ER - EE
carrying amount is considered to be approximate their fair EEEESEE AR EERL -
value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

19. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(Cont'd)
(b) Trade receivables primarily arise from credit sales of products.

(9

(d)

The Group usually deliver products to distributors after they
have made the payment, while for direct sale customers, credit
period is granted. The credit terms are generally up to 90
days. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. The balances
of trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. All the trade
receivables of the Group are from third parties.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the aging analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

19.

B REMBWRERANREAZ)

(b) BZRERETERBERNEEHE

AEEBERNEEBNRRAEIMNE
m MEREHEF  AIRTEEHR-F
EH—RTHIBI0R - AEBETEKEE
ZRMGRBSESR B A EAER R EMBE
ERTHGMY - BHRUGIBREBRRRS °
REBMABZREFIRGREE=T] -

20229 K20214%12A318 » ERNBEEH
B E S EWFERER DT T ¢

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Within 90 days 90HMA 61,842 52,312
91-180 days 91£180H 4,712 4,240
66,554 56,552
Impairment and risk exposure (o) BER RO
The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring RN EE BB I SRS 2R D E 95 b
expected credit losses for trade receivables. The loss allowance ERE ZEWHRIB ETEHEEEE - &
for trade receivables at amortized cost was not material during 22022512 A31 H IEF E HyIL#E $5 Rk A5t
the year ended December 31, 2022. Note 3.1(b) provides for ENE S REWEEEEFELTEKN o
details about the calculation of the allowance. F13.1(b)#E P B st EEER IS -
Loans to third parties were unsecured, interest-free and repaid (d) BEFE=ZFNERAELRT T5t8 A0

on demand.

RERMEE -

ERERSRIERERAT
2022 F#f
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20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. HfttERBEE
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARETFT
Prepayments to suppliers of property, MY - BB &R E G ER
plant and equipment L RITEI FRIA 17,102 47,016
Prepayments to suppliers of intangible [ E E e
assets X TRITER FRIE 628 5,386
17,730 52,402
21. INVENTORIES 21. #&
Our inventories mainly include raw materials and packaging RPN FETERREEMEBIREEME - KT -
materials, finished goods, goods in transit and semi-finished goods, EREYMRERG  HPEMERBEME AT
with raw materials and packaging materials being the major BEAARER D ©
component.
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTFT
Raw materials and packaging materials R KR BEEM R 484,934 529,538
Finished goods and Goods in transit KmREEEY 105,400 69,467
Semi-finished goods SR 2,498 113
Low-value consumption goods B8 5 #m 6,431 5,137
599,263 604,255
The costs of individual items of inventory are determined using FEEREB KA AINE YK ANEE -
weighted average costs.
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in HZE2022F12A31BIEE » FEKAK
cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to HRABRIYHAEERANSEA A
RMB2,141,677,000 (2021: RMB2,440,908,000) (Note 8). R ¥ 2141,677,000 7t ( 2021 £ : A R #&

2,440,908,0007T ) (FF5E8) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RESTRICTED CASH

22. RERBESEYUARZRHERE

As at December 31,

M12831H
2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Cash and cash equivalents: ReRELEEY:
Cash at bank and other major licensed RITREME ERR T BN
payment institution Re
- RMB “AREE 266,074 178,472
- UsD -7 164,036 315,634
- HKD —B7T 884,343 169
1,314,453 494,275
Restricted cash ZRERE
- Usb —£TT - 294

(a) Cash at bank and other major licensed payment institutions

can be redeemed by the company within a short-term.

(b) Reconciliation to cash flow statement
The above figures reconcile to the amount of cash shown in
the statement of cash flows at the end of the reporting period as

follows:

(a) RITEREMEIEFRBITERBHRE AR
RARREHAED -

(b) MHBERTRER

P ERERRRERERPARE
TN TATR ¢

As at December 31,

R12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Balances as above LataEs 1,314,453 494,275
Balances per statement of cash flows BERER
(Note 30) P A& (BI7E30) 1,314,453 494,275

DR ERSRIERERD A
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23. TERM DEPOSITS WITH INITIAL TERM OVER

THREE MONTHS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

23. MHBRB=EA A ELNEHRER

As at December 31,

M12831H
2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Current assets REBEE
Term deposits with initial term 5 HABR A =1E A LA &Y
over three months TEBITE R
— RMB YN 223,800 =
- UsD -7 797,182 766,331
1,020,982 766,331
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Term deposits with initial term WA EAMR A =18 A LA LAY
over three months TEBITE R
- RMB —ARKEE 1,603,886 954,340
2,624,868 1,720,671

The carrying amounts of term deposits with initial term over three
months approximated their fair values, since the interest receivables
on these term deposits with initial term over three months is either
close to current market rates or the term deposits with initial term
over three months are of a short-term nature.

As at December 31, 2022, the term deposits with initial term over
three months that denominated in RMB were at the fixed interest
rate ranged from 3.10% to 4.13% (2021: ranged from 3.55% to
4.18%).

As at December 31, 2022, the term deposits with initial term over
three months that denominated in USD were at a fixed interest rate
ranged from 3.50% to 5.36% (2021: 0.95%).
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7

RA=ZFEANENEBEFRNETFFEN
F3.10% & 4.13% (2021 F « N F3.55% &

4.18%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. RS
The Company FiN/NC|
Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
TERER LB EE
usD
ETT
Authorized shares of USD0.01 as at M2018F7R6HEEAR
July 6, 2018 0.01ETTHYEE R A 5,000,000 50,000
Authorized shares of USD0.00001 as at 202143 A831HAEES
March 31, 2021 0.00001ZE TR TE B 5,000,000,000 50,000
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal value of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares  ordinary shares
ZEREE TEREE SERSEEE
usbD RMB
EY AR®
Issued: BT
At January 1, 2021 20211818 10,000 100 663
Issuance of ordinary shares upon the R R 5% 0 B L
RSU Scheme BE N Fil 41,389 414 2,701
Share split A& 4 51,337,611 - -
Issuance of ordinary shares for the RIERRER
Controlling Shareholders BITEBAR 1,980,000,000 19,800 130,112
Issuance of ordinary shares upon the RIEE X AFEER
Pre-IPO Investments BERITLBR 122,446,014 1,224 8,046
Repurchase of shares from the Controlling 1R & /X AR B & 31
Shareholders upon the REmER
Pre-IPO Investments REEkET (61,223,007) (612) (4,023)
At December 31, 2021 20214128318 2,092,612,007 20,926 137,499
At January 1, 2022 2022 1A81H 2,092,612,007 20,926 137,499
Issuance of ordinary shares upon the R E R AR ER
supplemental Pre-IPO Investments HRRERITEBR 157,626,890 1,576 10,367
Issuance of ordinary shares for PRSI D B AL FT
RSU Scheme ZEITEAR 4,509,681 45 296
Issuance of ordinary BITHERAHBEE
shares related to IPO BENEAR 96,397,000 964 6,684
At December 31, 2022 20224128318 2,351,145,578 23,511 154,846
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

24. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd) 24. RA ()
The movement of paid in share capital is shown in the table below: BRSNS RN TR :
For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFT
Beginning of the year F1 137 -
Proceeds from shares issued BRBITRMFTS A 18 137
End of the year FR 155 137
On March 31, 2021, the Company effected a 1,000 for 1 share M20215F3A31H - ANAFIHEST T 1571,00089
split and issued 1,980,000,000 ordinary shares to the Controlling f&% - W IRE A RIERR AR R EE 1T T 1,980,000,000
shareholders at par value. A& AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

25. OTHER RESERVES 25. HibfEE

Statutory Share-based  Shares held Currency

Share Capital surplus payment forRSU translation
premium (a) reserves  reserves (b) reserves(c)  Scheme(d) differences Total
BE%

ks RERS

EERG  EROMT BN
Ritifa)  AXRE frife(b) frifa(c) Bftd) ERER CH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARRTR

As at January 1, 2021 202151818 - (1745) 167,545 - - 764 166,564
Profit appropriation to statutory ~ FIEH&Z

surplus reserves AEREERE = - 68,160 - - - 68,160
Capital injection TE 3,600,554 - - - - - 3,600,554
Repurchased of shares in BREAAR

connection with Pre-IPO BEMRE

Investments LG (1,802,065) . - - - - (1.802,069)
Dividends dedlared BERRS (560,000) = - - - - (560,000)
Share-based compensation DARR IR BERE R 2B = = - 30,519 - - 50,519
Currency translation differences &3 =5 - - - - - 2217 @2.217)
Treasury shares held for BEXRHIRG

the RSU scheme BRI EIMERRR = = - - B) - B)
As at December 31, 2021 #2021512431A 1,238,489 (1,745) 235,705 50,519 (3) (41,453) 1,481,512
As at January 1, 2022 #2022%181A 1,238,489 (1,745) 235,705 50,519 (3) (41,453) 1,481,512
Profit appropriation to statutory  FEH&Z

surplus reserves TR - - 41,645 - - - 41,645
Issuance of ordinary shares BIRERLREE

related to IPO BENLRR 907,691 - - - - - 907,691
Underwriting commissions and 34 & &

other issuance costs HHTER (31331) - - - - - (31.331)
Share-based compensation DAY B R A - - - 98,133 - - 9,133
Share-based payments BERNREEMRE

related to Pre-IPO BEMMRN AERN

Investments (Note 7(a)) WEiEE) - - - 628,811 - - 628,811

99,380 99,380

Currency translation differences  [E X Z4 - - - -
Transfer to retained eamings - EABFEF|-

subsidiary cancellation MEATE - - (316) - - - (316)
Deferred tax impact related to -~ BERIEE fEHAIL

share-based payments to frin AERMATM

employees EEHEY 2 - - - 484 - - 484
As at December 31, 2022 #2022%12A31H 2,114,849 (1,745) 277,034 771,947 (3) 57,927 3,226,009

ERERSRIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

25. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
(a) Share premium

25, HibpEE =)

(a) BRtI&EE

184

In March 2021, certain Pre-IPO investors entered into a
share purchase agreement with HH Global Capital and the
Company (the “Share Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Pre-IPO investors purchased 122,446,014 newly
issued ordinary shares of the Company, and the Company
repurchased 61,223,007 ordinary shares of the Company from
HH Global Capital. As a result, in essence the Pre-IPO investors
subscribed for 61,223,007 newly issued ordinary shares of
the Company at a consideration of USD274,500,000 and
purchased 61,223,007 ordinary shares of the Company from
HH Global Capital at a consideration of USD274,500,000.
The consideration paid by the Pre-IPO investors was settled
on April 1, 2021. The repurchasing of shares from Controlling
shareholders was settled on April 2, 2021.

On December 15, 2022, the Company completed its IPO
by issuing 96,397,000 new shares with nominal value of
USD0.00001 each at a price of HKD10.56 per share. The
gross proceeds raised was approximately HKD1,017,952,000
(equivalent to RMB907,698,000), with which share capital
was increased by approximately RMB7,000 and share
premium was increased by approximately RMB907,691,000.
The share issuance costs paid and payable mainly include
share underwriting commissions, lawyers’ fees, reporting
accountant’s fee and other related costs, of which, the share
issuance costs directly attributable to the issuance of the new
shares amounting to RMB31,331,000 were charged to share
premium, and the share issuance costs attributable to the
listing of the old shares amounting to RMB34,852,000 were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended December 31, 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

25. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b)

(©

(d)

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, when distributing the net profit of each year, the Group
shall set aside 10% of its profit after income tax (based on
the PRC statutory financial statements and after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) for the statutory surplus
reserve fund (except where the reserve balance has reached
50% of the paid-in capital).

Statutory reserve can be used to make up for the loss or
increase the paid-in capital after approval from the appropriate
authorities.

Share-based payments

The share-based payments reserve represents the portion
of the grant date fair value of RSUs granted to the directors
and employees of the Group that has been recognized in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2.21(d). Information relating to the share-
based payments is set out in Note 10.

Shares held for RSU Scheme

As described in Note 10, during the year ended December
31, 2021, to incentivize directors, senior management and
employees, the RSU Scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company. As of December 31, 2022, shares of 45,898,681
amounted to RMB3,000 were allotted and issued to for the
purpose of the RSU Scheme.

26. DEFERRED INCOME

25. HifEE o)

(b)

(9

(d)

EEBERHE

RBEHBEMEBERER - RO IKEFFF
B AEERLEAERBREEES R
H10% KRR PSRRI (B o BLE E B
BRRLEBENEFORABEER &
ERFRE LR AN50%FRIN)

EEMBIER X ERBIRARE
BB MDA -

LARRAD BB AV S 3K

UMD RERNNREEEERTAEHE
EENEEXRFIBNEMKRETANA
REERD - ZEDEREMEE2.21(d)F
AR & E R B SRPTBR B & 5T BOR
TARER - BRANRND RERNNRNE
FHERBIEE10

FEZ PRI R E st EIR AR 17

IR EE10FTIL - RELZ2021F 128318 L
FE RITHBHEE SREEAENE
T ARARHEWIRA T ZRHIID B
=28l - HZE 2022512 A31H - 45,898,681
RIS (£ 588 ARE3,0000T) B AFR
B BERIETEIAY B AOBL 3 R BEAT ©

26.ESE WA

As at December 31,

M®12H31H

2022 2021

202245 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Beginning of the year F9 160,316 117,662

Government grants received BT B 42,305 50,065
Transfers to other income (Note 6) A H AU A B FRIE (i 5E6) (4,144) (3,525)
Offset with property, plant and equipment  #¥12 « 5 KRB H (2,444) (3,886)

End of the year FR 196,033 160,316
DREERSRIZRBR D
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

27. BEZ REMENRIEA

As at December 31,

MW12H31H

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Trade payables: B 5 EARIE
— Third parties -F=F 171,462 177,542
— Related parties (Note 33) —aEsE 77 (M 5E33) 15,790 20,350
187,252 197,892

Other payables: HAh (T 7R0E ¢
Salary and welfare payables e RER 245,048 213,883
Amounts due to related parties (Note 33) JE R 5 ZoE (MfEE33) 260 260
Deposits payables Effize 88,684 53,667
Freight charges payables EIEE 25,270 22,169

Payables for purchase of property, BEME  BEX

plant and equipment B E TR 27,853 49,768
Tax payable FEMTLR 24,791 6,905
VAT payable related to contract liabilities ARAEHEBREMGETR 20,417 17,277
Utilities payables FERKERRE A 9,120 9,234
Payables in relation to the Listing B AR EM A 25,668 10,968
Others Hi 35,369 11,832
502,480 395,963
689,732 593,855

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date are as

follows:

ERNBERAHNE ZENRERESNTOT

As at December 31,

®12831H
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Within 90 days 90H R 187,252 197,892

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to

be approximately their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

28. BORROWINGS

28. &

As at December 31,

MW12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Included in current liabilities: SFAREBAE !
Secured borrowings from bank BIERRITER 120 396,112
Included in non-current liabilities: STAEREBEE !
Secured borrowings from bank BIIRIRITE K 161,180 64,000

(a)

(b)

The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum)
at year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are set out as

follows:

(@) EZE2022FK2021F12A31HIEFERM

BELBBERERIINT -

As at December 31,

R12H31H
2022 2021
2022%F 202148
Borrowings from bank RITIER 2.54% 3.02%
Secured bank loans of the Group which were guaranteed and by AEEEERBITEFRNERRERER
pledged are set out below: U
As at December 31,
M12831H
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETFT
Guaranteed and pledged BRERLEH 161,300 64,000
Guaranteed [RES - 396,112
161,300 460,112

Borrowings from bank of the Group as at December 31, 2022
and 2021 were guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company or
pledged by land-use-right held by a subsidiary of the Company

(Note 32).

AREBER20224F K% 2021512 A31 BHYIRTT
BERAEAR AR B AR ERKALRR A
KM B A B P B M b F AR AT

(FF5E32) °

DRERERERARDF

2022 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

28. BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 28.

(¢)  The maturity date of the borrowings were analyzed as follows:

ERHNBAEDMAT

As at December 31,

M12831H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Within 1 year —FNRN
- RMB —ARH#E 120 396,112
Between 1 and 2 years —EWEF
- RMB —ARKE 1,740 50
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF
— RMB -AR#& 159,440 63,950
161,300 460,112
(d) The fair values of the Group’s borrowings are not materially (d) HERZEERWESH BERIRREMIEH
different to their carrying amounts, since the interest payable R ZEEFBEAEE  WAEEEBER
on those borrowings is either close to current market rates or WAREEHEERMEYMRENAESR -

the borrowings are of a short-term nature.

(e) The Group's borrowings from the companies controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders are interest free. The borrowings
from banks are all at fixed rate during the reporting period.
Details of the Group's exposure to risks arising from current
borrowings are set out in Note 3.

(f)  The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing during the reporting period.
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED

INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
The deferred income tax assets and liabilities balance as at December
31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

ELEFSHEENELEREHER

MR20224 K 2021512 A31 HHIREFISTHEBE
RBEESRIT

As at December 31,

MW12A31H8

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT

Deferred income tax assets: FRIEFTSTHEE ¢
— to be recovered after more than 12 months  —#23@121{& A 14 k(g 117,187 68,842
— to be recovered within 12 months P 1218 A A d[E 17,971 28,966
135,158 97,808

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities R IR SH A8 TE HE 88
pursuant to set-off provisions RIEMIBERE (66,331) (55,618)
Net deferred tax assets FERIE & EFE 68,827 42,190

Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFMBHARE
— to be recovered after more than 12 months  —#:8121& A& Uz[E (95,191) (75,784)
— to be recovered within 12 months R 1218 A R (17.638) (13,496)
(112,829) (89,280)

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to RIS E T 8y
set-off provisions EEFREAE 66,331 55,618
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIE S EFEE (46,498) (33,662)
PREHRESRERERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

Movements in deferred income tax assets during the reporting

period are as follows:

RBEMRNELFREHEENESHINT

Impairment Tax Lease Unrealized  Deferred
Deferred income tax assets of assets losses liabilities  Accruals profits income Total
BEFMEHEE EERE HEAFE HESE EHEE A2RNE EERA Bt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARMTRT ARBTR ARMTRT AR®TR ARET:R
As at January 1, 2021 R2021F1518 200 20,284 3,351 28,405 6,093 - 58,333
Credited/(charged) to profitor ~ WMEZMEEA/(31)
loss (Note 12) (Mzx12) 26 1,446 168 14,880 (3466) 26,421 39,475
As at December 31, 2021 ®2021512A31H 226 21,730 3,519 43,285 2,627 26,421 97,808
As at January 1, 2022 R2022%15818 226 21,730 3,519 43,285 2,627 26,421 97,808
Credited/(charged) to profitor ~ FMEZMEA/ (1)
loss (Note 12) (MF12) 1,635 1,823 (2193) 23622 3,472 8,507 36,866
Credited directly to equity B AR - - - 484 - - 484
As at December 31, 2022 ®2022%12R31A 1,861 23,553 1,326 67,391 6,099 34,928 135,158
Movements in deferred income tax liabilities during the reporting RBEEAPRGREFREH aENEsmT
period are as follows:
Accelerated Unrealized
tax Right-of- investment
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation use assets income Total
BEFEHAR DT EE ERAREE REBANREWA &t
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
As at January 1, 2021 H2021FE1818 (50,658) (3,846) (2,506) (57,010)
(Charged)/credited to Rigz (F08),/FEA
profit or loss (Note 12) (f5E12) (30,563) 176 (1,883) (32,270)
As at December 31, 2021 M2021%12A31A8 (81,221) (3,670) (4,389) (89,280)
As at January 1, 2022 M2022%1H1A8 (81,221) (3.670) (4,389) (89,280)
(Charged)/credited to BT G0RR),/F A (A
profit or loss (Note 12) $12) (16,143) 2,178 (9,584) (23,549)
As at December 31, 2022 #2022%12A31H (97,364) (1,492) (13,973) (112,829)

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

30. CASH FLOW INFORMATION 30. BEREEHR
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REMBEE

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR¥T T AREETTT
Profit before income tax P8R AT R E 412,377 1,096,632
Adjustments for: BT EELFAE :
Net impairment losses on property, 1% - K= M 28 A K&
plant and equipment and other HIEmEEEN
non-current assets RIEEEFE 7 7,026 76
Depreciation of property, M - WE &
plant and equipment RETE 15 121,431 91,983
Amortization of intangible assets A EHY 17 1,768 1,757
Amortization of right-of-use assets  {# F#E & E#E 54 16 12,068 12,696
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE BER
plant and equipment BRI EE 7 2,185 1,647
Gain on disposal of right-of- HEFAEEED
use assets Wz (169) (367)
Fair value gains on financial assets AR (BETE R EEH
at fair value through profit or loss 5+ A& BRI SR
BENAREBERS 7 (30,892) (27,416)
Settlement loss related to foreign  EiREASMNEAS R BB
exchange forward contract HEEEE 7 5,238 =
Other income transferred from RIER A A
deferred income EHAUA 26 (4,144) (3,525)
Finance income, net FE W AR5 11 (57,685) (19,246)
Impairment (gains)/losses SR ERE (),
on financial assets 518 3.1 (182) 303
Non-cash employee benefits RS RERMNER—
expense — share based payments VAR 19 B ERE R 3k 9 98,133 50,519
Share-based payments related HERNREERRE
to Pre-IPO Investments B ARG RERS
INES 7 628,811 -
Net foreign exchange (gains)ylosses  [EH (U ) /B8 %58 (13,185) 6,148
Change in operating REEERBEBZ
assets and liabilities: -1
Decrease in restricted cash SRR BIIR SR 294 11,812
Decrease/(Increase) in trade, other & 5 [ H ith e I k18 K&
receivables and prepayments TBSRIER D, (38 n) 117,437 (55,667)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 77 &4, (3EN) 4,992 (63,229)
Increase/(Decrease) in aRABE
contract liabilities #an, Crd) 5 44,678 (52,668)
Increase in trade and other payables ‘& 5 K E b &~ ZRIE1Z N 106,270 118,348
Cash generated from operations & i8R E 1,456,451 1,169,803

ERERSRIERERAT
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30. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd) 30. REREER %)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing (b) METHAGBHER
activities
This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements NERE T & 25| BRI R E Rk H e
in net cash for each of the periods presented. SHF o

As at December 31,

R12831H
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T AREETIT
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 22 1,314,453 494,275
Financial assets at fair value LARBEEFEER
through profit or loss BE AR HERN
TRIEE 18 382,440 802,103
Restricted cash SIRHIIR S 22 - 294
Term deposits with initial A EARR A =18 A A LAY
term over three months TEBITE R 23 2,624,868 1,720,671
Borrowings B 28 (161,300) (460,112)
Lease liabilities HERE 16 (5,304) (14,715)
Net cash N4 F5E 4,155,157 2,542,516
Cash and liquid investments RE RmERE 4,321,761 3,017,343
Gross debt-fixed interest rates EE— BTN X (166,604) (474,827)
Net cash bR O 4,155,157 2,542,516
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

30. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing

activities (Cont'd)

30. REREER (2
(b) MEEBEEHKRE)

Liabilities from financing activities

RETEHEE
Leases

Borrowings liabilities Total

EEN HEAE &5t

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREETIT ARETIT AREETIT

Net debt as at January 1,2021 202151818 E &% (393,366) (17,482) (410,848)
Cash flows REME (70,634) 8,095 (62,539)
Additions = = (5,571) (5,571)
Accrual interest e 2 3,888 (694) 3,194
Disposal HE - 937 937

Net debt as at December 31, A2021%F12831H

2021 HEB (460,112) (14,715) (474,827)
Cash flows REmE 302,700 5,622 308,322
Additions NE - (826) (826)
Accrual interest e 2 (3,888) (391) (4,279)

Disposal HE - 5,006 5,006

Net debt as at December 31, 7A2022%12A31H

2022 BEK (161,300) (5,304) (166,604)
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

31. COMMITMENTS 31. &iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAHEIE
The Group has the following significant capital commitments AREBEEAR THERERNRENREEF
not provided for at the end of the reporting period. R B o
As at December 31,
R12A31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Property, plant and equipment W - BE RERE 79,479 141,706
(b) Non-cancellable short-term leases and low-value (b) TR EHEERKEEHREE
leases
The Group leases various offices, warehouses, buildings AEFEBERTBENAEARAERE
and manufacturing equipment under non-cancellable leases WA= BE  EFEREERE -
contracts.
The Group has recognized right-of-use assets for leases, other BREHEEEEASYN  AEEDERA
than short-term and low-value leases, see Note 16 for further EHEAREEE  EHEMEREE2EME16 -
information. The commitment about short-term lease and low- N EHAE M EEBERSAENT :

value lease were as following:

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 1 year —FR 3,879 1,945

32. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 32. AERERYNEFEE
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current FRYEENHAME SRR IR S ENBREEES

borrowings are:

As at December 31,

®12A31H8
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFT
Land-use-right b {s A 93,822 68,723
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control, common significant influence or joint control.

The owners, members of key management and their close family
members of the Group are also considered as related parties. In
the opinion of the directors of the company, the related party
transactions were carried out in normal course of business and at
terms negotiated between the Group and the respective related
parties.

The following significant transactions were carried out between
the Group and its related parties during the reporting period. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of business and
at terms negotiated between the Group and the respective related
parties.

Names and relationships with related parties

Name of the related parties

RS K&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

33.

B AR5

- AERERSEEEN S -7 R -7
MM REERRBEEEAZENES - AIZE
HRE RN o IMREFHTHRAES - HF
EAFERBAES - TRR R

FEEBNFRBA TEERREKE RERIME
BRERTT - ARRESERR - BB ZTR
RN B B R BB T 2 A 19 P e (R — AR E TS
BREPHE o

RIEIA - AEBREFB SRR T TIEX
R5 > RRRIEERR - BHOIRZTRESS
) B 5 BE R 7 2 R P A IR — AR RS AR P
PR

RS 77 4 T I LR R 0T RO RR MR

Nature of relationship

BEME

Mr. Liu Weiping & Mr. Liu Fuping

BT RERZBIEE

Zhumadian Pingping Limited
HEETTEFRMERAT

Luohe Delong Color Printing Development Co., Ltd.

The Controlling Shareholders, directors of the Board
ERRER - EE

A company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders
FR AR AR BR 15 ) 2 7]

A company significant influenced by the Controlling

Shareholders

BN TERERENER AR AR
HH Global Capital Ltd
MAMEHRERERLAA

*  The English name of certain companies referred to above
represent the best efforts made by management of the
Company to directly translate the Chinese names as they have
not registered any official English names.

FERRREAREHAT
A shareholder of the Company
EYNCIL &

* ERETARMEXEEDAREEEY
ZERRBXEAHNEEBOBE - RE
RSN B HE EN R CETE -

ERERSRIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Cont'd)
(@) Amounts due to the Controlling shareholders

33. B SR F ()

(a) BNERRKRREMER

For the year ended December 31,

BE12A31BLEE

2022 2021

20225 20214F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR¥ETT

Beginning of the year F4 - 4
Repayment to the controlling [EE L ES EEN

shareholder - (671)

Currency translation differences B 3 =58 - (43)

End of the year FR - -

The balances of amounts due to the Controlling shareholders
were non-trade in nature, and were settled in early 2021.

(b) Borrowings from the companies controlled by

the Controlling Shareholders

FERERRRABESRBIEE S EE - B
ER2021FFMEEE -

(b) FERRMRIZHIHY A BHRHEAER

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARKETTT
Beginning of the year F4 - 73,366
Borrowings received EEER - -
Repayments of borrowings BEEm - (73,366)
End of the year FXR - -

Borrowings from the companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders are unsecured, interest free, payment on demand
and non-trade in nature and were settled in early 2021.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Contd) 33. B R 5 ()
() Transactions with related parties () HEHEBINRS
Other than those related party transactions with Controlling REREHIR - B RIS R SRR
Shareholders, during the reporting period, the Group had the TR NEBBRE MBS ET T AT
following significant transactions with other related parties. BEBALS o

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LFE
2022 2021
20225 202148
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
— Zhumadian Pingping Limited —ERETFEFEFRAABRAA
Purchase utilities service HEARASERS - 4,262
Property leasing YEHE 2,842 2,410
2,842 6,672
— Delong Color Printing —fEEER
Purchase packaging products RESEER 98,371 125,851
(d) Outstanding balances in relation with (d) HHEAHE AR ZEENREERER

transactions with related parties

As at December 31,

M12H831H
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Balances due to related parties e RARSE T AE ER
— Zhumadian Pingping Limited —BEEMEERBERAR 260 260
— Delong Color Printing — =g ] 15,790 20,350
16,050 20,610
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the above outstanding HZE2022F K202112 8310 - FiliRK(E
balances were related to the transactions as disclosed in Note BEKEMFABOMEENRZER B
33(c), which were trade in nature. BESHE -
ERERSRIERERAT
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Cont'd)
(e) Key management personnel compensation
Key management compensation for the reporting period are

set out below:

33.

BEEMAERS#)
(e) EAEESIEAETM
RIBERR - RS EROTIMETIT -

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LFE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TIE - #FHa RAF 29,221 24,634
Contributions to pension plans RINEETEIER 367 224
Welfare and other expenses BRI M EMFET 452 213
Share-based payment expenses ARG BERER R 62,173 30,146
92,213 55,217

34. SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at December 31, 2022 are set out

below.

34.

Vo) NG
R2022%F 128318 » AEEEZWE A BT
IR e

Place of
establishment Equity interest held
Date of and kind of Principal activities and Registered by the company
Name of subsidiaries establishment legal entity place of operation capital  Asat December 31,
BALBER AAER12A318
WEARER B B EINL-EoE TEEDREE LY EMEE FRRS R
2022 2021
W25 2001F
Directly held by the Company
FAREERE
HH Global Holdings Ltd 2018-07-09 British Virgin Investment holding, usp1 100% 100%
Islands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company
MAERER A 20185798 KBARRES . REBR [E
BREART HEEARES
EFeng Capital Ltd 2018-06-28 British Virgin Investment holding, usb1 100% 100%
slands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company
HEENBRAT] 018F6A288  KEBABRES X REER (E
BRELRAR EEERRMS
Indirectly held by the Company
FRAEERE
HH International Enterprise Limited. 2018-07-19 Hong Kong, limited  International trading, HKD100 100% 100%
liability company  Hong Kong
NMEREZBRAA 018F7A19R BB ARAE ERES BE 100787

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

34. fiE AT (#&)

Place of
establishment Equity interest held
Date of and kind of Principal activities and Registered by the company
Name of subsidiaries establishment legal entity place of operation capital As at December 31,
BB HR AARRMM2A31H
HWEARERE B3 A EARREL FTEEHREE Y Mg ERRAER
2022 2021
02F 20214
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
FRAEERE ()
EFeng Investment Development limited 2018-07-10 Hong Kong, Investment holding, HKD100 100% 100%
limited liability Hong Kong
company
SEREERBRAA 018578108 & BREE  REBR FE 10087
AR
Luohe Hehe Foods Technology Co., Ltd. 2018-08-31 Henan, PRC, wholly ~ Investment holding, USD33,060,000 100% 100%
foreign-owned Mainland China
enterprise
BANNEmRRAREEAR 2018F8A318  HEIARE RER - REIARE 33,060,000% 7T
NEBERE
Luohe Weilong Commerce Co., Ltd. 2014-07-11 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB300,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
M I ABHEARA 01467ANB REAR AmR S REAE  ARE300,000,0007
EREFAR
Henan Weilong Foods E-commerce Co.,Ltd. ~ 2017-07-12 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
MEIERMEXEHERERAE 20177R128 HEARE AmRS  FEKRE  AR30,000,0007T
EREFAR
Luohe Weilong Meiwei foods Technology 2019-01-22 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB20,000,000 100% 100%
Development Co., Ltd limited liability Mainland China
company
BIDEERRGNBERAREAAR 2019618228 REAR- AmRS REARE  ARK20,000,0007T
EREFAR
Luohe Ping Ping Foods Co., Ltd. 2004-09-09 Henan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB120,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
BT FRREREERA 200459 498 hEAE AmBUEREE ARH120,000,00070
BREARR HEIARE
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

34. fiE AT (#&)

Place of
establishment Equity interest held
Date of and kind of Principal activities and Registered by the company
Name of subsidiaries establishment legal entity place of operation capital As at December 31,
BB HR AARRMM2A31H
HWEARERE B3 A EARREL FTEEHREE Y Mg ERRAER
2022 2021
02F 20214
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
FRRBERE (E)
Luohe Qinzui Foods Co., Ltd. 2010-06-24 Henan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
RTRERMERAR 201066R248  HEAR RuSHERHE - ARH30,000,0007
BREARRA HEIARE
Luohe Weilai Foods Technology Co., Ltd. 2013-11-11 Henan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
BARRREMRRARAR 013%F11A118 HETRE RuSHERHE AE#30,000,0007C
BREARHA HEIARE
Luohe Lewei Seasoning Processing Co., Ltd. ~ 2017-07-31 Henan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB20,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
B ERAR NI ERAR 0177A318 REARE RuSHERHE - ARH20,000,0007
BREARRA HEIARE
Luohe Lewei Agricultural Foods Processing ~ 2017-07-31 Henan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
BIERRERMIERAR 0177A318 REARE RuHERHE ARH50,000,0007
BREARAHA HEIARE
Luohe Weidao Foods Technology Co., Ltd. ~ 2018-07-11 Henan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB250,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
BRI RMRRARAR 018F7A1MA  HETRE AmBUEREHE AR #250,000,0007
BREARHA HEIARE
Zhumadian Weilai Foods Co., Ltd. 2017-07-20 Henan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
EEEERRRBBRAR 2017%7R208  HEAR RiSHERHE ARH10,000,0007
BREARHA HEIARE
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

34. fiE AT (#&)

Place of
establishment Equity interest held
Date of and kind of Principal activities and Registered by the company
Name of subsidiaries establishment legal entity place of operation capital As at December 31,
BRI BHR AAFM2A318
WEARERE B A8 EARRERL FTEEPREE Y fEx ERRAER
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
ARRMEERE ()
Hangzhou Weilong Commerce Co., Ltd 2018-01-03 Zhejiang, PRC, Trading of food, RMB3,000,000 - 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
MMELEHEREERHA 2018F1A3R RET - RmR5  PEAE  AKH3000,0007T
BREALHA
Chuxiong Weilong Foods Co., Ltd. 2019-08-13 Yunnan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
BHEILRMERAR 201968R138  HEZH- RS RHEE - AR %1,000,0007
BREALHA HEIARE
Qingdao Weilong Foods Co., Ltd. 2019-09-27 Shandong, PRC,  Trading of food, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
BEEIRRMBRAF 2019%9A270  HEILE RmX5  REAE  AKH1,000,0007T
BREALHA
Luohe Xinglin Foods Co., Ltd. 2019-12-25 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB200,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
RTANRMERAR 20195128258 HETH - RmR 5 REAE  ARS200,000,0007
BREAAF
Luohe Weilong Biotechnology Co., Ltd. 2020-06-12 Henan, PRC, Research and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Development,
company Mainland China
BAH DA RITERAF 2020%6A128  REAR e - hEAE AR %1,000,0007
BREFAF
Shanghai Weilong Meiwei Biotechnology 2020-05-18 Shanghai, PRC, Research and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability Development,
company Mainland China
PRI RFRENRRERAT 202065R188  FRELE- e - hEARE AR 1,000,007
BREALHA
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

34. B AT (#)

Place of
establishment Equity interest held
Date of and kind of Principal activities and Registered by the company
Name of subsidiaries establishment legal entity place of operation capital As at December 31,
HYBER AAFAR12A318
i NGRS BYBH EABRER FETHRCEHT AftER BEERERER
2022 2021
20225 20215
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
KAAMERE (B)
Shanghai Weilong Meiwei International 2020-05-18 Shanghai, PRC, Trading of food, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Commerce Co., Ltd. limited liability Mainland China
company
HEIRFREREEEREEAR 2020858188 HELES RmX 5 FEAE  AK$1,0000007T
BREALH
Shanghai Weilong Information Technology ~ 2021-01-22 Shanghai, PRC, International trading, UsD2,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. wholly foreign- Mainland China
owned
enterprise
LEIRESRIERAT 02151828 HELE HEE BERES EAE 2,000,000%7C
BiE
Nanning Weilai Commerce Co.,Ltd. 2021-02-05 Guangxi, PRC, Trading of food, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
HEMEREEERAR 202142 A5H hEIER RmX% $EAE  ARE1,000,0007T
BREALH
Weilong Foods (Luliang) Co., Ltd. 2021-02-19 Yunnan, PRC, Manufacturing and RMB100,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Mainland China
IhRm (BERE) BRAR 201F28198 HEER - RmBUERIEE - AR%100,000,0007C
BREMAR HREIARE
Shanghai Weilong Digital Technology Co., Ltd  2021-05-26 Shanghai, PRC, International trading, RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
LEIRETREERAT 2021658268 FELE - BRE5 REAE  ARS,000,0007
BREALH
Xinyi Weidao Commerce Co., Ltd 2021-05-27 Jiangsu, PRC, Trading of food, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
mrEREERAT 2021658278 ETE RmX% - PEAE  ARE1,000,0007T
BREALH
Shanghai Weidao Trade Co., Ltd 2021-12-20 Shanghai, PRC, International trading, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
LEENEHBRERAAT 20214128208 FELE: BRE5 REAE  AR1,000,0007T
BREALH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

*

The English name of certain subsidiaries referred to above

represent the best efforts made by management of the
Company to directly translate the Chinese names as they have
not registered any official English names.

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company

34. WEAR )

*

BlRETRARNRXEEIIAREEEY
REAPXEROEZRRLOBE - RE

aor
25

REE W EF MHEAERECHTE

35. AR TEERBMERHHES

(a) ARAEERBR

As at December 31,

MW12A318
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FosE ARET T AREFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RIEE 184,673 81,864
Total non-current assets JERBEERE 184,673 81,864
Current assets REBEE
Trade, other receivables and B hEMERZER
prepayments TEfIA 162,559 889,384
Financial assets at fair value UAREEFEAEEESE
through profit or loss FFAEHEZN R
BE 262,291 126,947
Term deposits with initial term B ER A=E A N &
of over three months T HATER 797,182 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIRESEEY 970,640 178,750
Total current assets BB ERE 2,192,672 1,195,081
Total assets EE#RE 2,377,345 1,276,945
ERERSRIERERAT

2022 F#f

203



204

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company(Cont'd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

35. AATNAELMRRBHERD =)

(a) ARAEEREBER#E)

As at December 31,

R12H31H
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥T T ARBTFT
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMFERFIE 24,644 8,252
Total current liabilities BB ERE 24,644 8,252
Total liabilities =Rt 24,644 8,252
Net assets BEFE 2,352,701 1,268,693
Equity P
Share capital &N 155 137
Other reserves HEh A (b) 2,995,772 1,276,588
Accumulated deficits ES (643,226) (8,032)
Equity attributable to RAREE ANEEER
owners of the Company 2,352,701 1,268,693
Total equity B 2,352,701 1,268,693
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEE 2,377,345 1,276,945

Mr. Weiping Liu

BlEEEE
Director

EF

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on March 23, 2023 and was signed on its behalf:

ARBEEBERMN2023F3H238@EE

EEHAETHERRES

Mr. Hongzhi Peng
HRESRE
Director

EF
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35. BALANCE SHEETS AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35, A A S ESEEBEAREEET &)
THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AT ESR

Share-based Shares held Currency
Share Capital payment forRSU translation
Premium reserves reserves Scheme differences Total
DRtR HESR
EBNAR  ROEQ
RIDEE — EARE wE TENRG 2 EXES CHS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETR AR®T:R

As at January 1, 2021 ®2021%F1 818 - 30,632 - - 1) 30,631
Capital injection iE 3,600,554 - - - - 3,600,554
Repurchased of shares BEERRREEN

in connection with REBmERG

Pre-IPO Investments (1,802,065) - - - - (1,802,065)
Dividends declared EERRE (560,000) = = = = (560,000)
Share-based compensation PARR D B ERE RSB - - 50,519 - = 50,519
Currency translation differences [& & =& - - - - (43,048) (43,048)
Treasury shares held for FHEZ R BIR 7 EfL

the RSU scheme SHEINERR G - = = (3) = 3)
As at December 31, 2021 20214128318 1,238,489 30,632 50,519 ?3) (43,049) 1,276,588
As at January 1, 2022 W2022%£181A 1,238,489 30,632 50,519 (3) (43,049) 1,276,588
Issuance of ordinary shares BITHERDREE

related to IPO BRANEER 907,691 - - - - 907,691
Underwriting commissions DEAEREBET

and other issuance costs 2/ (31,331) - - - - (31,331)
Share-based compensation PARR D R EREm A - - 98,133 - - 98,133
Share-based payments related ~ E& X AFEER

to Pre-IPO Investments RERBH

Rt RER R - - 628,811 - - 628,811

Currency translation differences [& 5 =58 - - - - 115,880 115,880
As at December 31, 2022 20225128318 2,114,849 30,632 777,463 (3) 72,831 2,995,772
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36. EENENRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ES=M<

For the year ended

December 31, 2022

H2ANENANBLEE

Executive directors HI1EE

Mr. Weiping Liu AETEE - 8,784 - - 63 0 8,917

M. Fuping Liu URTEE - 8,784 - - 63 63 8,910

Mr. Yinong Sun(j) BMEREN - 3,959 - 11,823 TE] 61 15,886

Mr. Hongzhi Peng YhERE - 2,139 - 14,481 63 86 16,769

Mr. Lin Chen Rkt - 1,935 - 13317 55 /! 15,381

Mr. Zhongsi Liu AnBkE - 2,100 - 16,749 62 3 18,984

- 21,7101 - 56,370 349 427 84,847

Non-executive directors FHEE

Mr. Wei Maoli) ERA() - - - - - - -

Ms. Lili Xu "Rt 239 - - - - - 239

Mr. Bihong Zhang RFahkE 239 - - - - - 239

Ms. Dongmei Xing iES:T 239 - - - - - 239
" - - - - - "1
"7 27,701 - 56,370 349 427 85,564

(i) Mr. Yinong Sun was appointed as the executive director on April ()  BINREENR202F4A27BEE T AH
27,2022. TEE -
(i)~ Mr. Wei Mao resigned from his position as the non-executive (i)  EREER2022F4827BFEERDQAIE
director of the Company on April 27, 2022. BITEEWS -

2 o 6 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd) 36. EENREAN R ER 2

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) () EE=B=E &)

Welfare,

Share-based  Contribution medical

For the year ended Discretionary payment  to pension and other
December 31, 2021 Fees Salary bonus EXpenses plan eXpenses Total

TARR{R

RER Ehe B BER

HE0NE12R31ALLEE ik ¥ BEEL  NERx O HEMR HtEX At

RMBOOO  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR  ARETR

Executive directors HI1EE
Mr. Weiping Liu AETEE - 8,4% - - 37 33 8,566
Mr. Fuping Liu URTEE - 8,4% - - 37 33 8,566
Mr. Hongzhi Peng YRELE - 1478 - 7,664 39 39 9,220
Mr. Lin Chen [yt - 1,260 - 6,834 20 16 8,130
Mr. Zhongsi Liu AnBEE - 79 - 8,628 by 2% 9470
- 20,526 - 23,126 155 145 43,952
Non-executive dlrectors FHITEZ
Mr. Wei Mao IR - = - - - _ _
M. Lili Xu RERRL 159 - - - - = 159
Mr. Bihong Zhang KLTE 159 - - - - = 159
Ms. Dongmei Xing HIES X 159 - - - - - 159
471 - - - - - 477
477 20,526 - 23,126 155 145 44,429

DR ERSRIERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &t B1 &R R Mz

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

There were no retirement benefits paid to or receivable by any
director in respect of their other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
during the years ended December 31, 2022 (2021: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

There were no termination benefits paid to or receivable by
any director during the years ended December 31, 2022 (2021:
Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the directors for making available
the services of them as a director of the Company during the
years ended December 31, 2022 (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favors of directors

Other than those disclosed in Note 33, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings entered into between the
Group and the directors and in favor of the directors during
the years ended December 31, 2022 (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the years ended December 31,
2022 (2021: Nil).

37. CONTINGENCY
As at December 31, 2022, there were no significant contingencies
items for the Group and the Company.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2022

36. EEMENRER 2

37.

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

EENERKER
HZE2022F12A318ILEE » YERAAD
A E B A R BB IR AR B A E IR TS
MR EE L (& EERARKE
F (20214 « &) -

EEEHEN
HZE2022F128318ILEE - WERT
a] 8 = 3 - 5 (T o] 2 =5 8 UK A 8 B 4R )
(20214F : &) -

RESEEREMmME
E
HE2022F12A318LFE - BEAFS
BEAARRESREREMAESIELM
R (2021F « &) -

E=FHH

ERAUEEAZTRAZER - £8
RREMR G 2 ER
HZE2022F 128318 LEFE - BHFE33AT
WEEN AEERESZBBET N
ETRAXmANEEER ZERKREM
X5 (20214 : &) -

BEERRS  ZHRERFPHEK
=

REREPEE2022912 A31 B ILEEH
EMEHE - A FERA R AEF—FE
RAREERETEENEERETENR
ENTAERAEREBHNEARS &%
BERAR (20214 : &) -

NEEE
R2022F 128310 » REE KAR B E IR
BARBEE -
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